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Dreams ¢ Persistence

The flower-shaped block mold on the cover was originally designed in 1971
and was hand-made by the founder of Karrie Group, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, with
a craftsmanship spirit, symbolizing Mr. Ho's original intention to achieve his
industrial dreams.

“Dreams ® Persistence” demonstrates Mr. Ho’s determination to achieve the
centennial enterprise.

Dreams are deeply rooted in Karrie’s corporate culture, and persistence is
the energy that drives our dreams. Sustainable development is the persistent
goal of our Group, and we are committed to bringing fruitful results to our
stakeholders with our dreams for the future.
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Corporate Information

NEER

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
9th Floor
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. YAM Chung Shing (Chairman)
Mr. HO Cheuk Ming

Dr. LAU Kin Wah

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. TANG Wing Fai

AUDITOR

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance
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Central, Hong Kong
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WINSTON & STRAWN
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Hong Kong
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The Hongkong and Shanghai
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Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
China Construction Bank (Asia)
Mizuho Bank, Ltd.
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

4/F., North Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
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183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Key Information for Shareholders

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2022
Financial Year End
31 March 2022

Announcement of 2021/22 results
27 June 2022

Last day to register for the entitlement to attend and vote at

the 2021/22 Annual General Meeting

19 August 2022

2021/22 Annual General Meeting
26 August 2022

Last day to register for 2021/22
Final Dividends
31 August 2022

2021/22 Final Dividend expected
Payment Date

—EC_FHBFER
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- _HF=HA=1+—H

RO/ FEEENMFAN
—E-FRNAZ++EH

EESH_E_—F —_EERREEF
RERBRECZHREETCHEN
“E2-"FN\A+TAIH

B/ —ERRAFAE
—E2-—FN\AZ+H

B/ FERERE
BEBEAS
“E-—FNA=1+—H

AR =B —-FERHKRE
ke B

20 September 2022 T FARZTH
SHARE CAPITAL % 7K
As at
IS

31 March 2022 30 June 2022
—E-CF B —4F
=A=+—H ~NA=1H
Authorised (HK$) JEE(BTT) 400,000,000 400,000,000
Issued (HK$) BE81708T) 202,130,920 202,130,920
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Key Information for Shareholders

MARKET CAPITALISATION
As at 31 March 2022
(Closing Price: HK$1.48)
HK$2,991,537,616

As at 30 June 2022
(Closing Price: HK$1.42)
HK$2,870,259,064

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
Main Board

1050

BOARD LOT
2,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the “Share(s)”)

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Any matters relating to your shareholding, such as transfer of
shares, e-communication, change of name or address, and
loss of share certificates should be addressed in writing to
the Hong Kong branch share registrar of Karrie International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”):

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862-8628

Fax: (852) 2529-6087

INVESTOR RELATIONS
For enquiries, please contact:

Ms. Isabella Lam

Corporate Communications Manager
Karrie International Holdings Limited
9th Floor, Southeast Industrial Building
611-619 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2411-0913

Fax: (852) 2415-1608

Email: ir@karrie.com
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Corporate Calendar

TEKRERF

7R
July

9R
September

104
October

1148

November

128

December

SERBFRIXRRSIN  FERT(FE)EYNPRELBLERRR
FEARER2020 | FEERREF R IR 5F+2HRR A RES ]

The Group was awarded the “EcoChallenger” and “5 Years+ EcoPioneer”
in the “BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Award 2020”
organized by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and sponsored by
Bank of China (Hong Kong)

SEHEEESBMARAREESRARIBAEIATFI6949:2016/TBITRmME
)&%ljﬁr‘%ﬂb M

The Group’s factory was awarded [IATF16949:2016 SGS Automotive
Industry Quality Control System Certification from SGS Hong Kong Limited
SEREFBTIXEERB TEREL -2 ORIEIF+ES

The Group was awarded the certificate of “Industry Cares Recognition —
3+ Year Award ” by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries
SEEFERREDZE SRV BT ORBREIES

The Group was awarded the “Hong Kong Green Organization
Certification” certificate by the Hong Kong Environmental Campaign
Committee

SEEFEP/PDECEEHSEIMN2021KAER IBFFAEREZIK
B R10+] i,“iE“f

The Group was awarded the “Partner Employer Award 10+” recognition
by the 2021 “Partner Employer Award” Award Scheme organized by the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium Business
SERBEEFIERGE I MM BB IERLE2021-22 + FR\AF
ERERMA R RER AL

The Group was awarded the highest-level award “Upgrading and
Transformation Grand Award” in the “Hong Kong Awards for Industries
2021-22: Upgrading and Transformation” organized by the Hong Kong
Young Industrialists Council

SEREEBEBREXGRE202021 BB A FHERRE - Sl
The Group was awarded the “2020/21 Hong Kong Sustainability Award —
Excellence Award” by the Hong Kong Management Association

SEERRE IXNEEENEEFRBNRRERABE EEBREE
BHEH(BEE) TS

The Group was awarded the “Hong Kong — Guangdong Cleaner Production
Excellent Partners (Manufacturing)” by the Department of Industry and
Information Technology of Guangdong Province and the Environmental
Bureau of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government
SEIENENITEXEREHTEER

The Group’s newly-built Karrie Craftsmanship Tower held a topping out
ceremony

FEIRR 2 EURA

Thailand factory has been officially launched
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2H
February

3R
March

Corporate Calendar

TERARERF

SEEEBHERBHSRESFPsEHRRAIZIESG  B-TTRF
HBE T \FREEITE

The Group has been received the “15 Years Plus Caring Company Logo
for the eighteen consecutive year from The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service since 2005

REMEESRE T XEREAT)BE LEAIE

The Thailand factory was granted a production license by the Industrial
Estate Authority of Thailand (IEAT)

4

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 3 7




Financial Highlights
MBEHRE

Revenue HK$ million

BWABEET

2,920* 2,651 2,902 3,473

2018 2019 2020 2021
Include continuing operations only
REEFREEER

Restated
B&7l

W ow o o

Basic earnings per share HK cents

BREAREFEMN

12.6 22.3*

2018 2019 2020 2021

9.2 11.1

¢ Restated
FB2&Esl

| ©

2022

2022

Profit attributable to equity shareholders HK$ million
BEFEARGEINERET

183 221 %0 ur @

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

*  Restated
£ BE

Dividends per share HK cents

BREREEW

8.9 8.0

9.0 11.5

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
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Turnover percentage by Business

BEBBINEXRBFE IR

Financial Highlights
MBEBE

Turnover percentage by Geographical Location
(based on the country in which the final destination
of shipment is located or services are provided and
properties are located)

RERFEREINEEERTS X
(R B EE W AR RERIETERRSE)
%etﬁg%e;usmess Hong K ) Western E
| ' : | B E\(;%g ong [ | épin B ﬁ%Zern urope
Electronics Manufacturing Services Business
BFEXERIER Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and Mainland China)
Metal and Plastic Business S (FRERE - BBRTEANL)
TEBEXE North America Mainland China
JEEM FEIR
23% 19%
2022 |48 2021 |[ss o s G| 20217 ) s
5
29%
15% 5% 14%
4%
2022 2021¢ Chang
B ZECF
HK$ million HERT
Revenue WA 4,013 3,473 +16%
Gross profit E7 1,148 946 +21%
Operating profit ERR 968 744 +30%
Profit for the year ERRA 549 445 +23%
Profit attributable to equity shareholders Enrs A AEGRT] 549 445 +23%
Total assets BEBE 5,066 4,431 +14%
Shareholders' equity R R 1,697 1,697 -
In Million EE--1iq
Number of Shares ESnr 1 2,021 2,012 +1%
Per Share Data SRER
HK cents JEN
Basic earnings EAR s 7 27.2 223 +22%
Diluted earnings BER RN 27.2 22.1 +23%
Total cash dividends per Share ShEReRE 9.5 11.5 17%
Net asset value per Share BREETE 84 84 -
Financial Ratios i dnds
Gross profit margin (%) BEER (%) 28.6 27.2 +5%
Net profit margin (%) B (%) 13.7 12.8 +7%
Current ratio BN & 1.3 1.6 -19%
Quick ratio B E 1.0 1.4 -29%
Net gearing ratio (%) FRITEELE (%) 18 15 +20%
Interest coverage MERELLE 73.6 106.2 31%
Dividend payout (%) i3S tt“z%%) 349 51.6 -32%
Revenue to net bank borrowings WABRFRTEEL X 134 13.4 -
Non-current assets to total equity (%) FEEERRREELE (%) 77.2 59.4 +30%

*  Restated
¢ BEEY
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Financial Highlights

=

DEFINITIONS

Basic earnings
per Share

Diluted earnings
per Share

Net asset value
per Share

Gross profit
margin (%)

Net profit
margin (%)

Current ratio

Quick ratio

Net gearing
ratio (%)

Interest coverage

Dividend
payout (%)

Revenue to net
bank borrowings

Non-current assets
to total equity (%)
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Profit attributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of Shares

Profit attributable to equity shareholders

Diluted weighted average number of Shares

Net assets

Number of Shares as at year end

Gross profit

x 100%
Revenue

Profit for the year

x 100%
Revenue

Current assets

Current liabilities

Current assets less inventories

Current liabilities

Bank borrowings and leased liabilities less
cash and hank deposits, restricted deposits
and pledged deposits

Total equity

Earnings before interest expenses, tax,
depreciation and amortisation

Interest expenses

Dividend per Share

x 100%
Earnings per Share

Revenue

Bank borrowings and leased liabilities less cash and

bank deposits, restricted deposits and
pledged deposits

Non-current assets

Total equity

BRESER

it

BREFRLET

iy

BREEFE

RIREN %)

FRIRALR (%)

RBLE

EPLE

BRITEE
L&)

B

MEREL

}\}E /EL‘,\ tt\z%_i (0/0)

WASEEST
BELER

FRPEER
BTN (%)

BERA ABERT

IEFEBRE

RERA ABERT

BEETARE

BEFE

FEEH

E7

A

R

WA

RBEE

RBAE

RYEERRS

RBAE

FITEEREEEER

Re RFTHFR

SRHERRERER

e

BRSSO
EREHRRER

MEXH

S

=yl

WA

FTEEREERERRER
RITE - SRBIFRR

Ll

FRYEE

e

x 100%

x 100%

x 100%




PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Karrie Group” or
the “Group”) principally engaged in:

- Metal and Plastic Business (“M&P”): providing
mechanical engineering solutions, manufacturing and
sales of metal and plastic parts, mainly including moulds
and the relevant plastic and metal parts products for
information and communication technology industry,
etc.;

- Electronic Manufacturing Services Business (“EMS”):
manufacturing and sales of magnetic tape data storage,
point-of-sale system, and other computer peripherals,
etc.; and

- Real Estate Business: urban renewal, residential real
estate project investment and development.

() Business Review
I.  Results

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to HK$549,102,000, which
increased by approximately 23% compared to the
restated profit attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company of HK$445,328,000. The Company
has completed an acquisition on 8 March 2022
of Dongguan City Jiaxuntong Computer Products
Limited* (R= M Bl BEMER B R QA
(“Jiaxuntong”) and Kar Info International Property
Limited as disclosed in note 2(b) of consolidated
financial statements in this annual report. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been therefore prepared using the merger basis of
accounting as if the current group structure had
been in existence throughout the periods presented.
Financial information relating to the year ended 31
March 2021 have therefore been restated. The effect
of merger accounting has the impact of including
the pre-acquisition profit of the Acquirees amounted
to HK$80,047,000 and HK$26,097,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2021 and 2022 respectively.
Without the acquisition, profit attributable to the
shareholder of the Company is estimated to be
increased by approximately 42% compared to
HK$365,281,000 in last year.

*  For identification purposes only

Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

FEERREER
BT —F=HA=+—H8It ' XQ7F
NMEMBAR (KB ZRNER A&
EDEERSE:
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BRMFERS

BEFEERIEBIEFRI)
BUEMHEM AR EIRRTRS - IR
RERGNEMEREAZERS
54

FHEXR : E¥E - FEEH
EERRENER -

(=) XHKEE

¥EFHE

RKArE=RAE AENLRT
£549,102,000/8 7 * &R E &
ez AXRalE=FE AEG
Y& A1 445,328,000 78 7T 1 h0 4
23%  c RZEZ=_F=AN
H:'AQXRz2EHB R A
TERWBREMRZMBER
EmARAR(IERE]) &
Kar Info International Property
Limited * SABRRNFRERE
B RERME20) - MAEE
I HmERFEAEHEET
EHIRE > MBI ZEEEE
BRI —EFE - At - B
MEE T - —F=A=+—
AHEFEzHBERKEE
Pl BRI ERERIE
TEE_T-_—FR-FT-_
FZRA=1+—HItFEZWE
A 7 5 Bl 580,047,000 7T
%.26,097,000/%8 7C ° fE 0 £
TWESEEZBERT - A2
BEREEM A EFTEREFZ
365,281,00078 7L 11#742% o

* (R
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Chairman’s Statement
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(a)

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the
revenue of the Group was HK$4,013,434,000,
which increased by approximately 16%
compared to the restated revenue of
HK$3,472,798,000. Profit attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company amounted
to HK$549,102,000, which increased by
approximately 23% compared to the restated
profit attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company of HK$445,328,000. The
increase in profit was mainly attributable
to the completion of delivery, with revenue
recognised, of certain units of Phases 4 and 5
of Castfast Villas (5% # % E£) under the Three
Old Renovation Plan of the Group in Fenggang
Town, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province.

The revenue of the industrial business for
the year ended 31 March 2022 increased by
approximately 10% to HK$3,075,013,000
when compared to HK$2,793,374,000 in
last year, which was mainly attributable
to the significant increase of revenue from
the EMS while the M&P remained stable.
The proportion of the segment revenue was
therefore changed. The segment profit of
industrial business rose by approximately
2% to HK$310,256,000 when compared
to HK$302,993,000 in last year. Despite
the pressure on the operating ability of the
Group imposed by uncertainties including the
persistent pandemic, the congestion of global
supply chains and logistics and the increase
in costs, the Group’s flexible countermeasures
effectively reduced the negative impact, and
the operating profit margins of both businesses
remained stable.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA
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The Real Estate Business recorded a revenue
of HK$938,421,000 for the year, representing
an increase of approximately 38% when
compared to HK$679,424,000 in last year.
Such increase was mainly attributable to the
successful completion of the delivery of the
units of the Phases 4 and 5 of Castfast Villas
with revenue recognised. The segment profit of
Real Estate Business surged by approximately
49% to HK$657,833,000 when compared
with HK$440,999,000 in last year. With the
increasing maturity of our Real Estate Business,
it is expected that its robust growth will bring
promising profits to the Group.

Industrial Business
Revenue for year 2021/22 increased by
approximately 10% when compared with last year,

which was primarily due to the followings:

(a)

The revenue of M&P for the year ended 31
March 2022 increased by approximately 1%
to HK$1,920,032,000 when compared with
the last year (for the year ended 31 March
2021: HK$1,895,368,000). M&P had a steady
performance this year.

the revenue of EMS for the year ended 31
March 2022 increased by approximately 29%
to HK$1,154,981,000 when compared with
the last year (for the year ended 31 March
2021: HK$898,006,000), mainly owing to the
growth in market demand for storage products.

Chairman’s Statement

(c)

EREHRE

EBWEXBAIE  AFE
8% 15 WA A 938,421,000
B BEFEZHRA
679,424,000 /& JC L & -
K A38% + WA EF
FEREBREFNER
FEATE B BAEETRR
AR - MEMESE
%25 Em N A FE
2 7 864 % 440,999,000
BT E » EF49%E
657,833,00078 JT ° &= b
EEEG R - Hog )
ERAAREBFES KA
EiAE o

TREBIHE

—_—

— T FERARE
FEFA10%  TER -

hEeBBREE—Z2 - —
FZA=+—HILEFEZ
WABREFEFT H1%
%1,920,032,0005% 7t ( &
BT —F=ZA=+—
HIFFE :1,895,368,000
BIL) c ASBBRAE
ERRTFE-

BEFRINEE_ZT——
FZA=+—HILEFEZ
WA EF EFT #29%
%1,154,981,0007% 7t ( &
2T F=ZA=+—
H 1lEFE : 898,006,000
BIL) c FEHMRMHY
TFREmT SIGANPTE o
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Chairman’s Statement
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(c)

The novel coronavirus epidemic (the
“Epidemic”) situation this year is still severe.
Especially in early 2022, the logistics and
supply chains were greatly disrupted. The
labour market was tight, and the wages
rate of skilled workers increased. Various
factors brought challenges to the Group’s
operating costs. The Group has been striving
to effectively manage production operations
in a fast and flexible manner. For example,
the Group set up closed-loop operation points
for cross-border drivers to enhance Epidemic
prevention and control, and successfully speed
up logistics operations. The Group actively
communicated with the local governments
to coordinate the pace of operation and
management, and enhanced utilisation of
resource. The Group timely adjusted its
material inventory level to reduce the impact
of material price fluctuations. At the same
time, the Group also maintained close with
customers to pass on part of the costs to
customers.

In order to optimise production operations,
reduce costs and increase efficiency, the
Group was committed to improving the level
of automation and made progress in the
application of assembly automation, including
improving the automated equipment for silk
printing and material handling, implement
online automated optical inspection, and
strengthening temperature control systems, etc.
The intelligent production line manufacturing
execution system was more integrated, thereby
reducing manpower and improving output
quality.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA
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Chairman’s Statement

The “Karrie Craftsmanship Tower ( % #| T (e)
[F K # )", to be built under the concept of
environmental protection, made good progress
in construction. At present, the main structure
of the building has been completed, and the
planning of exterior greening and interior
decoration are being carried out. After the
completion of the construction, the logistics
support departments will move into the office,
effectively freeing up more factory space and
production space to meet the production
requirements of customers and improve the
working environment of employees.

ERRE

NIRRIB R ZMNEF T
AR I ERE R -
Al HACTRIER
g MIEETTINE IR B4R
R RERRE - BT 1% -
BRESIR MK E AN
T BRELEZREZ
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The main structure of the production complex has been completed

MR EENENIBEED =K

Overseas, the factory in Thailand has been
renovated and officially opened. Employees
have started to work there, and moulds and
materials are being shipped there. Machine
installation, commissioning and trial
production have also begun. Applications for
relevant production certifications have begun
as well.
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The operation of the plant in Thailand is
a stepping stone for the Group’s “China
Plus One” strategy, which is expected
to diversify regional risks and increase
production flexibility in response to customer
requirements, while generating synergies. The
Group is actively pursuing diversified business
development with partners in Thailand
and seeking opportunities in the Regional
Comprehensive Economic Partnership
(“RCEP”) market.
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Thailand factory has been
officially launched

REMF B IEVRUR

Although the business expansion plan has
encountered obstacles and the factory audit
work has almost stopped as affected by the
Epidemic, the Group is still committed to
maintaining the cooperative relationships
with major customers, and actively expanding
new customers domestically and overseas,
striving to capture more markets opportunities.
Among which, the businesses with certain
new customers have made good progress,
and the conceptual designs of next-generation
products have begun. At the same time, the
Group seeks to further improve the production
efficiency of new products and reduce costs,
so as to enhance price competitiveness and
further unlock the potential of new products.
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IlI. Real Estate Business

(a)

The Real Estate Business matures gradually
and has continued to bring considerable
revenue to the Group. For the year ended 31
March 2022, a revenue of HK$938,421,000
was recorded, which included the successful
delivery of units of the project of Phase 3,
Phase 4 and Phase 5 of Castfast Villas, with
the major projects as follows:

e  For the residential project of Phase
3 of Castfast Villas, a revenue of
HK$85,417,000 was recorded during the
year. A total of 22 units were delivered
(with a total area of around 2,760 square
meters at an average selling price of
approximately RMB27,900 per square
meter) and revenue was recognised
during the year.

Chairman’s Statement
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Actual view of Phase 4 & 5 of Castfast Villas
ZEXEFMONAHRNESE
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The residential project of Phase 4 of
Castfast Villas under another Three Old
Renovation Plan, delivered 195 units
during the year and recorded a total
revenue of HK$641,584,000 (with a total
area of around 19,400 square meters at
an average selling price of approximately
RMB29,800 per square meter). As of
31 May 2022, the residential project of
Phase 4 of Castfast Villas, with a total
saleable floor area of approximately
25,600 square meters, pre-sold
approximately 54 units with a total of
approximately 5,400 square meters at an
average selling price of approximately
RMB30,000 per square meter, which are
expected to be delivered in the coming
years.

Besides, the residential project of Phase
5 of Castfast Villas under the Three Old
Renovation Plan, delivered 51 units
during the year and recorded a total
revenue of HK$211,420,000 (with a
total area of 5,900 square meters at an
average selling price of approximately
RMB32,300 per square meter).

Meanwhile, the progress of residential
development project, Castfast Mansion in
Boluo County, Huizhou is on schedule
with satisfactory progress. The project is
expected to be completed in 2022 with
a saleable floor area of approximately
30,000 square meters. The average
selling price of approximately RMB6,000
per square meter.
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(b) On 21 February 2022, the Group held a
special general meeting to approve the
resolution of the major and connected
transaction in relation to the acquisitions of
Kar Info International Property Limited and
Jiaxuntong at a consideration of US$100
and RMB38,000,000, respectively (the
“Acquisitions”). The Acquisitions were
completed on 8 March 2022.

Conclusion

During the year, the Epidemic continued to rage. The
global geopolitical situation intensified. The overall
market and economy were sluggish. The supply chain
disruptions caused by the external environment,
fluctuations in raw material prices, and the congestion of
global transportation and logistics all brought challenges
to the Group. The Group will continue to maintain a
prudent attitude and respond to various unforeseeable
changes in a flexible manner.
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The Group insisted on enhancing intelligent production,
with the goal of saving manpower and increasing the
production efficiency in a “precise, accurate, fast and
stable” manner, and strived to optimise the production
process. In addition, the Group actively promoted
streamline improvement and innovation competitions to
nurture the innovative mindset of the new generation,
and provided employees with resources to apply the
theories they learnt and their knowledge in practice. At
the same time, the Group facilitated the development
of intelligent production technology to create a win-
win situation. Human resources development was also
a main focus of the Group. It actively cultivated various
internal workers and technicians to meet the corporate
development needs, which eased the recruitment
pressure of various departments and allowed more
efficient exploration of personnel with great potentials,
thereby enhancing the corporate strength.

The Group always pays attention to the physical and
mental health of its employees. Under the continuous
anti-pandemic environment, we actively cared for
our employees to relieve their stress, and organised
recreational activities for employees from time to time.
We hoped that while implementing strict anti-pandemic
measures, we could encourage our colleagues, support
each other, and promote a positive, healthy and friendly
working environment.

In addition, the Board is pleased to announce that, on
31 March 2022, KRP Development Holdings Limited
(“KRP Development”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, submitted a listing application form (Form
A1) to the Stock Exchange to apply for the listing of, and
permission to deal in, the shares of KRP Development
on the Stock Exchange. The spin-off of the Real Estate
Business is still subject to the permission of the proposed
spin-off and listing from the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange. If the spin-off is materialised, the
industrial business and the Real Estate Business will have
a clearer positioning, resources will be allocated more
efficiently, the flexibility of financing will be improved,
and the potential value of the two businesses will be
effectively released.
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Dreams e Persistence

The original aspiration is the central core of the corporate
culture, and the corporate culture is the driving force
that provides an endless stream of energy to keep a
company going. With over 40 years of experience, Karrie
Group never forgets its original aspiration and focuses on
the development of industrial business. It continues to
invest in industrial development, builds more factories,
diversifies products, and enhances intelligent production.
Upholding the craftsmanship spirit, the Group strives for
excellence with an innovative mindset and is committed
to provide the client with “heartfelt dedication in all
details”, in a bid to create value for customers and create
a win-win situation. With the original aspiration of
“Nothing is impossible”, the Group aims to bring benefits
to stakeholders.

This original aspiration is deeply rooted in the corporate
culture and has been recognised by all employees.
It is practiced in the corporate vision, mission and
values, ethics, operating principles, enterprise spirit and
development goals. Corporate culture is not static. It must
be preserved and passed on, which helps attract new
generations to join and allows the Company to evolve
and develop. It is driving force essential for the Company
to forge ahead.

In fact, the business environment today is full of
uncertainties and it is an extremely complex and
interconnected system. In order for an enterprise to be
sustainable, in addition to its corporate cultural base, it
must have an innovative mindset for problem solving
and it cannot merely follow what the others do. Realising
a dream cannot be done in a single day. It requires
persistence. Hence, long-lasting endurance is crucial.
The original aspiration which is deeply rooted in the
corporate culture would become the foundation of the
dream and it would provide constant energy to pursuit
the dream.
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Upholding his original aspiration of the industry, the
founder of the Group, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai demonstrated
his perseverance and looked for the best solutions.
He pursued the industrial dream with the “undying
craftmanship spirit” and created epoch-making products
such as ladybug radio and plum blossom building
blocks. He also founded the Karrie Group which
became a listed company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. He would like to ask all
employees to uphold their original aspirations, pursue
their dreams, keep an innovative mindset, execute their
plans effectively, forge ahead against all challenges, and
achieve sustainable development to bring benefits to
stakeholders.

Dividend Policy

In the results announcement for the first quarter of year
2006/07, the Board announced the adoption of a new
dividend policy, which outlines the factors that should
be taken into account in determining the amount of
dividend for distribution, such as the profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company, cash flow
and investment budgets. After careful consideration
of the aforementioned factors, and for the purpose of
maintaining the track record of consecutive annual
payment of dividends since the listing, the Board has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK4.0
cents per share to all the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 2
September 2022.

Geographical Distribution

The Group has adopted a diversified approach in product
delivery and does not rely on one single market. Details
of the Group’s geographical distribution are set out in the
paragraph headed “Segment Reporting” in note 5 to this
annual report.
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(V) Prospects

(a)

In terms of Industrial Business: the Group will
continue to deepen the intelligent production
and promote the research in development of new
technologies and new processes. In addition, the
Group will strive to build up its human resources
and pass on the corporate culture of Karrie.

The Group actively seeks to diversify the
development of the industrial business. By adhering
to the original aspiration of the industry and
developing new concepts, it will further develop
products and strengthen the product mix. It will
also adapt to market changes and adjust its business
development plans in a timely manner while
exploring potential customers in order to increase
profit margins.

In terms of Real Estate Business: the Group is still
committed to participating in the development
of the Greater Bay Area and actively looking
for suitable projects. In April 2022, the Group
successfully bid for the land use right in Foshan
City, the PRC, with an area of approximately
34,450 square meters at a consideration of
RMB155,000,000. The land is located in Gaoming
District, Foshan City (near the planned location
for the Pearl River Delta International Airport).
As other large-scale transportation infrastructures
are expected to be built in this area, the Group
expects that the four-in-one transportation network

I//

consisting of “water, land, air and rail” will be
built in the area which would stimulate the rapid
development of the region. Benefiting from this
plan, the land has certain development potential.
The Group plans to develop residential properties
on the land to implement the Group’s strategies and

plans for the development of the Greater Bay Area.
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(c) Although the operation of the Company will
still face challenges in the coming year, with the
introduction of more measures for stable growth in
Mainland China, it is expected that the smooth flow
of the logistics and supply chains can be ensured
and the manufacturing industry shall gradually
return to normal. In addition, the depreciation of
the RMB exchange rate has also helped to relieve
operating pressure. The Company expects to make
steady progress in the unpredictable external
environment and maintain stable development
through the strategy of
diversification of products, customer expansion,

“internal cost control,
and good communication for the future”.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Borrowings

With the commencement of Real Estate Business, net interest-
bearing borrowings® as at 31 March 2022 were approximately
HK$297,712,000 and the net interest-bearing borrowings
ratio (being the proportion of total net interest-bearing
borrowings over total equity) was 18% (as at 31 March 2021
(restated): net interest-bearing borrowings were approximately
HK$258,363,000 and net interest-bearing borrowings ratio
was 15%).

As at 31 March 2022, certain banking facilities and borrowings
were secured by pledged deposits, equity interests of certain
group companies, and/or guaranteed by the Group (As at 31
March 2021: property under development, equity interests of
certain group companies, and/or guaranteed by the Group).
The financial position of the Group remains healthy.

Net interest-bearing borrowings represents bank borrowings and
lease liabilities less cash and bank deposits, restricted deposits and
pledged deposits.
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Non-current Assets to Shareholders’ Fund Ratio maintaining
at below 1

The non-current assets to total equity ratio as at 31 March
2022 maintained at the healthy level of 77% (as at 31 March
2021 (restated): 59%), which represents the Group’s non-
current assets, such as plant and machineries are using its
stable total equity as a support.

Capital Expenditure (“CAPEX”)

The initial estimate of the CAPEX Budget for the financial year
2022/23 is approximately HK$286,000,000. The CAPEX was
mainly used for construction of factory, acquiring machinery
and equipment and computer system.

Resources Available

Currently, the total interest-bearing bank borrowings are
approximately HK$1,201,184,000. The Group is confident
that with the cash in hand and bank deposits (including
pledged deposits and restricted deposits) of approximately
HK$924,048,000 and the unutilised banking facilities of
approximately HK$520,807,000, it is able to meet its current
operational and capital expenditure requirements and to make
strategic investments when opportunities arise.

Exchange Rate Exposure

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are
denominated in HKD, USD and RMB. Foreign currency risk
arises from commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations that are
denominated in a currency other than the Group’s functional
currency, which in turn exerts pressure on the Group’s
production cost. To mitigate the impact of exchange rate
fluctuation of RMB on its business, the Group will actively
communicate with its customers in order to adjust the selling
prices of its products and may use foreign exchange forward
contracts to hedge against foreign currency risk (if and when
necessary).
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group has provided guarantees to banks to secure the
mortgage arrangements of certain property buyers. As at
31 March 2022, the outstanding guarantees to the banks
amounted to HK$855,859,000 which will be released upon
the completion of the transfer procedures with the property
buyers in respect of the legal title of the properties.

The directors do not consider the Group will sustain a loss
under these guarantees as the bank has the rights to sell the
property and recovers the outstanding loan balance from the
sale proceeds if the property buyers have default payment.
The Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of these guarantees as its fair value is considered to be
insignificant.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had approximately 3,700 employees on average
(an average of 3,350 employees in the corresponding period
last year) during the year. The increment of manpower is to
meet the demand of orders. With a good reputation in the
local community, the Group has rarely encountered major
difficulties in recruiting employees at the same time.

Employee remuneration packages are determined in
accordance with prevailing market standards and the
employee’s performance and experience. The Group will also
grant bonuses to employees with outstanding performance
based on its own audited business performance and the
appraisal and reward system. Other employee benefits include
medical insurance and mandatory provident fund.

In addition, to cope with domestic development in Mainland
and the actual need for talent-retaining, the Group establishes
a “Cooperative Home” to encourage and finance potential
elites settled down locally in buying a flat as a means to retain
talents who may otherwise be lost in the competitive labour
market.
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Performance-based Incentives

The Group adopted performance based bonus system
and objective performance assessment. Employees with
outstanding performance will now receive more bonus than
before the new system was implemented.

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK4.0 cents per share (2020/21 final dividend: HK7.0 cents
per share), to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 2 September 2022.
Together with the interim dividend of HK4.5 cents per share
(2020/21 interim dividend: HK4.0 cents per share) and a
special dividend of HK1.0 cent per share (2020/21 special
dividend: HKO.5 cents per share), total dividend paid/payable
for this year amounted to HK9.5 cents per share (2020/21:
HK11.5 cents per share). The final dividend will be subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the
Company to be held on 26 August 2022.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee currently
made up of one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors whose duties include resolving
issues in relation to audit such as reviewing and supervising
the Company’s financial reporting process and internal
control systems. The audit committee and the management
have reviewed the accounting principles and major policies
adopted by the Group and have discussed the auditing,
internal control and financial reporting in the current year with
the external auditors. The audit committee has reviewed the
consolidated annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2022.

APPRECIATION

| would like to thank our customers, suppliers, bankers,
shareholders and others who have extended their invaluable
support to the Group, and my fellow Directors, managers and
all staff for their considerable contributions to the Group.
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APPENDIX 1

All dividend paid shown below is in HK cents per Share
THERRAR D RE Z IR B2 ABIIEE

Bt —

Dividend and Dividend Policy:

BB N IR BBUR :
An unbroken 26 years’ record of dividend payment

= R E AR SR
The Group’s policy to distribute 30% or more of its profits attributable to shareholders as dividend

R BB E BB ABBIR B G E M 30% 3 A £ RIEIR S

Interim Final  Special
Interim Final ~ Subtotal  Special  Special  Subtotal Total Dividend Payout Ratio
i P 155l
i P Mt BEIRE  BARE  RENG i BRE Tt
(excluding)* (Including)?
(TREEN)* (BEEA)
1996/97 Nil & 5.40 5.40 Nil & Nil & Nil & 5.40 24% N/A TNE
1997/98 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 1.00 13% N/A TNEF
1998/99 2.00 2.00 4.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 4,00 58% N/A TNEF
1999/00 2.20 220 440 Nil & Nil & Nil & 440 77% N/A TN
2000/01 1.10 3.80 490 Nil & 6.20 6.20 11.10 69% 156%
2001/02 5.00 5.90 10.90 5.00 14.10 19.10 30.00 50% 138%
2002/03 8.00 11.00 19.00 Nil & 5.00 5.00 24.00 60% 75%
2003/04 8.00 12.00 20.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 20.00 87% N/A RN
2004/05 8.50 12.50 21.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 21.00 58% N/A RN
2005/06 9.00 13.00 22.00 Nil & 3.00 3.00 25.00 48% 55%
2006/07 8.50 3.00 11.50 Nil & Nil & Nil & 11.50 38% N/A RN
2007/08 0.75 Nil & 0.75 Nil & Nil & Nil & 0.75 27% N/A N
2008/09 Nil & 1.50 1.50 Nil & Nil & Nil & 1.50 39% N/A N
2009/10 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 1.00 45% N/A RN
2010/11 Nil & 1.10 1.10 Nil & Nil & Nil & 1.10 32% N/A B
2011/12 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 1.00 38% N/A TN
2012/13 Nil & 1.20 1.20 Nil & Nil £ Nil & 1.20 61% N/A NEf
2013/14 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 1.00 58% N/A TNE
2014/15 0.50 1.80 230 Nil & 1.00 1.00 3.30 61% 87%
2015/16 0.75 275 3.50 Nil & Nil & Nil & 3.50 59% N/A TNE R
2016/17 1.30 420 5.50 Nil & 1.00 1.00 6.50 65% 77%
2017/18 1.60 475 6.35 2.55 Nil & 255 8.90 69% 97%
2018/19 3.00 5.00 8.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 8.00 72% N/A RN
201920 4.00 5.00 9.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 9.00 71% N/A RN
202021 400 7.00 11.00 0.50 Nil & 0.50 11.50 49% 52%
2021/22 450 4.00 8.50 1.00 Nil & 1.00 9.50 31% 35%
Remarks: * Excluding special dividend # Including special dividend
(= * NE IR RIS ‘IR RIS

" Restated
~BEY
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APPENDIX 2 Fff e —

Inventory & Debtor Turnover

FEREYREEHY

No. of days

—@— Inventory Turnover 17 & {B# HJ

EES & Debtor Turnover &1 iR iE 45 H7

70

60

50

40

30 T T T T T T
16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21% 21/22

(No. of days) (B %) 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21% 21/22
Inventory Turnover 59 56 55 81 56 99
FEIAEH
Debtor Turnover 43 50 38 38 69 55
& W B R e B
Inventory turnover = (Base on year end inventory value/Cost of revenue) x 365 days
FEBEHP=(AFEEFEEBRAKE)x365H
Debtor turnover = (Base on year end Trade and bills receivable/Revenue) x 365 days
FEUBRAE B=(AF KRB 5 RRBRKEEF, WA )x365H
‘ Restated
o BED
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APPENDIX 3 Mg =

Gross Profit Margin & Net Profit Margin
BEERNRAFR

—p—  Gross Profit Margin J2BXEF] (%)
(%) @ Net Profit Margin M2EAEF] (%)

T T T
16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21¢ 21/22

16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21% 21/22
(%)
Gross Profit Margin 13.6 14.5 16.6 18.2 27.2 28.6
BEREF
Net Profit Margin 7.0 7.5 8.4 8.6 12.8 13.7
BERATF
HK$(million)
(B Z/ET)
Revenue 2,700 2,920 2,651 2,902 3,473 4,013
WA
Profit for the year 168 182 221 250 445 549
FEER
: Restated
: 2E7
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Industrial
Businesses
CAPEX
TEEBEE
HK$'000
FET

300,000
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arp:

Industrial Businesses CAPEX
TEEKEECEERE

17/18 18/19

(HK$'000) (F#&T) 17/18 18/19

19/20 20/21

19/20 20/21

ERBE

Operating
profit for
Industrial
Businesses
TEEY
ety
HK$'000
T
300,000
~ 250,000
~° 200,000
~~ 150,000
~ 100,000

~* 50,000

21722

22/23*

21/22 22/23*

Industrial 60,660 61,415
Businesses CAPEX
THEEBETE

BERE

—
Operating Profit
for Industrial
Businesses
TEEK

AT

260,432 208,065

113,822 79,418

242,947 302,993

220,318 286,000

Not
applicable
TEM

310,256

Note: P 3T
* Budget
BE

*
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERRES

The Group are committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

For the years ended 31 March 2022 (the “Year”) the Group has
applied the principles of the recently promulgated Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
complied with the code provision (the “Code Provisions”) of
the CG Code; save for the deviation from Code Provisions
B.2.2 and C.2.1 of the CG Code. This report describes our
Group'’s corporate governance practices and explains the said
deviations from the CG Code.

Code Provision B.2.2 of CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, the number
nearest to one-third but not greater than one-third shall retire
from office provided that notwithstanding anything in the
Company’s Bye-laws, the Chairman of the Directors and/
or the Managing Director of the Company shall not, whilst
holding such office, be subject to retirement by rotation or be
taken into account in determining the number of Directors
to retire in each year. Furthermore, any Director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board should
hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting and would then be eligible for re-election. The
Chairman and/or the Managing Director of the Group will
consider to voluntarily retire at the annual general meeting
at least once every three years in line with Code Provision
B.2.2 of the CG Code. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure good corporate
governance of the Company.

AREZEARTIR(TRER DR LR
FHEEREBEEMERMN - AEE—mAGEE
SEITREEZERER -

REBEZE-__F=A=+—HLFE
(IFEEHRN - AEBECEBZHEM
WHREBHAR AR GESLT
RAN EWRA DWW+ Hz o EERS
RSTRN([REERTR DATREZFRAR
BF AT A ST RGN BIRI ) (B TR
BEEEIRTRIZ P RIEXB.2.2 & C.2.1
ON)  AEEFMASEE 2 EERE
Bl - WRIESEE AT RBERRIR
BEEEATRINTTA °

EEARTUZTARXB22RER A
S (BREAEEIHZER ) RELE=
FmERE—IR

BEARE A EARRE—[EIRE
BFRgL ZHo2—2ERBEAZE
E(FMMEABI = =2 F8 - Bl&
BRATER =02 — 2% B )EHRER
T ERRREBSEER RESHEL
BNAERERERERTINEEETFR
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HERMEZTIZESRAESTSIL Y
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fE R A B IR EAT - AT AEEESF
K/ SERBEEEE VB =FEEAMR
R RMAFEEEERTRZTFANEX
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Moreover, Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates
that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The Company does not segregate the roles of its Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (“Mr. Ho")
currently holds both positions.

Being the founder of the Group, Mr. Ho has substantial
experience in the manufacturing industry, as well as in the
property development and cultural related business. At the
same time, Mr. Ho has the appropriate management skills
and business acumen that are the pre-requisites for assuming
the role of the Chief Executive Officer. The Board believes
that vesting the roles of both the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer in the same person would provide the
Group with strong and consistent leadership and allow the
Group to be more effective and efficient in developing long-
term business strategies and executing business plans. Hence,
the Board considers that there is no need to segregate the roles
of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer and both
roles should continue to be performed by Mr. Ho. The Board
believes that the balance of power and authority is adequately
ensured by the operation of the Board which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals with a sufficient
number thereof independent non-executive Directors.

The Company will continue to review its practices from time
to time to achieve high standard of corporate governance.

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1. The Board of Directors

1.1 As at 31 March 2022, the Board consisted of
nine Directors, comprising Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Ms.
Chan Ming Mui, Silvia, Mr. Zhao Kai and Mr.
Chan Raymond as executive Directors; Mr.
Ho Cheuk Ming (Deputy Chairman) and Mr.
Ho Kai Man as a non-executive Directors and
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing, Mr. Yam Chung Shing
and Dr. Lau Kin Wah as the independent
non-executive Directors. The Board has the
collective responsibility for the leadership
and promotion of the success of the Group’s
business by directing and supervising the

Group’s affairs.
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1.2

1.3

The Board is committed to the Group’s
objectives of enhancing the Shareholders’
value and provision of superior products and
services. The Board is collectively responsible
for formulating the overall objective and
strategy of the Group; monitors and evaluates
its operating and financial performance
and reviews the standard of corporate
governance of the Group. It also makes
decisions on matters such as approving the
annual results, interim and quarterly results,
connected transactions, appointment and
re-appointment of Directors, declaring
dividends and adopting accounting policies.
The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing business
strategies and management of the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to the
management.

The Board conducts regular scheduled
meetings on a quarterly basis. Ad-hoc
meetings are convened when circumstances
require.

The Board had met six times for the Year
and considered, reviewed and approved the
Group’s annual results for the year ended 31
March 2021, quarterly and interim results of
the Group for the Year.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA
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The attendance records of Board meetings and

UTEAFEEZEEH

general meetings held during the Year are set NMARR AR &8 E 40 8%
out below:
Attendance of individual
Directors at Board meetings
and general meetings
during the Year
FEEFEEERRRASER
BRI ESHHER
No. of board No. of general
meetings meetings
attended/held attended/held
Exg RERXE
HERY, HERY,
SRR SRR
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai {Alte s A 6/6 2/2
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia PR IR/ NE 6/6 2/2
Mr. Zhao Kai et 6/6 2/2
Mr. Chan Raymond BRIZL S & 6/6 2/2
Non-executive Directors HHITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming fa] 2B S A 6/6 2/2
Mr. Ho Kai Man AR A 6/6 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BV HHTEE
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing Papi=Y Wit 6/6 2/2
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EEHSLE 6/6 2/2
Dr. Lau Kin Wah BlfpEmt 6/6 2/2
A list of Directors and their role and function EERENEAENBE

was posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

TIBR AN B B Bt 32 P
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1.4 To maximize the effectiveness of the Board

and to encourage active participation and
contribution from Board members, the
Board has established an audit committee, a
nomination committee and a remuneration
committee. Detailed descriptions of each of
these committees are set out below. All of
these committees adopt, as far as practicable,
the principles, procedures and arrangements
of the Board in relation to the scheduling and
proceeding of meetings, notice of meetings
and inclusion of agenda items, records and
availability of minutes.

The Board has devised its specific written
terms of reference setting out its duties,
responsibilities, powers and functions which
include the following:

e developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

e reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management;

e reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

e developing reviewing and monitoring the
code of conduct applicable to employees
and Directors; and

e reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report in its
Annual Report;

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA
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2.  Board Composition

2.1

2.2

As at 31 March 2022, the Board has nine
Directors which comprise four executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors.
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, a non-executive Director,
is the younger brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
Mr. Ho Kai Man, a non-executive Director, is
the nephew of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and the son of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, a non-
executive Director and deputy chairman of the
Company.

The attributes, skills and expertise among the
existing Directors are considered appropriate
so as to effectively lead, supervise and manage
the Group, taking into account the scope
and nature of the operations. The Directors
have a mix of core competencies in areas
such as accounting and finance, business
and management, corporate governance,
production and quality control techniques,
supply chain management, industry
knowledge and marketing strategies. Details of
the experience and qualifications of Directors
and Senior Management are set out in the
section headed “Senior Management Profile”
in this annual report.
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2. EEEMAMR
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Board Diversity

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy,
which sets out the purpose and principles regarding
board diversity for the purpose of achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives of balanced diversity
at the Board as for as practicable. Directors’
appointment will be based on merit and candidates
will be considered against measurable objectives,
taking into account the Company’s business and
development.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity criteria, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in
addition to educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board.

During the Year, the Board reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board and was of
the opinion that the Board is well balanced and
diversified, and with the appropriate structure, size
and necessary skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives required for the business of
the Group. The Board also reviewed and evaluated
the board diversity policy.

On 25 March 2019, the Board adopted a separate
Nomination Policy, which provides the key selection
criteria and principles of the Board in making
decisions in the appointment and reappointment
of directors and succession planning of directors,
to emphasise our commitment on transparent
nomination process.

The Board comprises of nine members including
one female Director. In recognition of the
importance of gender diversity, the Company has
taken and will continue to take steps to promote
gender diversity in the Board so as to ensure
appropriate gender diversity is achieved.
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4. Appointment, Re-election and Removal of 4. EENEE EERER
Directors
4.1 At each annual general meeting of the 41 REERRAFA (TR

RBAFREDLE =02
—EFABFEREI-BF

Company (“AGM”), one-third of the Directors
are required to retire from office by rotation.

The Directors, since his last election or JRFEFEAKEZE L
appointment who has been the longest in RIEEREEARER
office shall retire and be eligible for re-election ERREWTEERIIREE

at the AGM. Pursuant to the bye-laws of the FREGLEEET - 1RIE

Company, the Chairman and/or the Managing RNARARA] - EEEEE
Director of the Group shall not, when holding R,/ SHEEREIEZH
such office, be subject to retirement by rotation PR R SN EE E AR
or be taken into account in determining the BFERE FAWRERIEZ

ESANEE - BA k-
AW RESTREERT

number of Directors to retire in each year.
To comply with Code Provision B.2.2 of the

4.2

CG Code, the Chairman and/or the Managing
Director of the Group will voluntarily retire at
the AGM at least once every three years.

As at 31 March 2022, non-executive Directors
(except Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming and Mr. Ho Kai
Man) including the independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a fixed term not
exceeding three years and all non-executive
Directors are subject to the requirements

B2 <FRAMEXB.2.2 - %l

R AT ARER

—FBaRRE-

42 R-TE-_—F=A=4+—
H ' EHITES ({7 £
9 A R AR RS S A BR A1)
BRI IERITE R AR

EEMERE

METEE=

F o AFNITESRLAR

of retirement by rotation and re-election by REBERRE 2 AFARR
Shareholders at the AGM in accordance with RERBFRE LW RE

the Company’s Bye-laws.

WEEBE
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4.3 The names and biographical details of the
Directors who will offer themselves for
election or re-election at the forthcoming AGM
are set out in the circular to Shareholders to
assist Shareholders in making an informed
decision on their elections.

Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance
coverage on directors” and officers’ liabilities arising
from the group’s business. The Company reviews
the extent of insurance coverage on an annual
basis.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
Every newly appointed Director will be given
an induction. As part of the ongoing process
of directors’ training, the Company Secretary
continuously updates all directors on latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements. All Directors
are encouraged to attend external forum or training
courses on relevant topics which may count
towards continuous professional development
training.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA
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For the Year, all Directors have participated in
appropriate continuous professional development
activities either by attending training courses,
seminars, conferences and forums or by reading
materials relevant to the Group’s business and
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. Each of them
has provided a record of training they received
for the Year to the Company. A directors’ training
course was held on 31 March 2022 concerning
regulation of listed companies and directors and
senior management by the Stock Exchange and
the Securities and Futures Commission and related
cases. The training each Director received for the

TEERRES

AEE  2REFVEBLE
BAIRIE - IS - FFELH
BYMEARBERBREZR
RENBAEMEREEN 2 20
RECEEEREIED -
AEE BUEFRHTA
NAEIFER 2 B HERN —F
T =ZA=+—HBTT—
BEEEFIRE - ABRERE
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Year is summarised as below:

Attending
training
courses,

seminars,

Reading conferences
materials and forums
HEE IR

ESE—

FEHREER 2ENRE

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai AR I8 A& v v
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia Rk NE v v
Mr. Zhao Kai et v %
Mr. Chan Raymond RESCE A v v
Non-executive Directors FEITEE

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming 2L v v
Mr. Ho Kai Man AR e v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BV H#EHTEE

Mr. Fong Hoi Shing Wabi=Y bt v v
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EEBLE v v
Dr. Lau Kin Wah Bl g+ v v
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Corporate Governance and Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

The Chairman should be responsible for ensuring
that directors receive adequate, clear, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner.

The Chairman should:

e ensure that the board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by it in a
timely manner;

e ensure that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established;

e encourage Directors with different views to
voice their concerns, allow sufficient time for
discussion of issues and ensure that board
decisions fairly reflect board consensus;

e ensure that appropriate steps are taken
to provide effective communication with
Shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the board as a whole; and

e promote a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating the effective contribution of non-
executive directors in particular and ensuring
constructive relations between executive and
non-executive Directors.

The Chief Executive Officer should be responsible
for managing the Group’s business including the
implementation of strategy and initiatives with
the support of executive Directors and senior
management and within those authorities delegated
by the Board.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors and one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the number of independent non-executive
Directors of the Company represents no less than
one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its
independent non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and the Company considers that
all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

Any re-election of an independent non-executive
director who has served the board for more than
nine years, his further appointment should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
the Shareholders.

BOARD COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee (“RC”)

1.1 The RC meets at least once a year. It is chaired
by Mr. Yam Chung Shing and comprises two
other members, namely Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming
and Dr. Lau Kin Wah. All RC members, with
the exception of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (non-
executive Director), are independent non-
executive Directors. The quorum necessary for
the transaction of business by the RC is two.
The terms of reference of RC shall be updated
from time to time to comply with the new
requirements set out in the CG Code and were
posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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1.2

The principal responsibilities of RC are:

e to formulate remuneration policy
of the Group, review and make
recommendations to the Board in respect

of the remuneration policy;

e to consider salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment

conditions elsewhere in the Group;

e to conform to any requirement, direction,
and regulation that may from time to time
be prescribed by the Board or contained
in the constitution of the Company or
imposed by the Listing Rules or any

applicable law; and

. to determine the remuneration and

incentive scheme of the executive
Directors and the senior management.

1.3 The RC met once during the Year and reviewed
its terms of reference, the remuneration policy
of the Group and the remuneration packages
of Directors and senior management staff. It

also assessed the performance of the Directors
and evaluated the remuneration policy. The
attendance record of the meeting of RC during

the Year is set out below:

1.2

1.3

o FIEAKEHMEK
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No. of

meetings

attended/held

HERE

BRI

Mr. Yam Chung Shing (Chairman of RC) FEB L (FHHNELE S F/E) 1/1
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming Al L ERSE A4 1/1
Dr. Lau Kin Wah BlfEEFH L+ 1/1
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
The particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to
be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing
Rules are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code,
the remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the Year is set out below:
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Number of

persons

Remuneration bands (HK$) FENAE B (B N -
1 to 1,000,000 1251,000,000 1
1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,001 %2,000,000 4

Audit Committee (“AC”)

2.1 The AC’s membership, with the exception of
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (non-executive Director),
comprised the independent non-executive
Directors as at 31 March 2022:

Mr. Fong Hoi Shing

(Chairman of AC)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming
Mr. Yam Chung Shing
Dr. Lau Kin Wah

The Board is of the opinion that members
of the AC have sufficient accounting and
financial management expertise or experience
to discharge their duties.
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2.2 The operations of the AC are regulated by its
terms of reference. The terms of reference have
been updated in April 2016 to comply with
the new requirements set out in the Revised
Code. The updated terms of reference of the
Audit Committee were posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
main duties of the AC include:

e to review and supervise the Group’s
financial reporting process including the
review of quarterly, interim and annual
results of the Group;

e to review the external auditors’
appointment, re-appointment,
remuneration and any matters relating to
resignation or termination;

e to review and monitor the external
auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with applicable standards.

e to examine the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control which involves
regular review in various corporate
structures and business process;

e to realize corporate objective and strategy
by taking into account the potential risk
and the nature of its urgency in order to
ensure the effectiveness of the Group’s
business operations. The scope of such
reviews includes finance, operations,
regulatory compliance, internal control
systems and risk management; and

e to discuss the risk management
and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management
has performed its duties to have effective
systems.
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2.3 The AC met two times during the Year and

reviewed the interim results of the Group
for the six months ended 30 September
2021 and the annual results of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2021. The AC
had also reviewed the Group’s financial
reporting system, internal control system,
risk management system and associated
procedures to ensure their adequacy and
effectiveness. The Company Secretary of the
Company keeps all minutes of the AC. The
attendance record of the meeting of AC during
the Year is set out below:

2.3

TEERRESE
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No. of

meetings

attended/held

HERE

R

Mr. Fong Hoi Shing (Chairman of RC)  H BB EE(FEZESF/E) 2/2

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming Al 2 ERSE A4 2/2

Mr. Yam Chung Shing EEH L 2/2

Dr. Lau Kin Wah Bl L 2/2

3. Nomination Committee 3. REZEES®
3.1 The nomination committee was established 31 REZEEN_-_ZT_

in January 2022, which comprises two — AKX - KEBREREE
independent non-executive Directors namely HEERBIREELTRE

Mr. Yam Chung Shing and Dr. Lau Kin Wah
and one non-executive Director Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming. Mr. Yam Chung Shing, the independent
non-executive director was appointed as the
chairman of nomination committee.
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3.2 The duties of the nomination committee are as
follows:

To review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

To identify, and assess the suitability and
qualification of, candidates to become
Board members and select or make
recommendation to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

To assess the independence of INEDs;
and

To make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive of the
Company.

3.3 The Board has adopted the nomination policy,
which set out the selection criteria in assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate as
Director. Such criteria include but not limit to:

Reputation for integrity;

Accomplishment, experience and
reputation in the relevant industries/
sectors;
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e Commitment in respect of sufficient time,
interest and attention to the Company’s
business;

e Diversity in all aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural/
educational and professional background,
skills, knowledge and experience;

e The ability to assist and support
management and make significant
contributions to the Company’s success;

e Compliance with the criteria of
independence as prescribed under Rule
3.10A and 3.13 of the Listing Rules for
the appointment of an independent non-
executive director; and

e Any other relevant factors as may be
determined by the Board from time to
time.

The nomination procedures are as follows:

e The Chairman of the board shall
nominate suitable candidates to the
Board and therefore shall convene a
meeting, and invite Board members, for
consideration by the Board. The Board
members may also nominate candidates
for the Board’s consideration.

e In the context of appointment of any
candidate to the Board, the Board shall
undertake adequate due diligence in
respect of such individual and make
approval.
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e In the context of re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board, the
Board shall consider for the candidates to
stand for re-election at a general meeting.

e Please refer to the “Procedures for
a Shareholder to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director”, which is
available on the Company’s website, for
procedures for Shareholders’ nomination
of any proposed candidate for election as
a director.

e The Board shall have the final decision
on all matters relating to candidates to
stand for election at a general meeting.

3.5 The nomination committee will review the
board diversity policy of the Company, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness and
discuss may revisions that may be required
and recommended any such revisions to the
Board for consideration and approval.

3.6 The nomination committee meets at least
once a year. The quorum necessary for the
transaction of business by the nomination
committee is two. During the Year, no
nomination committee was held due to new
establishment.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

1.1

1.2

The Company has adopted a Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Group (the
“Company’s Model Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, they
have confirmed that they had complied with the
required standards set out in both the Company’s
Model Code and the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2022.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

1.

Financial Reporting

1.1 The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
preparing the Group’s accounts which gives
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and of the Group on a going
concern basis, with supporting assumption
or qualification as necessary. In preparing
the accounts for the Year, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

1.2 The management provides explanation and
information to the Board as to enable the
Board to make informed assessments of the
financial and other information put before the
Board for approval.
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1.3 The Board endeavours to ensure the making
of balanced, clear and understandable
assessments of the Group’s position and
prospects and extending the coverage
of such information to include annual,
interim and quarterly reports, price-sensitive
announcements and financial disclosures as
required under the Listing Rules, reports to
regulators as well as any information that is
required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system
of internal controls and is committed to managing
business risks and maintaining sound and
effective internal control systems to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

During the Year, the Internal Audit Department
under the supervision of the Board and the Audit
Committee, has reviewed and reported on the
adequacy of effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, covering
financial, operational, compliance and risk
management control functions annually. Based
on the results of the review, the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are still
effective and adequate.

The Board adopted the risk management policy
and three-year internal risk management audit plan,
including structure and system of risk management
of the Group. Internal Audit Department together
with the Audit Committee will review the adequacy
of the effectiveness of the risk management at least
once a year.
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The Board’s annual review had considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of no
material misstatement or loss and to manage instead
of eliminating risks of failure in operational systems
and achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Internal Audit Department performs regular
audit reviews and report of the risk and key controls
of the Group to the Board and the Audit Committee.
The responsible Department Heads will be notified
of the control deficiencies noted for rectification.
For the Year, the Internal Audit Department
mainly conducted operational management audit
over process of manufacturing, procurement
management, logistics management, import and
export customs activities, consumable material
management as well as project tendering and
bidding, budgeting, on-site certification, testing and
acceptance materials and equipments in real estate
business etc and other items with higher risk index.
The audit results have been presented to the senior
management, the Audit Committee and the Board.
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For the purpose of handling and disseminating
inside information pursuant to Rules 13.09 and
13.10 of the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group has taken
various procedures and measures, including
arousing the awareness to preserve confidentiality
of inside information within the Group, signing of
confidentiality agreement, sending blackout period
and securities dealing restrictions notifications to
the Directors and relevant employees regularly,
disseminating information to specified persons on a
need-to-know basis and observing the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission in June 2012
stringently.

Risk Management

I.  Risk Management System
The Company established an enterprise
risk management system for ensuring the
appropriate control and governance on the
principal risks that are exposed to the Group,
which includes:

e specifying the concept of risk management,
and determining the scope of risk
management.

e specifying the risk reporting process and
establishing risk governance framework
to identify and assess the possible impact
on the Group.

e establishing risk governance control
points for establishing relevant counter-
measures against the main control
matters involving risks.
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e establishing monitoring plan in terms
of priority, conducting monitoring and
review twice a year.

e in face of Epidemic, the Group quickly
activated the emergency response
mechanism for the Epidemic, fully
utilized epidemic prevention resource
resources, worked not the Epidemic
emergency work plan, set up the
Epidemic prevention working group
and issued a series of administrative
measures including the “Administrative
Requirements on Epidemic Prevention
Discipline”. The Group adheres to
properly manage both prevention and
control of the Epidemic and regularly
operation and production.

Risk Management Framework

The Board is playing the role as an overseer,
and the Audit Committee is responsible for
risk governance, report the effectiveness of
the risk system of the Group to the Board
and the actual risk executor is the person in
charge of each department. The Board assigns
the representative of Executive Committee
the responsibility of being in charge of
implementing the risk measures. The internal
audit department of the Group will conduct
an independent annual review on the risk
management system of the Group according
to the audit plan on risk management, and
submit the report to the Board.

Risk Identification

The Group identifies risk through a mixture of
top-down and bottom-up approaches, thereby
conducting analysis and appraisal on risk, and
identifying the source, type and index of risk.
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For top-down approach, the representatives of
Executive Committee and Risk Management
Department have to conduct risk identification
once every two years through questionnaires.

For bottom-up approach, the person-in-charge
of the risk will collect the risks from each
department, complete the risk register under
the assistance of risk executor, and submit
to risk management department or report to
respective management personnel.

Risk Assessment

The risk is classified into two levels, namely
intrinsic risk and residual risk. The risk
assessment calculates the risk index on
these two levels according to the established
methods in respect of the possible impact of
each risk on the Group. It controls the sum
of all risk indices on residual risk within the
risk limit pre-set by the Group through taking
control action and mitigation measures.

Risk Handling

The sum of risk indices shall at no time exceed
the cap of risk preference of the Group. The
control measures shall be taken to conduct
risk governance on any risk with high risk
index in a timely manner. The governance
aims at reducing the possibility of occurrence
or mitigating the impact of risk (and may not
be fully eliminated). Each of the proposed
risk management/counter-measure is assigned
to a person in charge with an estimated date
of completion, so as to enable the person-
in-charge of risk to monitor the process of
management easier to ensure risk counter-
measures have come into force.
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Auditors’ remuneration

During the Year, the fees paid to KPMG, the
Group’s external auditor HK$6,500,000 for audit
services of the Group and for non-audit related
services approximately HK$1,353,000, representing
mainly taxation services and other non-audit service
fees.

E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

1.

The Company strives to convey to the Shareholders
pertinent information in a clear, detailed, timely
manner and on a regular basis and to take into
consideration their views and inputs, and to address
the Shareholders” concerned. Their views are
communicated to the Board comprehensively.

The Company adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy and will review it on
a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. The
purpose of this policy is to ensure the Shareholders
are provided with prompt and equal access to
information about the Company (including but not
limited to its financial performance, corporate goals
and strategies, significant developments, corporate
governance and risk exposure), in order to enable
the Shareholders to assess the Company’s overall
performance, exercise their rights in an informed
manner and engage actively with the Company.

The Company communicates with the Shareholders
through the publication of annual reports, interim
reports, circulars, announcements (including results
announcements) and releases. All communications
to Shareholders are also available on the Company’s
website at www.karrie.com.

We had provided sufficient notice for Shareholders
at all general meetings. The AGM provides a useful
platform for Shareholders to exchange views with
the Board. The Chairman of the Board and the
Board members will make an effort to attend to
answer Shareholders’ questions. External auditor is
also available at the AGM to address shareholders’
queries about the conduct of the audit.
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Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors.

All votes of the Shareholders at a general meeting
must be taken by poll according to the Listing Rules.
The chairman of the meeting will therefore demand
a poll for every resolution put to the vote of the
AGM pursuant to bye-law 66 of the Bye-laws.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

1.

Results announcement

The Board recognizes that effective communication
with investors is the key to establish investor
confidence and to attract new investors.

Annual reports and interim reports are prepared
and issued to all Shareholders within the prescribed
period stipulated by the Listing Rules. All results
announcements and reports are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. The Company can still provide the
Shareholders and investors with an adequate degree
of transparency and information of the financial
position of the Company.

Communication of media, analysts and investors

The Group endeavours to enhance the transparency.
We have close communication with media, analysts
and both institutional and individual investors after
the release of the interim and final results by way
of presentation, luncheons, meetings or telephone
conferences etc. according to circumstances from
time to time in order to share the performances of
the Group during the relevant period results and
to report the new development and strategy of the
Group’s business. There is also ample opportunity
for all parties to ask questions and to communicate
with each other. Furthermore, the Group shall reply
and handle rapidly, as we have received enquiries
from media and individual Shareholders.
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Website

The Group regularly releases corporate information
such as awards received, and the latest news of the
Group’s developments on its Company’s website.
The public are welcome to give their comments
and make their enquiries through the Company’s
website, the management will give their prompt
response.

G. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

1.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition of not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition.

Procedures for which enquiries may be put to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries
to the Board in writing at the Company’s head office
and principal place of business or the Company’s
website.
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3. Procedures for putting forward proposals by
Shareholders at the Shareholders’ meeting
Pursuant to Section 79 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, Shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all
shareholders; or not less than 100 Shareholders may
make requisition in writing to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company:

(@) to give to Shareholders of the Company
entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended
to be moved at that meeting; and

(b) to circulate to Shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them
any statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt
with at that meeting.

Any enquires or suggestions by Shareholders can
be sent in writing to the Board or the Company
Secretary at our head office and principal place of
business or email to the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY H.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs
and assists the Board in functionary effectively. All
Directors also have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary. During the Year, the Company
Secretary has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS l.

During the Year, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Fai, aged 76, was appointed as a Director of
the Company in October 1996 and is the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company as well as the founder of
the Group. He is also the director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Prior to founding the Group in 1980, Mr. Ho had
experience in factory management for several decades and
in running operations specialised in manufacturing plastic,
metal and electronic products. He is responsible for the
Group’s overall corporate strategies and objectives. He is
also a director of New Sense Enterprises Limited and Honford
Investments Limited, a corporate substantial shareholder of the
Company, and the brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, who is a
non-executive Director and Deputy Chairman, the husband of
Ms. Ho Po Chu, who is a member of management team and
the uncle of Mr. Ho Kai Man, a non-executive Director of the
Company.

Senior Management Profile
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Mr. Ho was appointed as member of the 10th Guangdong
Provincial Committee of Political Consultative Conference
in January 2008 and was reappointed as a member of the
11th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Dongguan City, Guangdong Province in January 2007. He
was also awarded as the Honorable Citizen of Dongguan
City and Honorable Citizen of Yixing City. The solid business
knowledge and working experience gained by Mr. Ho
throughout the years are recognized by the industries. He
was awarded the Honorary Fellowship of the Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries in October 2020.
He was also the Honorary Vice-Chairman of Hang Seng
Management College — Foundation and the Honorary Director
of Hong Kong CPPCC (Provincial) Members Association
Foundation. Mr. Ho currently participates in affairs of different
social and commercial associations, which include Former
Guangdong Province CPPCC Members Association, Overseas
Friendship Association of Dongguan, Former Dongguan City
CPPCC Members Association, The Association of the Hong
Kong Members of Dongguan’s (Hong Kong & Macau) CPPCC,
Guangdong Overseas Chinese Enterprises Association, Hong
Kong Metals Manufacturers Association, World Dongguan
Entrepreneurs, China Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment, Dongguan City Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment, Dongguan City Fenggang Association
of Enterprises with Foreign Investment, Federation of Hong
Kong Guangdong Community Organisations, Hong Kong
Fenggang (Dongguan) Natives Association Limited, The Hong
Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporter’s Association, Dongguan
Foundation for the Disabled and Dongguan City Fenggang
Industrial Development Association (3 5% T B i £ 3£ 3 R (2 1
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Ms. CHAN Ming Mui, Silvia, aged 50, was appointed as an
executive Director in November 2010, and is the General
Manager — Human Resources and Administration of the
Group and responsible for the overall operation of human
resources, administration and IT department of the Group. Ms.
Chan is one of the members of the Executive Committee and
Internal Audit Committee of the Group. She is also the director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Chan graduated
from The City University of Hong Kong majoring in Public
Administration and Management. She also holds a Master of
Business Administration from Wrexham Glyndwr University
in the United Kingdom. She joined the Group in 1996 and has
over 20 years’ experience in administration and management.

Mr. ZHAO Kai, aged 47, was appointed as a Director of the
Company in November 2012. He has been appointed as the
General Manager and the Convener of Executive Committee
of the Group with effect from 1 April 2013, responsible for
overall manufacturing management and operation of the
Group. Mr. Zhao graduated from Xihua University (formerly
known as Sichuan Institute of Technology) in the PRC with
a Bachelor Degree in Foundry Engineering. He had over 20
years’ experience in metal plastic, mould engineering and
project management and more than 15 years’ experience in
production management and operation. Mr. Zhao joined the
Group in December 2011.

Mr. CHAN Raymond, aged 55, was appointed as an executive
Director in June 2016. He is also the Marketing Executive
General Manager and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Group, responsible for the Group’s marketing and
business development. He is also the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. He joined the Group in 1985 and
has over 25 years’ experience in sales and marketing.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Ming, aged 68, was re-designated as a non-
executive Director and Deputy Chairman of the Company
with effect from 1 May 2011. He is also the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming was appointed
as an executive Director of the Company from October 1996
to 31 May 2007, and was a Deputy Chairman and Chief
Operation Officer as well as the Convener of the Executive
Committee of the Group. He was re-designated as a non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 1 June
2007. He is responsible for the overall supervision of the
Group’s operation business. He joined the Group in 1980 and
has over 20 years’ experience in factory production. He is also
the brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, who is one of the executive
Directors, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, the brother-in-law of Ms. Ho Po Chu, who is a
member of the senior management team and father of Mr. Ho
Kai Man (one of the non-executive directors).

Mr. HO Kai Man, aged 41, was appointed as an executive
Director from 12 July 2012 to 31 October 2012 and was
re-designated as a non-executive Director in November
2012. He joined the Group in November 2005. He has
been appointed as the Assistant Corporate Planning General
Manager and Executive Committee member and is responsible
for handling internal and external business and political
contact, establishing of communication platform, promoting
energy-saving, environment protection and cleaner production
etc and maintaining the Group’s sustainability. He is also
the director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ho
graduated from Auckland University of Technology majoring
in Computer Science. He had engaged in the works of various
departments of the Group so that he has familiarized himself
with the business operation of the Group. He is the nephew
of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and is the son of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, a non-
executive director and deputy chairman of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. FONG Hoi Shing, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in December 2004.
He has extensive experience in accounting, finance and
management. He holds a master degree in professional
accounting, a postgraduate diploma in corporate
administration and a higher diploma in accountancy from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional
and an associate of the Chartered Governance Institute and
the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute.

Mr. YAM Chung Shing, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in
November 2015, is an Honorable President of Dongguan
City Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment,
the Honorable Citizen of Dongguan, Standing Committee
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Dongguan City and an Executive Vice President and Secretary
of Association of the Hong Kong Members of Dongguan’s
(Hong Kong & Macau) Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Committee. He has invested and developed
several projects. He has extensive experience in business
management and project investment.

Dr. LAU Kin Wah, /p, aged 62, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a member of each of the
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company. Dr. Lau has rich and extensive
experience in business operation and management and is the
founder, chairman and managing director of Hanville Co. Ltd.
He holds a Doctor of Business Administration from Bulacan
State University in Philippines and becomes a prominent
figure in watch and clock industry. He graduated from the Lee
Wai Lee Technical Institute in the 1980s. He was presented
with the 20th Anniversary Award for Outstanding Graduate
by the VTC in 2002. Also, he was an awardee of the Young
Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong in 2004 and conferred the
VTC Honorary Fellowship in 2013. On 1 July 2013 he was
appointed a justice of the peace.
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Dr. Lau is also a Vice-Convenor of The Employees Retraining
Board Industry Consultative Networks (Business Services),
a Member of Education Bureau Curriculum Development
Council (CDC) Committee on Applied Learning, a Member of
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Intellectual Property
Assessment Committee (IPAC), a Member of Hong Kong
Productivity Council Hong Kong Watch & Clock Technology
Centre Management Committee, an Advisor of Hong Kong
Brand Development Council and a Specialist of The Hong
Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications (HKCAAVQ).

MANAGEMENT

Ms. HO Po Chu, aged 73, is the Director of Administration of
the Group. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Ms. Ho is one of the founding members of the Group
in 1980. She is mainly responsible for supervising human
resources and overall administration of the Group. She is also
the wife of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, who is one of the executive
Directors, the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company, and sister-in-law of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, who is a
non-executive Director and Deputy Chairman.

Mr. HO Wai Hon, Brian, aged 32, is the Executive Assistant
to Chairman, responsible for assisting the board’s strategic
planning for the Group’s overall operation, investment and
property development projects. He was also appointed as
Head of Accounting and Finance on 1 November 2017,
supervising and navigating the Group’s finance, accounting
and investor relations functions. He is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Group and also the director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group in real estate business.
Mr. Ho Wai Hon graduated from University of York, United
Kingdom with a Bachelor Degree in Economics and a Master
Degree in Finance and Investment Analysis at Aston Business
School. He joined the Group in 2012 and strategically
engages with the Group’s financial planning and business
development. He is the son of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, the
executive Director, chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company and nephew of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, the non-
executive director & deputy chairman of the Company. He
also is the cousin of Mr. Ho Kai Man, the non-executive
Director of the Company.
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Mr. LO Wai Kit, aged 52, is the Marketing General Manager
of the Group and a member of the Executive Committee of
the Group, responsible for the Group’s business development
and product management. Mr. Lo graduated from The Hong
Kong Baptist University with a Bachelor of Arts (Honors)
in Sociology. He had over 20 years’ experience in Sales &
Marketing.

Mr. CHAN Wah Ying, aged 57, is the General Manager of
Thailand factory and a member of the Executive Committee of
the Group. He is also the director of Karwin Thai Advanced
Technology Industrial Limited. Mr. Chan graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) with a higher certificate in
Manufacturing Engineering. Mr. Chan joined the Group
in 1992 and had over 30 years’ experience in quality
management, system integration and rich experience in
international certification related to manufacturing.

Mr. HO Man Chung, Philip, aged 65, the director and
general manager of Dongguan Karrie Properties Development
Company Limited (R=F=EAIF HEFRZEFR AR F), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group in real estate business, is responsible
for the coordination and planning of real estate business for
the Group. Mr. Ho Man Chung joined the Group in 2011. He
had engaged in service business for more than 15 years and
has over 20 years’ experience in management and property
development industry. He possesses expertise in various
projects development and management, especially in property
development project.

Senior Management Profile

EREBEAEZBEAER

BEERE Bt % ARETSEL
BRHTZEEREZ— BEAREE
BHRIRERER - SLTERXNEBR
SRE BAEHGR(RE)NELE -

WHEAB— THFEE RIS HERERLR -

REZKE > Attt ARERETE
RIEENBITREGKE W ITAKarwin
Thai Advanced Technology Industrial
Limited 2 E % - REEEXNERET
PHROEEBETARSR)  HERETIE
BREE  FR—NAN_ENMAREER -
BAEB-TFmEEE  ZREBANEE
RIE RN R E LR

ABRE  NTHR - RR=REFEH
EREARAR(ARARIZEENBAT)
MEFRELENAKES THEMERS
MEARZEE  BEREAKEFSME
EWg o (X BEERZT——FMALRE
c RERFERBITELFER+RFLE
BR_+FERKEEEREBKR
RENEEER - WITBRNEHEARR
EEEE  LHEAMWERZEERESR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 3% 67



Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

The Board has the pleasure of presenting the report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in:

- Metal and Plastic Business (“M&P”): providing
mechanical engineering solutions, manufacturing and
sales of metal and plastic parts, mainly including moulds
and the relevant plastic and metal parts products for
information and communication technology industry,
etc.;

- Electronic Manufacturing Services Business (“EMS”):
manufacturing and sales of magnetic tape data storage,
point-of-sale system, and other computer peripherals,
etc.; and

= Real Estate Business: urban renewal, residential real estate
project investment and development.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business and an analysis using financial key performance
indicators, can be found in Chairman’s Statement on pages
11 to 31, in Report of the Directors in pages 68 to 104 and
Financial Highlights on pages 8 to 10 of this annual report.

A discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group is contained in Corporate Governance Report on pages
32 to 60 of this annual report.
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The Group’s turnover by principal product business segment
and geographical locations for the Year are set out in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK4.0 cents per Share (2020/21 final dividend: HK7.0 cents
per Share), to Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 2 September 2022.
Together with the interim dividend of HK4.5 cents per Share
(2020/21 interim dividend: HK4.0 cents per Share) and a
special dividend of HK1.0 cent per Share (2020/21 special
dividend: HKO.5 cents per Share), total dividend paid/payable
for this year amounted to HK9.5 cents per Share (2020/21:
HK11.5 cents per Share). The final dividend will be subject
to the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company to be held on
26 August 2022.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 119 to 120 of
this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group and of the Company during the Year are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES
Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the Year are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company’s reserves
of approximately HK$283,228,000 mainly representing the
contributed surplus and retained earnings were available for
distribution to the Shareholders.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the

Year amounted to HK$421,000.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Due to the fact that the Share price of the Company is unable
to fully reflect its intrinsic value, the Company repurchased
1,880,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange during the year
ended 31 March 2022 at an aggregate consideration paid of
HK$3,011,000 and these Shares were subsequently cancelled
by the Company. Details of these transactions are as follows:

B

REBRAFEEITZES MEMBRGE
421,000/ 7T °

BE - HESEERSG
ERARRRNERREZARMRASE
B AARRBE_ZE-_—_F=A=+—
A1 FE AT AMIERN1,880,000 /% %
9 B HEEA3,011,00087T © Mz
ERMDEBANREENHE - FHEEROT
it :

Number of Highest Lowest

Shares price paid price paid
Month/year repurchased per Share per Share Total paid
(=1 8% iz 12 5290 5287 214
/R £ ReE® RIEER HmRE
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
(B7T) (B7T) (B7T)
July 2021 —E-—F+tHA 698,000 1.78 1.73 1,229,000
September 2021 —E-—FhA 1,182,000 1.54 1.47 1,782,000
1,880,000 3,011,000

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not redeemed any
of its Shares during the year and neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s

Shares during the year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has realized the importance of good utilization
of resources long time ago and not to exploit the rights of
using resources for the next generation. The Group adheres
to the concept of Chairman Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, with heartfelt
dedication in all details, and saves resources for the next
generation. As such, the Group’s production adheres to the
concept of reducing energy or material consumption from the
sources with the adoption of various environmental-friendly
measures and addition of energy-saving equipment. With the
concept of green and cleaner production implemented in
practice, the Group continues to formulate policies for green
production and energy-saving policies, while introducing
different kinds of environmentally friendly equipment to
attain the objectives of cleaner production and environmental
protection and to comply with relevant environmental
regulations. It is of paramount importance to have effective
communication and understanding between the Group and
its stakeholders including Shareholders, partners, employees,
suppliers, regulators and the public in coming up with
benchmarks and regarding key issues.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 and the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report Guide contained in Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules, the Company’s Sustainability Report will be
available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website within three months from the publication of this
annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of noncompliance with
such requirements. The Group has been implementing system
and allocating staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance
with rules and regulations.

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland China
while the Company itself was incorporated in Bermuda and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Our establishment and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong,
Bermuda and Mainland China. The Group had complied with
all relevant laws and regulations.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group ensures all staff are reasonably remunerated and it
regularly reviews and improves its policies on remuneration
and benefits, training, occupational health and safety.

The Group maintains good relationship with its customers.
A customer complaint handling mechanism is in place
to receive, analyse and study complaints and make
recommendations on remedies with the aim of improving
service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and
conducts a fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Group adopts an integrated top-down and bottom-
up approach in identifying risks and thereby conducts risk
analysis and assessment to identify the sources, categories and
indicators of risks. The followings are the key part of the risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group:

(1) Industrial Business

(i) Concentration of clients
The customers in industrial business of the
Group are mainly concentrated in global leading
technology corporations. The Group may be unable
to attract new customers if no new product has
been developed. The concentration of customers
and/or the concentration of geographical location
that exceeds an acceptable level may increase the
business risk and may reduce the market share of
the Group. The Group may also be exposed to the
risk of significant reduction in profit in case a few
important clients are lost.
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(ii)  Supplies of raw materials
Since market fluctuations may lead to delay,
shortage and price fluctuation in raw materials
supply, these may heighten the Group’s risks in
maintaining timely delivery to customers and a fall
in profit.

The Group has already adopted the following
corresponding measures to mitigate operational risks:

(i) Concentration of clients
The Group adopt practical measures of “recruiting
talents, innovating research and development,
diversifying products, extending the production
bases and market expansion” and provide solutions
to our customers so as to meet the constant
challenges.

(ii) Supplies of raw materials
The Group will seek to stock up sufficient raw
materials in accordance with market conditions and
sales and production plan, in order to stay clear of
short-term fluctuation in market supply and price.

The Group always values clients and suppliers as
long-term close partners. The Group will timely
communicate with upstream and downstream
suppliers over the market status of the raw materials
and will proactively search for solutions to achieve
a win-win business partnership.
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Risk of the Real Estate Business

Our real estate business may subject to various factors,
including but not limited to speculative activity,
economic environment, financial situation, government
policy and regulation, natural disaster and epidemic etc.

To mitigate the risk of the business, the Group has
adopted the following initiatives in response:

To better handle the opportunities and challenges
the Group has
established a professional team to maintain close
communication with the relevant authorities and
thoroughly study policy trends so as to adopt a

posed by policy changes,

more flexible approach to sales in response to such
changes;

Professional management team strictly supervises
the quality, progress, safety and materials in the
process of project development, to provide high-
quality products for home buyers;

We have established a favorable and cost-effective
business operation system to develop high-quality
projects, and our projects are located in cities in the
Greater Bay Area with growth potential, and we are
confident in the sales of our projects;

We have good capital management policies to
maintain healthy financial level and cash flow.

Finance

Foreign currency risks arising from dealings with
customers and suppliers in foreign currencies are
discussed in the Chairman’s Statement of this annual
report. Other financial risks and uncertainties are set out
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A.

The Terminated Share Option Scheme (the “Old Scheme”)
The Old Scheme was adopted on 24 August 2012
and was terminated on 24 August 2021. New Share
Option Scheme of the Company was approved by the
Shareholders of the Company and adopted on 24 August
2021 (the “New Scheme”). Details of the Old Scheme
are summarised herein below:

() (@ The Old Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions which the
eligible participants have made or will make
to the Group or invested entity (as defined in
Share Option Scheme).

(b) The Old Scheme will provide the eligible
participants with an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with a view
to motivating the eligible participants to
utilise their performance and efficiency for
the benefit of the Group or invested entity;
and attracting and retaining or otherwise
maintaining an ongoing relationship with the
eligible participants whose contributions are
or will be beneficial to the long term growth of
the Group or invested entity.
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(if)

The Board may at its discretion grant options to:

(@) any director (whether executive, non-
executive or independent non-executive
director), employee (whether full time or
part time employee), consultant, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, joint venture partner
or advisers of or contractor to the Group or
invested entity; and

(b) any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include any director (whether
executive, non-executive or independent
non-executive director), employee (whether
full time or part time employee), consultant,
customer, supplier, agent, partner, joint
venture partner or adviser of or contractor to
the Group or invested entity.

(iii) The total number of shares that may be issued by

(iv)

the Company if all options granted under the Old
Scheme have been exercised is 2,150,000 as at 30
June 2022, which represents approximately 0.1%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 30
June 2022.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Old Scheme and any other share option schemes
for the time being of the Company shall not, in
aggregate, exceed such number of Shares equaling
to 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
option may be granted under the Old Scheme or
any other share option scheme of the Company if it
will result in the above-mentioned 30% limit being
exceeded.
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(v)

(vi)

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Old Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of
the Old Scheme by the Shareholders (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”), unless Shareholders” approval has
been obtained. Options lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Old Scheme or any other share
option scheme of the Company will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate
Limit.

(@) Unless approved by Shareholders in a general
meeting, no option may be granted to any
eligible participant which, if exercised in full,
would result in the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted or to be granted to
such eligible participant (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date
of such new grant exceeding 1% of the Shares
in issue as at the date of such new grant.

(b) Any grant of options to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or its subsidiaries or any of their
respective associates under the Old Scheme
must be subject to the prior approval of
the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding any independent non-executive
Director who is a grantee of the relevant
options).
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(c) Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company or any of their
respective associates would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such
grant:

(1) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the Shares in issue; and

(2) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of
each grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000.

then such further grant must be subject to the
approval by Shareholders at a general meeting
taken on a poll.

(vii) The period within which the options must be

exercised will be specified by the Company at the
time of grant, but shall expire no later than 10 years
from the relevant date of grant.

(viii) At the time of grant of the options, the Company

may specify any minimum period(s) for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. The
Old Scheme does not contain any such minimum
period.

At the time of the grant of the options, the Company
may specify any performance target(s) which must
be achieved before the options can be exercised.
The Old Scheme does not contain any performance
targets.
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(x)

(xi)

A non-refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of
consideration for the grant of an option is refunded
to be paid by each grantee upon acceptance of the
opinion.

Subject to adjustments made in a situation
contemplated under the Old Scheme, the
subscription price in respect of any option shall be
at the discretion of the Board, provided that it shall
not be less than the highest of:

(@) the closing price of a share as shown in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant (which must be a business
day) in respect of such option;

(b) the average of the closing prices of the shares
as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the relevant date of
grant in respect of such option; and

(c) the nominal value of a share.
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(xii) Details of share option movements during the Year (xii) BIBEFTEIRNAFE 2 B
under the Old Scheme are as follows: BEYZEBOT -

Number ~ Number
Number ~ Number ~ Number  of options  of options

Closing Priceat  of options  of options  of options lapsed/  outstanding

Exercise Price  exercise outstandin% granted exercised  cancelled at

Price hefore date dateof  at 1 Apni during during during 31 March

Name Date of Grant  per Share ~ Exercise Period ~ of grant options 2021 theyear  theyear  the year 2022
—E-CE

R R ZBc-£ =5

BEE MBE RmA-A  RMARE  WREE MFE =1-F

B8R RLAm TR HROE ERT T A/BE EAGE
#% REAH TEER TES R ZER BREHE EREHE BREME EREZE BREHE
(ng$) (H@) (H@) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000)
(1) (B (B () () () () ()
(i) Djrectors/Ehief Executives
EERSAITHAR
Mr. Zhao Kai 11/082014 0419 01/08/2015- 0420 - - - - - -
ik 10/08/2024
11/08/2014 0419 01/08/2017- 0420 1.63 1,000 - (1,000) - -
10/08/2024
2000412021 169 20/04/2021- 149 - - 1,000 - - 1,000
19/04/2022
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia 27102016 0.70 01/07/2017- 0.69 - - - - - -
R4 ME 26/1012026
271102016 070 01/07/2018- 0.69 - - - - - -
26/10/2026
271012016 070 01/07/2019- 0.69 - - - - - -
26/10/2026
200412021 169 20/04/2021- 149 - - 1,000 - - 1,000
19042022
Mr.Chan Raymond 27102016 070 01/07/2017- 0.69 - - - - - -
RRUEE 26/1012026
2711012016 070 01/07/2018- 0.69 - - - - - -
26/10/2026
271012016 070 01/07/2019- 0.69 - - - - - -
26/10/2026
2000412021 169 20/04/2021- 149 - - 1,000 - - 1,000
19/04/2022
Mr.YamChungShing 27102016 0.70 01072017~ 0.69 - - - - - -
fEIxE 26/1012026
2711012016 070 01/07/2018- 0.69 - - - - - -
26/1012026
271012016 070 01/07/2019- 0.69 - - - - - -
26/10/2026
Mr. Ho Kai Man 2000412021 1.69 200042021~ 149 - - 150 - - 150
RS 19/04/2022
(ily Other Eligible Participants
NG et
Employees 11/082014 0419 01/08/2015- 0420 - - - - - -
&8 10/08/2024
11/082014 0.419 01/08/2017- 0420 1.55 4,000 - (4,000) - -
10/08/2024
27102016 070 01/07/2017- 0.69 1.6772% 1,770 - (1,590) - 180
10/08/2024
2711012016 0.70 01/07/2018- 0.69 1.6745* 2,170 - (1,640) - 530
26/1012026
271012016 070 01/07/2019- 0.69 1.6165* 3,660 - (2,220) - 1,440
26/10/2026
200412021 169 20/04/2021- 149 179 - 11,850 (300) (150) 11,400
19/04/2022
*  Weighted Average * IET I8
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A professional actuarial firm has been engaged
in the year of 2014/15, 2016/17 and 2021/22 to
perform a valuation of the share options granted
under the share option scheme.

According to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 2 (“HKFRS2"), the fair value of the share
option on the date grant should be amortised in
profit or loss as expenses over the period from
the date of grant until they are exercisable by the
grantee. The expense required to be reported for
share options granted from 1 April 2017 to 31
March 2022 would be estimated as follows:

2014/15 2015/16  2016/17 2017/18
(Actual)  (Actual) (Actual) (Actual)
(B®B) (B®R) (BB (8K

Report of the Directors

Financial Year

MBFE

EEEHRE

BIEEE  —HEEEHER
AR TN,/ —=HE
B BN/ LFER=
T — /T _FEEEEETE
RANB 2 BIREEE -

RIBEEBV B mEERE 5%
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2018/19  2019/20  2020/21  2021/22

(Actual)
(BR)

(Actual)  (Actual)  (Actual) Total
(BB) (B®) (BB @t

P&L expenses IR
(HK$'000) (F&mL) 1,207 1,020 2,561 2,908

1,186

230 3768 12,940
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Employee’s share option expenses charged to the
consolidated profit or loss are determined with
the trinomial model valuation model based on the
following assumptions:

(1) The share options were granted on 11 August

2014:
Date of valuation 11 August 2014
Date of grant 11 August 2014
Option value HK$0.176-
HK$0.194
Market price at date of grant HK$0.405
Exercisable price HK$0.419
Risk-free interest rate 1.97%
Life of options 10 years
Expected Volatility (120 months) 52.84%
Expected Dividend yield 2.47%
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)

The share options were granted on 27 October
2016:

Date of valuation 27 October 2016
Date of grant 27 October 2016
Option value HK$0.239-

HK$0.271
Market price at date of grant HK$0.70
Exercisable price HK$0.70
Risk-free interest rate 1.00%
Life of options 10 years
Expected Volatility (120 months) 51.27%
Expected Dividend yield 5.00%

Report of the Directors
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(3) The share options were granted on 20 April

2021:
Date of valuation 20 April 2021
Date of grant 20 April 2021
Option value HK$0.2509-
HK$0.2520
Market price at date of grant HK$1.69
Exercisable price HK$1.69
Risk-free interest rate 0.05%
Life of options 1 year
Expected Volatility (12 months) 44.58%
Expected Dividend yield 5.00%

Note: The vesting of the share options is subject to the
performance of the Group.
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There are several relevant measures that may be
considered to assess the financial impact of the
share option schemes, including the expense of
share-based transactions under generally accepted
financial reporting standards (e.g., HKFRS2). The
expense of the share-based transactions is attributed
over the period from the original transaction date
(i.e., grant date) to the date when the recipient’s
entitlement to the payment has been fully realized
(i.e., vested).

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility, adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Change in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

The result of the trinomial model can be materially
affected by changes in these assumptions so an
option’s actual value may differ from the estimated
fair value of the options due to limitations of the
trinomial model.

In assessing the value of the share options granted
during the Year and the expense of share-based
transactions under HKFRS2 requirement, the
trinomial option pricing model has been used.
The trinomial model is one of the generally most
accepted methods used to calculate the value of
options and expense of share-based transactions.

The parameters of the trinomial model include the
risk free rate, dividend vyield, exit rate and trigger
price multiple. The risk free rate has made reference
to the yield of exchange fund notes as at the grant
date. The dividend yield makes reference to the
dividend history and it is assumed that the grantee
will exercise the option in accordance with their
sub-optimal exercise policy.
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The New Scheme

No share option has been granted under the New
Scheme since its adoption on 24 August 2021. Details of
the New Scheme are summarized as below:

i (@

The New Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions which the
eligible participants have made or will make
to the Group or invested entity (as defined in
Share Option Scheme).

The New Scheme will provide the eligible
participants with an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with a view
to motivating the eligible participants to
utilise their performance and efficiency for
the benefit of the Group or invested entity;
and attracting and retaining or otherwise
maintaining an ongoing relationship with the
eligible participants whose contributions are
or will be beneficial to the long term growth of
the Group or invested entity.

(i) The Board may at its discretion grant options to:

(a)

any director (whether executive, non-
executive or independent non-executive
director), employee (whether full time or
part time employee), consultant, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, joint venture partner
or advisers of or contractor to the Group or
invested entity; and

any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include any director (whether
executive, non-executive or independent
non-executive director), employee (whether
full time or part time employee), consultant,
customer, supplier, agent, partner, joint
venture partner or adviser of or contractor to
the Group or invested entity.
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(iii)

(iv)

The overall limit on the number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
New Scheme and any other share option schemes
for the time being of the Company shall not, in
aggregate, exceed such number of Shares equaling
to 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
option may be granted under the New Scheme or
any other share option scheme of the Company if it
will result in the above-mentioned 30% limit being
exceeded.

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
New Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of
the New Scheme by the Shareholders (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”), unless Shareholders” approval has
been obtained. Options lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the New Scheme or any other share
option scheme of the Company will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate
Limit.

(@) Unless approved by Shareholders in a general
meeting, no option may be granted to any
eligible participant which, if exercised in full,
would result in the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted or to be granted to
such eligible participant (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date
of such new grant exceeding 1% of the Shares
in issue as at the date of such new grant.
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(vi)

(vii)

(b) Any grant of options to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or its subsidiaries or any of their
respective associates under the New Scheme
must be subject to the prior approval of
the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding any independent non-executive
Director who is a grantee of the relevant
options).

(c)  Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company or any of their
respective associates would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such
grant:

()  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the Shares in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of
each grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000.

then such further grant must be subject to the
approval by Shareholders at a general meeting
taken on a poll.

The period within which the options must be
exercised will be specified by the Company at the
time of grant, but shall expire no later than 10 years
from the relevant date of grant.

At the time of grant of the options, the Company
may specify any minimum period(s) for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. The
New Scheme does not contain any such minimum
period.
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(viii) At the time of the grant of the options, the
Company may specify any performance target(s)
which must be achieved before the options can be
exercised. The New Scheme does not contain any
performance targets.

(ix) A non-refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of
consideration for the grant of an option is refunded
to be paid by each grantee upon acceptance of the
opinion.

(x) Subject to adjustments made in a situation
contemplated under the New Scheme, the
subscription price in respect of any option shall be
at the discretion of the Board, provided that it shall
not be less than the highest of:

(@) the closing price of a share as shown in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant (which must be a business
day) in respect of such option;

(b) the average of the closing prices of the shares
as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the relevant date of
grant in respect of such option; and

(c) the nominal value of a share.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
shares in the Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 286 to
288 of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Bye-law provides that the Directors shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses as a
result of any act or failure to act in carrying out their functions.

The Company has arranged directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance cover in respect of legal action against the Directors
during the year.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March
2022 are set out in notes 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia

Mr. Zhao Kai

Mr. Chan Raymond

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Ho Kai Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing

Mr. Yam Chung Shing

Dr. Lau Kin Wah
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Mr. Fong Hoi Shing, Mr. Yam Chung Shing and Dr. Lau Kin
Wah entered into an appointment letter with the Company for
a term of one year with effect from 1 December 2021 subject
to extension by mutual agreement and retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
as and when required under the Bye-laws.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws and
paragraph B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Mr. Fong Hoi Shing, Mr.
Yam Chung Shing and Mr. Ho Kai Man will retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All
such Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company
which is not terminable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the below section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTION”, no contracts of significance to which any of
the Group companies was a party and in which a Director was
materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Company had the following connected
transactions, certain details of which had been disclosed in
compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules.

Benefit Master Limited (“Benefit Master”) (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) and Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai (an executive Director, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Kar Info International Acquisition
Agreement”), pursuant to which Benefit Master has
conditionally agreed to acquire, and Mr. Ho has conditionally
agreed to sell, the entire issued share capital of Kar Info
International Property Limited (the “Kar Info International”) at
a nominal consideration of US$100 (the “Kar Info International
Acquisition”).

On the even day, KRP Development Company Limited (“KRP”)
(an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and
Kar Info Property Limited (“Kar Info”), which is wholly-
owned by Mr. Ho, entered into an acquisition agreement
(the “Acquisition Agreement”), pursuant to which KRP has
conditionally agreed to acquire, and Kar Info has conditionally
agreed to sell, the entire issued equity interest of the Dongguan
City Jiaxuntong Computer Products Limited* (R5e M 3z3AE
fZE mn B PR A7) (“Target Company”) at the consideration of
RMB38 million, subject to the terms and conditions therein (the
“Acquisition”).

*  For identification purposes only
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513 B & % :% ([ Kar Info International
WEEHE]) - & UL Benefit Master
BBRGEREWRE  mAXEBFEHR
B R A E 1003 T H & Kar Info
International Property Limited ([ Kar Info
International | ) /) 2 Z0 B 217 & 4~ ([ Kar
Info International & |) -

REMERHRBERAR([ZAME] (K
NEIREE2EMBAR) BRAE(EE)
EXARAR(IEMAE]) (—RHBMAELE
2EHEAMRA]) R R BT
(TR ]) - Bt - ZRMERGTR
BUE - MEMEERFAERREAR
K sAaBETHER=MRMBEKERS
RAR(TERATR D22 BETRE 2
HA ik S AR ([ BB | ) -

* {EHERY
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The Kar Info International Acquisition and the Acquisition
were inter-conditional and they were part of the steps of
the Proposed Spin-off. Upon the completion of the Kar Info
International Acquisition and the Acquisition on 8 March
2022, Kar Info International became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Benefit Master, and the Target Company became
a wholly-owned subsidiary of KRP. The financial results, assets
and liabilities of the Target Operation are consolidated into
the accounts of the Company and the consolidated financial
statements of the Company are restated and prepared using
the merger basis of accounting.

As Benefit Master is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and as Kar Info International is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of a company controlled by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, a
controlling shareholder and executive Director (Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer) of the Company.
The Acquisition also constitutes a connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
was subject to the reporting, announcement, circular and
Independent Shareholders” approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As all the percentage ratios applicable to the Kar Info
International Acquisition were less than 0.1%, the Kar Info
International Acquisition constituted a de minimis transaction
pursuant to Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules and was fully
exempted from the reporting, announcement, circular and
Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the Kar Info International Acquisition Agreement and the
Acquisition Agreement were entered into by the Group with,
respectively, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and his associate on the same
date and the transactions contemplated thereunder are inter-
conditional with each other, the transactions contemplated
under the Kar Info International Acquisition Agreement and
the Acquisition Agreement shall be aggregated and be treated
as if they were one transaction under Rules 14A.81 and
14A.82 of the Listing Rules.
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Kar Info International 4 % = 75 B2 UL % =
HE BIGH  WEREZESIFAF IR
BEER T -~ —F = A\ HMKar Info
International Y & J2 W i F£187% - Kar Info
International fiX /& Benefit Master #) & & Bf
BAR MEEARIKAREMENEE
MEAA - BEIREBHNBKEE  EER
BEHAHARRFERE - AAREGEH
BHEREHKAEHSTHEEEY MER -

7 Benefit Master B N A B 2 BB A
7] » iMKar Info International &7~ &1#ER%
REFNTES(EFEFRITHAE)
e B EIEHN —KARNEENBEA
7] o IRE ETARBIE14AE - WEEEIATT
B ETRANET4AZIE FARRIMEE
R5 - WEEBSF EMHRANEI4AZIETH
W~ o BREBIREAERE ©

72 8 A 7 Kar Info International U5 B #9
FTEBE DL EREER0.1% - BB LT
B2 14A.76 {& » Kar Info International
BEHEENARANERERS - WE
FHEHRET EMHRANF14AZIR THR
D BB REALERE ©

f 7 Kar Info International Y B8 1 &
WEWEZES B ASEERRE— B B[
IRIE AN HBE ALY - 25 WE
HIBRETNR S E AKE - MiRE L
T8 B 55 14A.81 &2 14A.82 1§ * Kar Info
International Y B 15 i % Uk B 15 i T8 T #¢
EITHRZPEAHERE  WRIER—IER
5o
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As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios in respect
of the Acquisition (standalone or on an aggregated basis) is
more than 25% but less than 100%, the Acquisition constitutes
a major transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Acquisition was subject to the
reporting, announcement, circular and Shareholders” approval
requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

Kar Info is wholly-owned by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, who is a
connected person of the Company by virtue of being an
executive Director, the Chairman, and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, and a Controlling Shareholder.
Accordingly, the Acquisition also constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and was subject to the reporting, announcement,
circular and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Given that the Kar
Info International Acquisition is inter-conditional with the
Acquisition, the Company has also sought independent
Shareholders’ approval for the Kar Info International
Acquisition.

MREREEEFEMN —HXZIHEERA
B E(BEBRA) BiB25%EBER
100% @ RiZ EMABE14E - WEE1E
BRARBINEERS - At © WESE
BEST FHARBEI4ZEETHRSE - A
5~ B R ARERBLERTE ©

FaBRAEEEEZERE  BFEEA
RARMITES - TEFRITHEERLIZR
RERMARARIMBEEALT - At - Uk
FIRTVERK LR AIE14AFIE T ARF]
WREER S WEEBT EMHAFEI4AE
EHTHHE - 2 BB ARRRE
}IE © $E A Kar Info International W i& =18
HINIERIEE BIEMH - AARITESIE
57 MR #E f Kar Info International Ye & =
I8 o
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE’S INTERESTS IN BEEREETHRAEZROER
SHARES
As at 31 March 2022 R-B-=—F=A=+—H

The interests and short positions of the Directors and the chief ~ ANARIZEEREFSTHRABEARRR K
executive of the Company in the shares and the underlying  E{aJfBEEE (B E R(BH K EE &)
shares of the Company and any associated corporations (as  ([{FEZ&RAI) 1) FEXVE) &A% (0 K AH B8 %
defined in Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance B MNER KRB + Mk SEm A
(the “SFO")) (a) as recorded in the register required to be kept & ()IRIE(EH GG )E352167B THEF 2
under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to ~ Z i fFTEC8EE  s(b)kIE( LT ARIE
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ~ Fi#7T5E 52 5 MR ST A ([(ZESF
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for  BI) ) BAARRBIRB BB AR ZFTER
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the A& ([BERFT]) - AT -

“Model Code”) were as follows:

(A) Interests in the Company () RAQF) 2
Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
SRARIIETZEBREA

% of
Personal Family Corporate/ Total issued share
interests interests  Other interests interests capital

HEEERT
fEARER FE#L At iR FRAEH
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai /e’ 278,712,000 110,350,000 1,077,608,000 1,466,670,000 72.56

(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)

(M) (it —) (M)

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming L 11,400,000 817,608,000 829,008,000 41.01
(Note 3) (Npte 2)
(FzE=) (F3Ez)

Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia [R5 /)M 7,000,000 - 7,000,000 0.35
(Note 4)

(&ERm)

Mr. Zhao Kai wel e 11,672,000 -
(Note 5)
(FzE®)

11,672,000 0.58

Mr. Chan Raymond BRI K 4,922,000 - - 4,922,000 0.24
(Note 6)
(M)

Mr. Ho Kai Man Rt E 150,000 - - 150,000 0.01

(Note 7)
(P3Et)
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Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai’s personal interest consists of 278,712,000
Shares. He is deemed to be interested in 110,350,000 Shares
held by his spouse, Ms. Ho Po Chu, as beneficial owner.

The 1,077,608,000 Shares comprised (i) 487,608,000 Shares
held by New Sense Enterprises Limited (“New Sense”);
and (ii) 330,000,000 Shares held by Castfast Properties
Development Co., Limited (“Castfast Properties”), 87% of
the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by
Honford Investments Limited (“Honford Investments”). New
Sense and Honford Investments are each wholly-owned by
TMF (BVI) Limited (“TMF”) as trustee for a discretionary trust,
The Ho Family Trust, and (iii) 260,000,000 Shares held by
The Wedding City Co., Limited (“The Wedding City”), 90%
and 10% of the issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu,
respectively. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is deemed to be interested
in the 817,608,000 Shares in (i) and (ii) as founder of The
Ho Family Trust and in 260,000,000 Shares in (iii) through
The Wedding City. Ms. Ho Po Chu and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming
are the discretionary objects of The Ho Family Trust and are
thus deemed to be interested in the 817,608,000 Shares held
under The Ho Family Trust. Therefore, the interests of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming in the
817,608,000 Shares duplicate with each other.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIREZERER QA

ShERIIETZEBRAA
% of
Personal Family ~ Corporate/ Total issued share
interests interests  Other interests interests capital
EEERS
fBARE FRER Higs aitlE  FREH
Mr. Yam Chung Shing TEFHTE 500,000 A - 500,000 0.02
(Note 8)
(FEN)
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing b bidid 42,000 - - 42,000 0.00
(Note 9)
(M&EN)
Ms. Ho Po Chu ERL L 110,350,000 538,712,000 817,608,000 1,466,670,000 72.56
(Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 2)
(M) Gi=ap) (M)
Notes: BeE -

ANt B 5 4 2 (B AR B35 278,712,000
Bip o RSB AEERRABEERBMNE
Rzt teABE=ER AEHE2110,350,000
BERR 1

1,077,608,000 % i% {7 2 & (i) FH New Sense
Enterprises Limited ([ New Sense | ) % &
2 487,608,000 % f& 17 ¢ K (i) 3= 1 FE
ERRERAA(IZEBEHEDIFEZ
330,000,000 f& f& 17+ B BT A 2
87% 75 H Honford Investments Limited
(Honford Investments |) Ez5# 5 ° New
Sense N Honford Investments B TMF (BVI)
Limited ([ TMF ] ) ¥ % % # 1= £ The Ho
Family TrustZ XL AR BB K (i) iE4D 1K
BRARI([1B&E |)F5H 2260,000,0008%
B - HEEITRRAN 2 90% % 10% 5 Bl R {A]
BEEERMERZTERSES © S8
% 18 A The Ho Family TrustZ 837 A
WAR B %5 817,608,000/% 1% 1% A #E A (i)
Ko (i) K (i) i 40 3k 2 260,000,000 A% f% 17 2
WS o (M BHRZ T R LERE %L AThe Ho
Family TrustZ 2 Z @ A - HEERE SR
The Ho Family Trust}$7 2 817,608,0008%
BOEERER - Ut - e EE - B
Bz 4 R 2R R34 5 817,608,000%
ez ERF L ES -



10.

The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming comprise
11,400,000 Shares.

The personal interests of Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia comprise
6,000,000 Shares and 1,000,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Zhao Kai comprise 10,672,000
Shares and 1,000,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Chan Raymond comprise
3,922,000 Shares and 1,000,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Ho Kai Man comprise 150,000
outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Yam Chung Shing comprise
500,000 Shares.

The personal interests of Mr. Fong Hoi Shing comprise
42,000 Shares.

The personal interests of Ms. Ho Po Chu comprise
110,350,000 Shares. Ms. Ho Po Chu is also deemed to be
interested in (a) 278,712,000 Shares held and 260,000,000
Shares deemed to be held by her spouse, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
and (b) 817,608,000 Shares referred to in Note 2 above.

AN
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Al BB A 2 (8 A#EZS R 11,400,000 8% %
BARRK °

Bk 42 ik NIE 2 & A 2 F3 6,000,000 A% I 15
11,000,000 # A1 T8 2 BERR AR AK,

L 2 (B AREZSH 10,672,000 /% 15
1,000,000 # A7 718 Z BERLEZRAK

PR 3% S5t A 2 B ABE 2R FR 3,922,000A% J% 19
11,000,000 AR1T{E 2 BEARAEAERK -

RN ST ST A 2 Bl AREZS ER 150,000 18 AR 1 T
2 BERRREAARK o

EEBELE 2 (B A A 500,000 80 4
B o

F ke A 2 B A MEZR R 42,000% B 15 78
ﬁX; °

{A] B8 TR 22 & 2 f&l A # %5 9 110,350,000 A%
AR - BT ETHAATE@QH
REAEREEERERBEEARELZ
278,712,000 % % 19 & 260,000,000 A% %
5 F(b)817,608,000/% A% {7 2 #Ezs » 4%
BMBERZ T (MWl ) E& 2 F—

HEw o
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2022, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu
were interested in certain companies established in the PRC
(the “Competing Companies”) which are or are likely to,
directly or indirectly, compete with the business of the Group.
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu are also the directors of
these Competing Companies. Details of the interests of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu in the Competing Companies
are as follows:

EENRTRER 2 ER
RZE_—F=RA=+—8 ' [AIEBEE
RAATBIRZ L IR E MR B 2 A A
AR AR B X BN EE S EERS
ZRE([BRBEARDEEER © [M(EE
EERMABRZTNABELERFERE 2
BE o B EERMABHRIINZER
FHERFZERAFBIT ¢

Name of Competing
Companies

BEHLTEE

Date and place of
establishment

FE R B HA R itk B

Shareholdings
e

Principal business

EREHK

Dongguan Castfast Door
and Window Products
Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan
Castfast”)

2 August 2001, the PRC

Property investment  Castfast Properties: 95%
and provision
of property

management

and consultancy
services in the PRC

REREFERMAAERLAR —TT—FNA\A-H" RABETHERE FEFME : 95%
(IR==E]) el KRt MEEE &
o v AR A
Yixing Yongtai Electronic 25 March 2008, the PRC Property Castfast Properties: 75%
Technology Co. Ltd. development in the  Dongguan Karrie
(“Yixing Yongtai”) PRC Resort Limited: 25%
HEKFEFRRAERAR —ZTT/\FZA-+hHH > RPBEETYRAE RERHE : 75%

(TE8XER]) i

SR AMERIKE
BERAF] : 25%

As at 31 March 2022, Dongguan Castfast had developed
a residential and commercial property project located at
Dongguan, the PRC with a site area of approximately 48,600
sg.m. and a total gross floor area of approximately 233,700
sq.m. before 2009.

NRZTB-_—F=A=+—H0 F=x=E
ERZZETNFARAE—EBEUAPEER
SEZEEREAMEER - (RHEELD
748,600 F 7oK - MBEEEERIDA
233,700 F K °
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As at 31 March 2022, Yixing Yongtai had developed a
commercial property project located in Yixing, Jiangsu, the
PRC. This project occupied a site area of approximately
101,637 sq.m. and comprised offices, staff quarters and
canteens.

The power to make material business decisions for the Group
is vested in the Board. Whenever the Board considers that
there may be a conflict of interest between the Group and
any Director, such Director will be required to abstain from
voting. Therefore, the Board is capable of carrying on the
Group’s business independently of, and at arm’s length, from
the business of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2022

The interests or short positions of the persons (other than a
Director or Chief Executive of the Company) in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO are as follows:
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MR-ZT-—F=A=+—H  BEKRD
FI3— R RIS BB 2 AYE
HE - ZBEEEHEELNR101,637F A
Ko WHBTE  BIESREBERBK -

AEBZEAPMERENEZTESS &
WAk EEEERRNELRAESH
AEBEANEERE  ZREEHENE
BE-Hit EFSEEBINEATFR
B L L MATERLTHEBMEER
KB X -

FERR

R-ZB-_F=A=+—H
ATAL(TBREERARRZ&ESTT
KA B)RAR BB M AARER D F A
RIBARRIAREHGD)E336EFE
ZER s AR

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREEIBIZEEREE
Corporate/ Shareholding
Name of Shareholders Personal interests Other interests percentage
EEEEW
REREE PN £ Hit iz BREDL
New Sense 487,608,000 - 24.12%
(Note 1) (FEE—)
Castfast Properties 5218 5 i 2 330,000,000 - 16.33%
(Note 2) (FifE=)
The Wedding City 14V 260,000,000 - 12.86%
(Note 3) (fizE=)
Honford Investments - 330,000,000 16.33%
(Note 2) (FfzE=)
TMF - 817,608,000 40.45%

(Note 4) (FI7EMY)
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Notes:

The entire issued share capital of New Sense was owned by TMF as
trustee for The Ho Family Trust.

87% of the issued share capital of Castfast Properties is beneficially
owned by Honford Investments. The entire issued share capital
of Honford Investments was owned by TMF as trustee for a
discretionary trust, The Ho Family Trust. The interests of Honford
Investments duplicate with those of the Castfast Properties.

260,000,000 Shares were beneficially held by The Wedding City.
90% and 10% of the issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu, respectively. The
interests of The Wedding City therefore duplicate with those of Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai referred to in Note 2 to the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares — (A) Interests in the Company”
above.

TMF is deemed to be interested in these Shares held by New Sense,
Castfast Properties and Honford Investments by virtue of acting as
the trustee for The Ho Family Trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, no person,

other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company,

whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief

Executive’s Interests in Shares” above, had an interest or short

position in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

100

B3

—+ New Sense Z & BB Z1TAR AN J5 B3 TMF A
{E7E The Ho Family Trusti 75 °

Z =REEBUWEEBITIRAZE7% A
Honford Investments & # # /& ° Honford
Investments 2 2 &P 2 Z TR AN J5 R TMF1E
B2 {E7EThe Ho Family TrustZ 5 A
78 ° Honford Investments 2 #& # £ 5z 12
BHE Z EmES o

B E 22455 260,000,00008 15 (5 < EE
BEITIEAR Z2.90% M 10% 5 Bl B ] ke 8 o A=
RAERZTE=ER ° Wit - B0 2
ERERAAEEEERA L EERES
THRABZ Bz — ()RR E 2
5 —EM S Pt RS A o

Mg~ TMF##R % LAThe Ho Family TrustZ X5EA
F 1 New Sense * 32185 i & & Honford
Investments T A (D R HE A ER ©

BREXREERESITBRABRIEER
EETBABZROEZR IFEEN - R
T F=A=1+—H YEALTHAE
RN Z D MAERERR (D 2 SRR
Mz SR B BIRBE(EFIED)E
3361§B T BT 2 B MATaEEE
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UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER RULE BELETRAFE1351B)KRIELEZES
13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES ERERH

Change of information of the Directors, which is required to ~ 1R¥& EMHRAIFE 13 51BN IEE THE 2
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules ~ ZEE& R ZEEFIAT

are set out below:

Name of Director

EEfS

Detail of Change
SBHE

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai
falle B S

Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia
ey N

Mr. Zhao Kai

Mr. Ho Kai Man
AR ST

Mr. Chan Raymond
RIS

annual salary increased from HK$4,736,400 to HK$4,784,400 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2021

F#H 4,736,400 T8 INE4,784,4008 T (TN EIERNEEL) - BT
——FtA—BEX

annual salary increased from HK$890,496 to HK$926,496 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2021
FHH890,496ETTIENE26,496B T (NEEMEEL) - BT —F
+tA—BEX

annual salary increased from HK$1,215,010 to HK$1,283,952 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2021
FHBH1,2150108TIEMNET,283,952 B (T REMERL) - BZF
T —FtEH—BAEX

annual salary increased from HK$468,000 to HK$480,000 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2021
F#rHh468,0007% 7T INZE480,000/8 T (M EEMEREL) - BT _—F
+tA—HBEX

annual salary increased from HK$1,032,000 to HK$1,068,000 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2021
F#H1,032,0008 7TIE M E 1,068,000 T (T RIEWMEEL) - BEZF
——FEA—HEHR
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

(M

102

On 23 March 2017, Dongguan Karrie Properties
Development Company Limited (RZE58IFHE FEH
fR 2 &) (a subsidiary of the Company) as borrower and
the Company, Castfast Industrial (Yan Tien) Limited and
Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited (a subsidiary of the
Company) as guarantors entered into a facility agreement
with Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited, whereby the bank
agreed to make available to the above borrower a term
loan facility up to RMB270,000,000 for a term of 48
months from the date of first drawdown.

The above facility agreement imposes, inter alia,
conditions that each of the above borrower and the
guarantors shall ensure and procure that (i) Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai and his associates together have and will maintain
not less than 65% direct or indirect shareholding in the
Company; and (ii) Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and his associates
will not create or permit to subsist (or agree to create) any
security over any of their shares in the Company without
the bank’s prior written consent.

On 18 March 2019, Karwin Engineering Company
Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) as borrower
(the “Borrower”) and the Company and a number of
its subsidiaries, namely, Castfast Industrial (Yan Tien)
Limited, Hong Kong Hung Hing Metal Manufacturing
Company Limited, Karrie Industrial Company Limited,
Karrie Technologies Company Limited and Dongguan
Feng Gang Castfast Metal & Plastics Company Limited
(RBHEBELBRB RS AR QA )as guarantors (the
“Guarantors”) entered into a facility letter (the “Facility
Letter”) with Hang Seng Bank Limited (the “Bank”),
whereby the Bank agreed to make available to the
Borrower a term loan facility up to HK$250,000,000 for
a term of four years from the date of first drawdown.

RiEETRBIE13. 21 EH 2 K E

(M
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—E—+E=A=+=H " KA 7
ZHBRARREERAIEERES
RARI(EREBRA) ARRKRR
REIZHMBRAREEEB2BR S
M A& R A 7 & Karrie International
(B.V.1) Limited ({E & ¥R A ) H 18
ERIT(PE) BRABIEILBE
& BWZRTREER LEMERS
Rt &% E AR 270,000,0007T 2
THEXRE  BEARKBEE
ABO+ @A -

taBmEHHTR  (EPEE) K
& LA E R RERARE B
R N fie 2 () AT f BB ST A2 e KB B A
BEARBEFHETDORARFH
65% B % S A B A R (i) 12
REREBBABITGEREZKIR
TEEAEERENBERLTITHREER
ARB 2z Pt 8RR E ML FF
HiFE(HRABIER) -

—E-NF=A+N\H ' XRAZ
B AREEME TRER AR (1E
BEFT)(EBRF)) REARARAR
HEHEKBAR  AERAZESR
hEMBERAR - BEHESBR
mBERAA - BENEMBRAR -
EARKEIHE AR AR ERER ME
REEBRRASER AR (EAER
AN TERADEBARITERAR
(TZBT DI LBE R ((HER
#1)  BUtZBITRERBERG R
&% %3%250,000,0008 L2 FHE
FEE - BEXRIRIRE B A
PO o



The Facility Letter imposes, inter alia, the Borrower shall
undertake and ensure that Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai shall not
pledge the Company’s shares without the Bank’s prior
written consent.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the above specific
performance obligations by the controlling shareholders
of the Company continue to subsist.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
March 2022 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 37%
Five largest suppliers combined 58%
Sales
The largest customer 28%
Five largest customers combined 69%

None of the Directors, their associates, or any Shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had a beneficial interest in
the Group’s major suppliers or customers noted above.

DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
Assuming that the final dividend is approved by the
Shareholders at the AGM, for the purposes of ascertaining
the entitlement to the final dividend, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 1 September
2022 to Friday, 2 September 2022 (both dates inclusive)
during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for the final dividend, all properly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 31 August
2022. It is expected that the final dividend will be payable and
issued to those entitled on or around Tuesday, 20 September
2022.
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E 0 MIEEBALETSEHRART
f&in o

RAFHREH - NR AR AR
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER
OF MEMBERS

To ascertain the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM
to be held on 26 August 2022, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 22 August 2022 to
Friday, 26 August 2022 (both dates inclusive) during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify to attend and vote at the AGM, all properly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19 August 2022.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on public
information available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
sufficient public float, being 25% of the issued share capital of
the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. KPMG
who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment.

A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Cheuk Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2022

BRREBFAEREEHEBFET

BETEALHEENR-_ZE=-__FNA
“THARBRTIBRERBFREIRE L
REZERN  ARBAEH_Z-_—_FN
AZ+ZR(EH-)EZT=_=F)\A
Z+ARB(ESR)(BREEEMA) =
BROHBFPELZFE - WZEEFRE
BEARSWRE LIRECZER  FIBEY
ZROEEHERBBA KRR - BRZ
T _FNAT+ALB(EHR) TF I
=T HHIRERRAREB RO BFZ
ENE BT RESFERERAA i
IHABBET 2R/ RNER183HE AL
1781712281716 F °

PBRERE
RAFHRTEBH - BEBEAQGESHA
FAERKBAARIESNE A alER
RANDNRIFRE - BT PR EMRAR
ENARARIEEITIRNEI25% °

A
AERZzREHESHESFIMELME
% R BERN M - A EBAREE
EREE -

ARBERRRBFAG L RS2 EH

ZEREAREE

AEEEDm

E

] = 18

BB —E-_FXA=-1++A

104 KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIREZERER QA



Independent Auditor’s Report

1B M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Karrie International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Karrie International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 116 to 285, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2022, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2022 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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B M B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BREETEH

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional — BAREFI EEDIRBES 2 FFEHE - R
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the AR¥NEGEMBREZEIRAETEZ

AT

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These ~— FIE o [ FERBEEAEEEHTEEBESH
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the HWmEREAERRETERE - EFTE
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming  #iELLFHEREHEF I ER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Timing of revenue recognition in metal and plastic and AEBBREFEFRIEB 2 WARR

electronic manufacturing services business

¥ [

Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements and — 2455 BIFEHRFZN 326 R AT :12(w)2 &

the accounting policy note 2(w).

The key audit matter
BRESEE

FHE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZETNAEREZEE

Revenue from sales of the Group’s metal and
plastic products and electronic products accounted
for over 76 percent of the Group’s revenue for
the year ended 31 March 2022. It is recognised
when the goods are delivered to the customer’s
designated location which is considered to be the
point in time when the Group transfers the control
over goods to the customers.

EREEHE_T__F=-A=+-HILFEHE
he RBRBEMMETEMIWABBBARS
Bzttt RRAGEREAEREFPIEE M
BB BERERERZENEEBRTPERER -

The Group's sales contracts with customers, which
principally comprise of large-sized international
technology corporations, have a variety of terms
and conditions. Such terms may affect the timing
of the recognition of sales to those customers. The
Group evaluates the terms of each sales contract
in order to determine the appropriate timing of
revenue recognition.

BEEEERF (X2ERARBERMRAR)FIL
ZHERAMNRE —RINRZEFR MG - ZF
FRAE e ERRYELEPEITHE LR
H - BERERESHESAIRRER 2 BRI
REBEWRAER 2 EERH

Our audit procedures to assess the timing of revenue
recognition included the following:

EERIBWAFER ZBHEZ BAIZFEENT ¢

—  obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the Group’s key internal controls
in relation to revenue recognition;

—  TEREE EREERNKRARERZRERANEHE
Bl RE - B lEEZBRIE

—  inspecting key customer contracts to identify
terms and conditions relating to goods
acceptance and assessing the Group’s revenue
recognition policies with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

— BREBREP A XS EEY RIS R 5K
FAgft - AR2REATEHEZEKGHE &
S B2 WAMERBIR

F o\

il
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BREER(A)
Timing of revenue recognition in metal and plastic and AEBBREFEFRRNIEB ZWMARER
electronic manufacturing services business (continued) R (4F)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EE BT NAEEZESE

The key audit matter
BREITER

We identified the timing of revenue recognition
in metal and plastic and electronic manufacturing
services business as a key audit matter because
each sales contract may have different terms and
conditions which increases the risk of error in the
recognition of revenue and because it is one of
the key performance indicators of the Group and
could be subject to manipulation to meet targets or
expectations.
BEFERSBRBRETERRIEHZWAER
ZEEYSRRETEE  AXHEANIABET
[RGB AR A - BRI AT BE S8 DN U A FE AR 85 AR 2 B
%o A - HAR BERBEES-IARREE
AR - AIRER B A RIRALAZA BRI -

comparing, on a sample basis, specific revenue
transactions recorded before and after the
financial year end date with goods delivery
documents and underlying sales invoices to
determine whether the revenue had been
recognised in the appropriate financial period;
and

ML BEFRAREARZ ARBEBAR S EE
FAHERE ME MmN - AEEMEBARAZ
BHEE 2 FHATARER &

inspecting underlying documentation for manual
journal entries relating to revenue raised during
the year which were considered to specific risk-
based criteria.
BEMEBERRRELEWAFTEZ FBHBA
SRt DB R o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Valuation of inventories

BARESEHE)
FEMfE

Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements and — 2[j4=5 B R FZ AT 145 B13E2(m)6).2

the accounting policy note 2(m)(i).

The key audit matter
BARESEE

BATEE ©

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZETTNAEEZEE

The Group is primarily involved in the manufacture
and sale of metal and plastic products as well as
electronic products.
BEEETERFRENFEER S RERBEMR - K
NEFEMR -

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The Group maintains its inventory
levels based on customer orders and forecast
demand.

FEERKAESRFE FACREERE &
EEREBRRE I ENMBRERERATFEKTE

A significant proportion of the Group’s products
are manufactured to meet specific customer
requirements. There is a risk that inventories may
be stated at more than their net realisable value if
a customer experiences financial difficulty or there
is a demand issue with a customer’s product that
includes a component manufactured by the Group.
EEBNARTBOEMSRMTABERF ZZXKM
& - MRFPHBRY R  XPZEME
ml BERERENAMN)FEFKEE - Al
REFE R EABBHE R #3RFESIR 2 AR

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
inventories included the following:

BEERFERECENIEFERATRIE

—  obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design and implementation of the Group’s key
internal controls over the process for assessing
provisions for inventories;

—  TENFE BEREABEMAEFEREREZE
Fr 2 RSt R BRE Sl 2 3t R E TS

- assessing whether the inventory items in the
inventory ageing report were categorised in
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing
individual items therein with supplier invoices
and other underlying documentation on a
sample basis;

—  ERMELER ﬁﬁ_m&E?MHF%X# AHETE
,\EE RREARNCFERA RO RBEEREE 2K
RIEZR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Valuation of inventories (continued)

The key audit matter
BREENER

BARESEHE)
FEMGEE)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EE BT NMEEZEE

Management assesses the level of provisions for
inventories required at each reporting date after
considering inventory ageing and other relevant
factors. This assessment involves significant
management judgement.
EREAEAFECRERIEMABRERR @ ©
FE¥HRE BFHEPIRFERR ZKF - ZHEY
REREEREHE -

We identified the valuation of inventories as
a key audit matter because the Group held
significant inventories at the reporting date and
because of the significant degree of management
judgement involved in evaluating the provisions
for inventories.
EFEFEREIRBARENZR - BS B5%
BRBEARBEREFRE  WREFEBEFEEE
Rpg K T EREIRE H T -

selecting inventory items, on a sample basis,
at reporting date and comparing their carrying
value to their subsequent selling prices as
indicated in sales invoices subsequent to the
reporting date;

MEEENREAZFERE - LBRAEKEER
HEBREERIELZEE

obtaining an understanding of the Group’s
inventory write-down policy and assessing
whether this policy appropriate with reference
to the Group’s current circumstances and the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

TR BEEBEZTFEMRMEBEE - WEHhZ
FERREZBINANERR BEREZERPRILR
BRITERERMER

comparing slow-moving inventories items with
customers’ orders and assessing the financial
condition of key customers on a sampling basis;
and

MR E PR FERHTERBETHER - UK
HEEEEPZMBIR « &

assessing the historical accuracy of management’s
process for making provisions for inventories
by examining the utilisation or release of the
provisions for inventories made at the end of
the previous financial year during the current
financial year.

BRERE et FERRFERERBZAF
B2 ERKERIER  HEEEEEREAEZE
ERER B RS AR -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

BRRESEHE)
BEZRVRR 2 AMEEERRE

Refer to notes 3(a)(iii) and 12 to the consolidated financial — Rj4xE B BHH M3 @) i) R T12 K
statements and the accounting policies notes 2(1)(i) and 2(n). BIsE200()3E R 2(n) 2 SFHETE °

The key audit matter
BARESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZETTNAEEZEE

The Group generates revenue from sales of
its products to customers in several different
jurisdictions such as the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), including Hong Kong, North
America, Western Europe and other Asian
countries.

EEEETEARANMB(THE]  BFEEE)
£k AL EMTMNBERERN 2 Z ENR DA
EERBBAETPHEEMELWA -

Customers located in different jurisdictions are
subject to different local risks (including political,
currency and interest rate risks) specific to those
jurisdictions in addition to the effects of the global
economic climate.

BREREBERRAZFZEI  URTRFDEAEER
ZEP e ER T RME 2 A R (B REUR R
% BEERNAERRR) -

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance for
trade receivables included the following:
EERESRURR AR EERRR B BT IERF
BREATSE :

—  obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design and implementation of the Group’s
key internal controls over the credit control,
collection of trade receivables, estimate of
expected credit losses and making of loss
allowance;

—  TEREHE EREABEEERS - BHRYGR
R E MIEEMEE BB At RIEHERRBE 2
FASRIE D 2 RET M E I

- evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating
the loss allowance for trade receivables with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standard;

— ZRRTEAENZER FE EREES
FEWERFR VB B R B < R
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

(continued)

The key audit matter
BREITER

BARESEHE)
EZRURNR 2 EMEEERRE(E)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EE BT MAEEZEE

Management assesses the loss allowance for trade
receivables required at each reporting date at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) after taking into account the ageing
and historical loss rate of trade receivables, the
repayment history of the customers of different
risk characteristics, current market conditions,
customer-specific conditions and forward-looking
information. Such assessment involves significant
management judgement and estimation.
EEETEEREESRWER Rk R E L EE
X AEEBRFREPERCE - ERTHIHIR
B BPZERBRMATEEE SR - NEER
SHAGAERERERABERXRERIVELZEH
SRWESR < BHEEERRE - ZBFEIR
BIEEFHEZHE MG -

We identified the ECL allowance for trade
receivables as a key audit matter because of the
significance of trade receivables to consolidated
statement of financial position and because of
the significant degree of management judgement
involved in evaluating the adequacy of the loss
allowance for trade receivables.

FEESRRERZAREEBREEY S
&%E%E R E P RBRRE 76 B ISR
RZEXM - UNHER ZBRERFN 2 BERE
LIRS RERNZ EIZREH6 -

assessing whether items in the trade receivable
ageing report were categorised in the appropriate
ageing bracket by comparing individual items
therein with sales invoices and other underlying
documentation on a sample basis;
%ﬂ%ﬁmfﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ AHEE
HIEBERF R REAN 2THE REWRENEE
Z BRERAER

obtaining an understanding of the key data and
assumptions used in the ECL model adopted
by the management, including the basis of
segmentation of trade receivables, the historical
default data, and the assumptions involved in
management’s estimated loss rate; and
TRNEIEEMER 2 RHMEERIREE  ATE
Az BARBENRE  ETERESRURERZ
DRER BLEOXRNEEBRAREBEER 2
Ba&

assessing the appropriateness of management’s
estimates of loss allowance by examining the
information used by management to derive
such estimates, including testing the accuracy
of the historical default data and evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current economic conditions,
client specific conditions and forward-looking
information.
BEEEEERBANTEKAEER - BREZE
ELW@FZEE&&%ﬁFEEE$%E&V
EREERN - BEFERALAEEESEE
mﬂ%*M&ﬁEEEHJZ%E%ﬁZ@E
1 o
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

A TTEIR)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
control.

BB ET R M BRRAEZEE

BEZRR  RUBSYVBHRRERED
PFERRRGEF AR M BB BRFHER
RS S BRE  YHAREESESR
ZRBMRE - BERRBBERE1981
FARBPEFIF IR ZIRE - (EREEERK
RE - RSN BEZMETABE
Hipfigk - BEMARAREZAR -
EREMALTEESRIBEREE -

BEARIFLES/NFZRE - ETERER
R(EABTEIDET 2 ET > &R &
REERR AR BRI - $ERRERIA]
ABBGFE R G - IR AR BRI T
BB fE AR R AT RE R B AR A I G R AL
FEARREM R FTE L 2 E&FRE - Bl
B2 SRR AT R AREE X
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

114

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

(&)
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Independent Auditor’s Report

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5% &2RE5 -

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yuen Man Ching.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAZ&TTI7R)

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
—E=-= —E—F
=A=+—H —A=+—H
(Restated)
(B&E75)
(Note 2(b))
(FF5E2(b))
Note $’000 $/000
B T Tt
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R KRR 6 688,260 519,602
Investment properties REME 7 332,961 317,420
Intangible assets EREEE 8 4,840 6,350
Investment in an associate KRBt N T2 IRE 10 21,265 19,266
Other financial assets EhamEE 13 29,216 26,401
Other non-current assets EMIERBEE 12 43,077 10,849
Deferred tax assets REFIBEE E 24(b) 189,991 108,034
1,309,610 1,007,922
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 14 778,366 391,072
Property development and contract 123 & K& RIpLA
costs 15 1,268,088 1,110,917
Trade and bills receivable 2 5 REBREWRK 12 605,903 658,268
Prepayments, deposits and other TR 'E R
receivables Hth e W AR X 12 138,946 83,726
Amounts due from related FEW FEE N A BRI
companies 34(b) 39,952 515,945
Current tax recoverable ZKER AT U O] § I8 24(a) 1,153 200
Pledged deposits BIREmR 16 84,539 1
Restricted deposits IR HITERR 17 397,961 275,785
Cash and bank deposits B& KIBITIFER 17 441,548 387,053
3,756,456 3,422,966
Total assets EEHAE 5,066,066 4,430,888
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

me M BMRRER

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZTTHIR)

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
=A=+-—H =—A=+—8H
(Restated)
(B&E5)
(Note 2(b))
(FF3E2(b))
Note $’000 $/000
BT Frx Tt
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable ~ XA TERFE A
to equity shareholders of the iR R #FE
Company
Share capital %N 18 202,131 201,244
Other reserves Hibf#E 20(a) 98,202 363,569
Retained earnings R 20(a) 1,396,219 1,131,893
Total equity EREE 1,696,552 1,696,706
LIABILITIES =F
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B HEMNERR 21 375,951 340,424
Accruals and other payables FESTE A I A,
FETRRFR 21 1,143,981 846,010
Bank borrowings RITEE 22 738,434 301,010
Lease liabilities HEBE 23 7,942 2,594
Amount due to an associate JE{T B R R BR K 10 1,532 1,669
Amounts due to related companies  FE{JBH:E A RIARK 34(b) 3,664 4,032
Current tax payable NEARE IR 24(a) 607,122 606,113
2,878,626 2,101,852
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAZ&TTI7R)

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
=A=+—H —A=+—H
(Restated)
(B&E5)
(Note 2(b))
(FzE2(b))
Note $’000 $'000
5 T Tt

Non-current liabilities FkREBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 22 462,750 616,456
Lease liabilities HEBE 23 12,634 1,141
Provision for long service payments RHAAR TS & 4 25 6,241 9,149
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIBEEE 24(b) 9,263 5,584
490,888 632,330
Total liabilities EBEE 3,369,514 2,734,182
Total equity and liabilities ERREaEEE 5,066,066 4,430,888
Net current assets REBEEFE 877,830 1,321,114
Total assets less current liabilities EBERZAERAHERS 2,187,440 2,329,036

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson ~ RZZE__F XA ++HHREEGIE

27 June 2022. N -
Ho Cheuk Fai Chan Ming Mui, Silvia
= BR 4 Ik
Director Director
EF 3

The notes on pages 128 to 285 form part of these financial ~ $128Z%2858 Z Mist BAM K 2 —
statements. & o
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

N AL 32
mEBEmK
For the year ended 31 March 2022 ##Z —ZF - —F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TF1) 7R )

2022 2021
—E=— —E—F
(Restated)
(B2&%)
(Note 2(b))
(FFEE2(b))
Note $’000 $’000
B5E F 7
Revenue WA 26 4,013,434 3,472,798
Cost of revenue L OND TN 27 (2,865,071) (2,526,421)
Gross profit EF 1,148,363 946,377
Distribution and selling expenses 788 K& 85 % & 27 (43,559) (46,456)
General and administrative —MRITHER
expenses 27 (149,451) (159,714)
Other income/gains HMUA ek 26 10,769 2,601
Valuation gain on investment REYEGERE
properties 7 1,967 1,184
Operating profit reERA 968,089 743,992
Finance income BFEU A 17,067 11,379
Finance costs BAFE AR (14,738) (7,975)
Finance income, net WA - BEE 29 2,329 3,404
Share of profits of an associate FE 556 X R)) A 10 1,164 1,487
Profit before taxation BRELATRR 971,582 748,883
Income tax Fri5#i 30 (422,480) (303,555)
Profit for the year FERF 549,102 445,328
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#Z =2~ —F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA/&7TI7R)

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
(Restated)
(B2&5)
(Note 2(b))
(KMtEE2(b))
Note $’000 $000
Bt eE Fr TIT
Earnings per share attributable ARTERFEA
to equity shareholders of the PGB BORF
Company
Basic earnings per share BREAER (BL)
(HK cents) 31 27.2 22.3
Diluted earnings per share BERsRER GBW)
(HK cents) 31 27.2 22.1

The notes on pages 128 to 285 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set

out in note 32.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

2 A2 3L

meEakHMAEZEBR AR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIZ —ZZ__F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TF1) 7R )

2022 2021
—E-= —EF
(Restated)
(B2&E3)
(Note 2(b))
(MH5E2(b))
Note $’000 $’000
ks Fr T
Profit for the year FERA 549,102 445,328
Other comprehensive income for FEHMEMEWA :
the year:
Items that will not be reclassified to T & E# 7 4HE 152
profit or loss: EH :
Remeasurement of provision for REPRGSEHZ
long service payments BHEE 25(b) 2,934 (671)
Changes in fair value of other HiveMEENFHEZ
financial assets & 20(a) 2,256 (488)
Items that may be reclassified Hi& e EF DAL
subsequently to profit or loss: B2 IBA -
Exchange differences on translation 1258 &8N E 7501 75
of financial statements of RFTEEZHBER
operations outside Hong Kong 20(a) 67,792 79,866
Transfer to profit or loss upon HERMEREE
disposal of other finance assets EE AR 20(a) - 12
Changes in fair value of other HttemEENFEZ
financial assets BE) 20(a) 56 (9)
Other comprehensive income for FEHMEMEUA
the year 73,038 78,710
Total comprehensive income for ~ FEZHENAEE
the year 622,140 524,038

The notes on pages 128 to 285 form part of these financial

statements.

F128E285 B 2T ARG BEIHREK 2 —
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERERS R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIZ —Z__F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA/&7TI7R)

Share Other Retained Total

capital reserves earnings equity

R EfthfE RERN ERE
(Note 18)  (Note 20(a))
(Ftstie)  (MER20()

Note $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
i T T T T
Balance at 1 April 2020 as previously ~ HMEAZH-B-FE
reported MmA—-Hz&e 199,384 193,400 782,916 1,175,700
Adjustments for combination using merger StER &G & RETAEH
accounting (note 2(b)) Eha GRS S 81,798 118,317 200,115
Balance at 1 April 2020 as restated Z2-ZFNA-ACES
P 199,384 275,198 901,233 1375815
Changes in equity for the yearended ~ BE=ZB--F=B=1-H
31 March 2021 (restated): HFEREZB(EES) :
Profit for the year FREA - - 445,328 445,328
Other comprehensive income Hib2EWA - 79,381 (671) 78,710
Total comprehensive income el ONCE < 79,381 444657 524,038
Dividends paid in respect of the previous 2k EFERE
year 32(h) - - (99,882) (99,862)
Dividends paid in respect of the current ~ EIRAFEHRES
year 32(a) - - (90,335) (90,335)
Distribution by Jiaxuntong* to the HETWER 2 BB
controlling shareholder of before EHRR
the Acquisitions - - (23,000) (23,000)
Appropriation of statutory surplus reserve T 284G & - 780 (780) -
Issuance of shares upon exercise of share ~ 17 E& R IER 1Tk (D
options 18(c) 1,860 8,210 - 10,070
Balance at 31 March 2021 (restated) —E--%#=ZfA=+-H
2t (EES) 201,244 363,569 1,131,893 1,696,706

* R sea M B K E AR A F(“)iaxuntong”)
HemamBENERBRAR([ZRE]
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ReEmBER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 ##Z —ZF - —F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TF1) 7R )

Share Other Retained Total

capital reserves earnings equity

B Rtk RERMN RGAE
(Note 18)  (Note 20(a))
(F=18)  (H&E20@)

Note $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i r r r r
Balance at 1 April 2021 (restated) “E--FMA-AZER
(BE5)) 201244 363569 1,131,893 1,696,706
Changes in equity for the year ended BE-Z-_f¥=A=1-H
31 March 2022: LEERERT !
Profit for the year ERE - - 549,102 549,102
Other comprehensive income HEp2EBA - 70,104 2,934 73,038
Total comprehensive income PEMALE - 70,104 552,036 622,140
Dividends paid in respect of the previous 2k EFER S
year 32(h) - - (141,259) (141,259)
Dividends paid in respect of the current ~ BIRAFERE
year 32(a) - - (110,952) (110,952)
Equity settled shared-based transactions AR 24225 19(d) y 3,768 - 3,768
Acquisition of subsidiaries under common i H£EE | 2 HE 1 7
control - (45,725) - (45,725)
Assumption of debt liabilities arising from R B W R 2
the acqisition of Jiaxuntong (EUZE S 20(c)(ii) - (331,533) - (331,533)
Appropriation of statutory surplus reserve T & # B - 32,526 (32,526) -
Repurchase of shares BERH 20(c)(iv) - (3,011) L (3,011)
Cancellation of shares ki 20(c)
(iv)&(v) (188) 3,199 (3,011) -
Issuance of shares upon exercise of share T BRI TRk (7
options 18(c) 1,075 5,343 - 6,418
Release upon lapse of share options R KRR E 19(b) T (38) 38 -
Balance at 31 March 2022 ZE--E=A=+-H
P 202,131 98202 1396219 1,696,552

The notes on pages 128 to 285 form part of these financial ~ Z128%2858 2 it AR #EiRE 2 —
statements. #Ba e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AN Ao~ —}
mEEERER
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIZ —Z__F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA/&7TI7R)

2022 2021
s —E-—F
(Restated)
(B2&75)
(Note 2(b))
(P EE2(b))
Note $000 $'000
Bt EE Fr Tt
Cash flows from operating RETHRERE
activities
Profit before taxation BR A5 A& A 971,582 748,883
Share of profits of an associate JEAR B S N R)A A 10 (1,164) (1,487)
Depreciation and amortisation of ~ #13%€ ~ B/E K&k 2
property, plant and equipment s Kt i 6 97,118 88,453
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ #EfZ & E 2 B K 8 1,548 1543
Equity settled share-based AR S5 2 22 5
transactions 19(d) 3,768 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant &Y% - #iFE &
and equipment Rz W 26 (1,158) 271)
Reversal of write-down of obsolete B & K% $517 B H#UR 2
and slow moving inventories [o] 4 (396) -
Recognition of loss allowance for 8 5 N EEREWIR
trade and bills receivable B R R s 2 tERR 12 2,002 X
Loss on disposal of other financial ~H&EHEMERIEE 2
assets E1a 26 - 690
Provision for long service payments & BifR#5& % 25(b) 290 318
Valuation gain on investment KREMEMERS
properties 7 (1,967) (1,184)
Interest expenses MEXH 29 14,738 7,975
Interest income FEHA 29 (17,067) (11,379)
Foreign exchange loss HINESBE H B 1R 38,073 10,098
Operating profit before working ~ #EESBEHA -
capital changes carried forward RERNEE 1,107,367 843,639

124 KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIZ —ZZ__F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TSI7R)

2022 2021
- —FT-—F
(Restated)
(B&E3)
(Note 2(b))
(FifEE2(b))
Note $’000 $'000
ks Fr T
Operating profit before working ~ ABIEELESBEAT =
capital changes brought forward &% 57| 1,107,367 843,639
(Increase)/decrease in inventories  F&2 (3%H0),SF (386,898) 137,793
Increase in property development — #1Z# & LA RIKAZ
and contract costs N (116,167) (90,398)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B NEEEKRRZ
bills receivable B, () 50,711 (358,160)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, JFB[I3K * & KHAM
deposits and other receivables FEN R 2 (3Ehn),/
DR (54,958) 1,521
Decrease in amount due JEMBE R RIBR R
from related companies e 180,097 945
Increase in trade payables B RN ZE M 34,830 49,151
Increase in accruals and other FEH & A S H A
payables BRI Z 1B N 286,161 124,269
Decrease in amount due to an FETHS R RIBRZ
associate b (137) (2,414)
(Decrease)/increase in amount due JEfSRE R RIRRZ
to related companies OB,/ (428) 3,400
Net cash generated from REELEZFRS
operations 1,100,578 709,746
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBMEH (27,033) (22,589)
PRC tax paid A B (524,650) (122,857)
Long service payments paid ENREREE 25(b) (264) (58)
Long service payments refunded RERPRBE 25(b) - 56
Net cash generated from operating E&EFEEL ZFEESE
activities 548,631 564,298
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIZ —Z__F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA/&7TI7R)

2022 2021
—E2=-= T —F
(Restated)
(B2&75)
(Note 2(b))
(P EE2(b))
Note $7000 $'000
Bt EE Fr T
Cash flows from investing activities REFE2HERE
Payment for the purchase of BEYX  BELRE

property, plant and equipment Z R (254,110) (72,454)
Payment for additions to investment RNEI&EYIF 2 I

properties 7 90) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, H&E®Z « HFE &

plant and equipment R PTIFRN 1,183 440
Proceeds from disposal of other HERMESREEL

financial assets FiSak - 6,116
Payment for acquisition of other BEHMWTREELZ

financial assets (DB - (13,767)
Payment for acquisition of BERVEE MK

intangible assets 8 (38 -
Interest received BB 16,690 10,956
Net cash used in investing activities REEEFHZFHRE (236,365) (68,709)
Cash flows from financing activities & FE 2 HERE
Interest paid EARHLE 17(b) (36,454) (36,991)
Payment for the repurchase of [l B AR 7 2 17 3K

shares 18(b) (3,011) i
Proceeds from new bank MIRITIEE Z P

borrowings 17(b) 792,683 322,557
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIIETEE 17(b) (517,702) (372,552)
Capital element of lease rental paid EASTHHEMRE 2

BREH 17(b) (5,151) (3,985)
Interest element of lease rental paid EfHEHRE 2

MEEB R 17(b) (678) (219)
Payment for acquisition of Yo i F2 7Tl 8 M Kar Info

Jiaxuntong and Kar Info International Z {5 5%

International (45,725) —
Dividends paid 2IRAE (252,211) (190,217)
Distribution by Jiaxuntong to the 3 T HE AT 2 2518

controlling shareholder of before IR R

the Acquisitions - (23,000)
Increase in pledged deposits BT 1B (83,164) -
Proceeds from issuance of shares  1T{LEEAR &2 1 TAR (D

upon exercise of share options 28R 18(c) 6,418 10,070
Net cash used in financing activities BEEEFTH ZFRE (144,995) (294,337)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 ##Z —ZF - —F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TF1) 7R )

2022 2021
—=E== —E-—F
(Restated)
(B2&751)
(Note 2(b))
(MH5E2(b))
Note $’000 $'000
ks Fr T
Net increase in cash and cash ReRAEEEBYZ
equivalents RN 167,271 201,252
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHzHREREL
beginning of the year ZEW 662,838 439,669
Effect of foreign exchange rate IMEERSH ZTE
changes 9,400 21,917
Cash and cash equivalents at the FERZREERES
end of the year £EY 17 839,509 662,838

The notes on pages 128 to 285 form part of these financial ~ #128E2858 2 Mist R AT Bz 2 —

statements.

85 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR Y

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)

1

128

GENERAL INFORMATION

Karrie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in:

- Metal and Plastic Business (“M&P”): providing
mechanical engineering solutions, manufacturing
and sales of metal and plastic parts, mainly
including moulds and the relevant plastic and metal
parts products for information and communication
technology industry, etc.;

- Electronic Manufacturing Services Business (“EMS”):
manufacturing and sales of magnetic tape data
storage, point-of-sale system, and other computer
peripherals, etc.; and

- Real Estate Business: urban renewal, residential real
estate project investment and development.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda on 29 October 1996. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 December 1996.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in unit of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise
stated.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AT HRAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

2 EEETEX

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 2(d) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

(@

8 {52 B

T wERIVRBERBERZ
FeMBREEN([EBME
HEEA]) HEBEEEE
GEEMAE([BRERAA
BB ABERNER &
B BmERER - BBERTE
A([EREFTER ) HEERE
AR e RAINEE(AF]
RO TR EMAREL ° e F
BRI AMRMES £H
MANT EWRA ) 2@ A%
HE - AEBRAZERES
BERAEHINT -

BEGMASERMHEZIAS
BB ELER ZER] - AN
AEERARF 2 NGt HHE
B IR AT AR R IR o
AE2(d) iR A & V) e A % B
AEBFRTERMRAES
HiE B et I 2 B S
RAZERTHRREE 2 EFY o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR Y

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

130

(b)

Merger accounting and restatements

On 28 January 2022, Benefit Master Limited
(“Benefit Master”) (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into an
acquisition agreement (“Kar Info International
Acquisition Agreement”) to conditionally
acquire the entire issued share capital of Kar
Info International Property Limited (“Kar Info
International”) from Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (“Mr. Ho”)
at a nominal consideration of US$100 (equivalent
to $775).

On the even day, KRP Development Company
Limited (“KRP”) (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into another
acquisition agreement (“Jiaxuntong Acquisition
Agreement”) to conditionally acquire the entire
equity interest of R A EKEmRAR QA
(“Jiaxuntong”) from Kar Info Property Limited,
which is wholly-owned by Mr. Ho, at a
consideration of RMB38,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$45,600,000) or its Hong
Kong dollar equivalent. The difference between
the consideration paid and the book value of the
acquirees is recognised in the merger reserve.
Under the Jiaxuntong Acquisition Agreement, it
is also agreed to assume the amount due from
Dongguan Jiale Enterprise Development Company
Limited (“Dongguan Jiale”) owned by Jiaxuntong,
in the amount of approximately RMB276,278,000
(equivalent to approximately $331,600,000). This
amount is recognised in the merger reserve on the
completion date of the acquisitions.

The details of the acquisitions of Kar Info
International and Jiaxuntong (the “Acquisitions”)
are more fully explained in the circular named “(1)
Major and Connected Transaction — Acquisition
of Kar Info International and Acquisition of the
Target Company and (2) Notice of special general
meeting” published by the Company on 31 January
2022. The circular is available on the Company’s
website and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited's website.

2
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2 EESTHEERE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Merger accounting and restatements (continued)
The Acquisitions were completed on 8 March
2022 and the Company has become the ultimate
holding company of both Kar Info International and
Jiaxuntong. As the Company, Kar Info International
and Jiaxuntong are ultimately controlled by
Mr. Ho before and after the Acquisitions and
that control is not transitory, there would be a
continuation of the risks and benefits to Mr. Ho and
therefore the Acquisitions should be regarded as
a business combination of entities under common
control, Accounting Guideline 5 (“AG5”), Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations,
issued by HKICPA has been applied. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been therefore prepared using the merger basis of
accounting as if the current group structure had
been in existence throughout the periods presented.
The net assets of the companies comprising the
Group have been consolidated using the existing
book values from the perspective of Mr. Ho.

Comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or
businesses had been combined at the beginning of
the comparative period.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income include the results of
combining entities or businesses from the earliest
date presented. The effects of all transactions
between the combining entities or businesses,
whether occurring before or after the Acquisitions,
are eliminated.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted
when preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

(b)

BOETREBEAIEREN(E)
WEEBERN_T-__F=AN
AR - A RIE K AKar Info
International X Z&fli@ & B 2
B RYER A A] o B Kar Info
International & 52 sl :BR U iE =
T {& 9 R ] 5 AR 1 )
Bz G IEE R - At
fA] S5 A R A5 4R 2 [RL B B2 )
#= o A WEEEERR R
HEZHIER2EZBEH - B
EHRAEASGHAAGE M
ZirE5|E5% ([ 585 $5
BRI ERIZESIEHE st
BRI | o it - ANEBZERE R
BHREREFEREHSHEER
2 BB R EERBERE
25 HE—BEFE - %
EzAE - REBETRRAE
e EEFERAREGEREE
HEITERE AR o

REMBRR LB RBIZH
B R EBCRELEHEY)
Hapt25 -

REFEEVEHHAEHE
AEBHERIBKRIZESE
E(MEREERE)  AHE
BERNEBEEANEK T
BEEHERBIEBLHZIRS
ZFBYIH o

D &

I

KRBT & I TS R E R
—ER—ZERTHBR -
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EESTEERGE)
(b) Merger accounting and restatements (continued) b) EHETEEAZEREDN(E)
The effects of the application of merger accounting HEE_T_—F=HA=+—H
on the consolidated statement of financial position IFFEZFe MBI RERE

132

as at 31 March 2021 are as follows:

DB RIE A T

Asat  Adjustments
31 March for As at
2021 combination 31 March
as previously  using merger 2021
reported accounting as restated
MEEAE O
WMERE®R GFEESE T —F
—T-—F avitEl =A=1+—H
—HA=1+—H 2 A 2 &5
$000 $/000 $000
Tt 7T W
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and M - W MR

equipment 519,498 104 519,602
Investment properties & &Y 317,420 - 317,420
Intangible assets BIVEE 6,350 - 6,350
Investment in an REtZE N ZIRE

associate 19,266 - 19,266
Other financial assets HithSmEE 26,401 VA 26,401
Other non-current assets HAthIERENE & 10,849 - 10,849
Deferred tax assets RIER TR & B 1,696 106,338 108,034

901,480 106,442 1,007,922
Current assets RBEE
Inventories rE 391,072 = 391,072
Property development  #5# & & & RIKA

and contract costs 1,064,989 45,928 1,110,917
Trade and bills O YSESEY LGN

receivable 658,268 — 658,268
Prepayments, deposits ~ FEfITZR ~ #2& K E A

and other receivables JE U AR 3K 83,583 143 83,726
Amounts due from FE UK B8 N R BR K

related companies (PEEG))

(note (i) 131,082 384,863 515,945
Current tax recoverable  ZNEfA] Y [6] ¢ 18 200 . 200
Restricted deposits PR IR 275,785 - 275,785
Cash and bank deposits & K IRITIF 5K 144,978 242,075 387,053

2,749,957 673,009 3,422,966
Total assets HWEE 3,651,437 779,451 4,430,888
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EESTHEEGE)
(b) Merger accounting and restatements (continued) (b) EHEFEREFZEIREIE)
Asat  Adjustments
31 March for As at
2021 combination 31 March
as previously  using merger 2021
reported accounting as restated
MEAE O
WMEREW GFERLZE T —F
—T-—fF AOHEE =ZA=+—AH
—A=+—H Z P 2 &7
$'000 $/000 $'000
T T T
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves EATERFEA
attributable to equity  FE{LRR AR &
shareholders of the
Company
Share capital AR 201,244 - 201,244
Other reserves H bl 272,066 91,503 363,569
Retained earnings REB T 957,309 174,584 1,131,893
Total equity ERAE 1,430,619 266,087 1,696,706
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables B I EMNERK 340,424 - 340,424
Accruals and other FEETE R R EMER
payables BRX 803,798 42,212 846,010
Bank borrowings RITIEE 301,010 ~ 301,010
Lease liabilities HERE 2,594 - 2,594
Amount due to an FETHE & R A IR
associate 1,669 - 1,669
Amounts due to related  JEfSEEE R RIBEK
companies 4,032 - 4,032
Current tax payable ANERFE B I8 134,961 471,152 606,113
1,588,488 513,364 2,101,852
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EEEHBX#E)

2

134

(b)

Merger accounting and restatements (continued) (b) EHEHEERFERESE)
Asat  Adjustments
31 March for As at
2021  combination 31 March
as previously  using merger 2021
reported accounting as restated
SLEE R A B
WMERIZHR SHEERE T —F
—F-—F aftEH =R=+—H
=RA=+—H Z A g257
$000 $000 $000
T T FIT
Non-current liabilities  JEFREIEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 616,456 - 616,456
Lease liabilities HERE 1,141 N 1,141
Provision for long REIRTE © %6
service payments 9,149 - 9,149
Deferred tax liabilites ~ IEEFIAEE 5,584 - 5,584
632,330 - 632,330
Total liabilities EE8E 2,220,818 513,364 2,734,182
Total equity and EEREERE
liabilities 3,651,437 779,451 4,430,888
Net current assets REEEFE 1,161,469 159,645 1,321,114

Total assets less current EEAERAE
liabilities =L 2,062,949

266,087 2,329,036

Note:

(i) The amount due from Dongguan Jiale of approximately
RMB276,278,000 (equivalent to approximately
$331,600,000) was settled by debt assumption as part
of the consideration in pursuant to the Jiaxuntong
Acquisition Agreement as set out in note 2(b), and the
amount was debited to the merger reserve on the date
of completion of the Acquisition on 8 March 2022 as
set out in note 20(c)(ii).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

BESERE)

b) EHEHEEFEREN(E)
WHE-_ZE-_—F="A=+—
AIrFEZmeaEaRkERE
HEIREFEZFENT ¢

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2
(b) Merger accounting and restatements (continued)

The effects of the application of merger accounting

on the consolidated statement of profit or loss for

the year ended 31 March 2021 are as follows:

For the
yearended  Adjustments For the
31 March for year ended
2021  combination 31 March
as previously  using merger 2021
reported accounting as restated
WERIZE®R  MEREH T —F
—T- % gFtREINE ZA=1—H
=RA=+—H B HHEL IFFE
IFFE Z R 2 &3
$000 $000 $000
T T Tt
Revenue A 3,192,617 280,181 3,472,798
Cost of revenue PN % (2,478,560) (47,861)  (2,526,421)
Gross profit EF 714,057 232,320 946,377
Distribution and selling 785X HE & A
expenses (32,239) (14,217) (46,456)
General and administrative —f% %17 & A
expenses (152,472) (7,242) (159,714)
Other income/gains HMWA Wz 2,601 - 2,601
Valuation gain on BREYEAEKS
investment properties 1,184 - 1,184
Operating profit A 533,131 210,861 743,992
Finance income B 4,613 6,766 11,379
Finance costs LURVIDIN (7,975) - (7,975)
Finance income, net BIREUWRA - BER (3,362) 6,766 3,404
Share of profits of an JEAE TS E A 7]
associate Vi ) 1,487 < 1,487
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2 EESTHEERE)
EERERERES(E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b)

Merger accounting and restatements (continued)

(b)

For the
year ended  Adjustments For the
31 March for year ended
2021  combination 31 March
as previously  using merger 2021
reported accounting as restated
WERIZ®R  HMEREH T —F
—Fo—F eftmEBTEA ZA=t—H8
=A=+—H B HHEL FFE
IFFE Z A 257
$000 $000 $'000
T T T
Profit before taxation  BRFLATEFI 531,256 217,627 748,883
Income tax Frig#t (165,975) (137,580) (303,555)
Profit for the year FERA 365,281 80,047 445,328
Earnings per share RRBESEFEA
attributable to equity  FE{EERER
shareholders of the
Company
Basic earnings per share ZREAEF]
(HK cents) (F84l) 18.3 4.0 22.3
Diluted earnings per BERSRER
share (HK cents) (784) 18.2 3.9 22.1
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(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

IR MIEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

EZEHBERA)

b) EHEHEELERES(E)
BEE—_T_—F=-A=1—
ALFEZGABRRREMBS
HRAKRERAFEARIES

Merger accounting and restatements (continued)

The effects of the application of merger accounting
on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31

March 2021 are as follows:

R BT -

For the
year ended  Adjustments For the
31 March for year ended
2021  combination 31 March
as previously  using merger 2021
reported accounting as restated
WERIZ®  MEMREH 2T —F
—T-—F GF@EBE =ZA=1—H
=A=+—H B HHEL FE
HEE Z 2 &7
$'000 $000 $000
=i T T
Profit for the year FERA 365,281 80,047 445,328
Other comprehensive ~ FEHMEEKA :
income for the year:
Items that will not be TEE TR Em
reclassified to profitor ~— ZIEH -
loss:
Remeasurement of RERBSEERZ
provision for long BEHEE
service payments (671) — (671)
Changes in fair value of Efh &gt &EE N A
other financial assets pd - (488) - (488)
Items that may be HZr gt BF DR
reclassified HBm R -
subsequently to profit
or loss:
Exchange differences on #EEBINEREI 15
translation of financial &R FTEHE 2 7R
statements of operations ZE£
outside Hong Kong 70,941 8,925 79,866
Transfer to profit or loss & EM S ELE &=
upon disposal of other — BEEE{Ez
finance assets 12 - 12
Changes in fair value of Hh&gt&EE N A
other financial assets ZEE 9 - 9)
Other comprehensive ~ FEHMEEUWA
income for the year 69,785 8,925 78,710
Total comprehensive FEZXHBALEHE
income for the year 435,066 88,972 524,038
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2 EESTEXRE)

2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Merger accounting and restatements (continued)

(b)

The effects of the application of merger accounting
on the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
ended 31 March 2021 are as follows:

EHEHEESFEREN(E)
WHE-_ZE-_—F=-"A=+—
RIFrFEZHmaReREaRE
BeHetRE T AZFEN
T

For the
year ended  Adjustments For the
31 March for year ended
2021  combination 31 March
as previously  using merger 2021
reported accounting as restated
WEHIZE®R  BMEREH T —F
—EBC—F gitE®BAE ZA=+—H
=RA=+—H B HHEL FE
HFE R 2 &7
$000 $000 $'000
T T T
Cash flows from RETHHRERE
operating activities
Profit before taxation B AR A 531,256 217,627 748,883
Share of profits of an FE(RER R R A
associate (1,487) - (1,487)
Depreciation and Mm% -~ BB KR
amortisation of e K
property, plant and
equipment 88,245 208 88,453
Amortisation of B EE 2
intangible assets 1,543 - 1,543
Gain on disposal of HEYE - BE R
property, plant and R 2 ek
equipment 271) - 271)
Loss on disposal of other H&EHMEFEE 2
financial assets Eia 690 - 690
Provision for long service AR & %M
payments 318 - 318
Valuation gain on REMFRGEERS
investment properties (1,184) - (1,184)
Interest expenses MEZ WM 7,975 - 7,975
Interest income HEHBA (4,613) (6,766) (11,379)
Foreign exchange loss ~ JMNEHE 7 518 3,355 6,743 10,098
Operating profit before #E& B E AT 2 &
working capital BRI E
changes carried
forward 625,827 217,812 843,639
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EEREHEE#E)

(b) Merger accounting and restatements (continued) b) EHEHEESLREL(E)
For the

year ended  Adjustments For the
31 March for year ended
2021  combination 31 March
as previously  using merger 2021
reported accounting as restated

WSR2 3R FEEAA O —E-—F
—E—F @xEEsE =ZA=1+—H

=—A=+—H AHHEL IEFE
IEFE Z B&7
$’000 $’000 $’000
T+ T T+
Operating profit before FEFI&EESBEA
working capital ZRERR
changes brought
forward 625,827 217,812 843,639
Decrease in inventories 1752 J# 4 137,793 - 137,793
Increase in property YRR 2 SN
development (198,512) 108,114 (90,398)
Increase in trade and bills & 5 & Z 5% fE U BRE 7k
receivable ;i (358,160) - (358,160)
Decrease in prepayments, JB 58~ &% R H A
deposits and other RN R TR 2 B
receivables 1,375 146 1,521
(Increase)/decrease in R EEENTIRA
amount due from (3%n) @A
related companies (158,123) 159,068 945
Increase in trade payables & 5 fE{T AR K2 15 41 49,151 - 49,151
Increase in accruals and JEFT& & Efb &L
other payables AR Z I8N 396,366 (272,097) 124,269
Decrease in amount due JE{JEEE A FIERINZ
to an associate B (2,414) - (2,414)
Increase in amount due  FEfSBAE A RIERF 2
to related companies N 3,400 - 3,400
Net cash generated from F&EL ZFHE
operations 496,703 213,043 709,746
Hong Kong Profits Tax B &BHSH
paid (22,589) _ (22,589)
PRC tax paid BRI (15,597) (107,260) (122,857)
Long service payments BT REARS &
paid (58) . (58)
Long service payments  RERHARB S
refunded 56 - 56
Net cash generated from & EFEES >
operating activities FES 458,515 105,783 564,298
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2 EESTHEERE)
EERERERES(E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Merger accounting and restatements (continued)

(b)

140

(b)

For the
year ended  Adjustments For the
31 March for year ended
2021  combination 31 March
as previously  using merger 2021
reported accounting as restated
WERIZ®R  EMREH T —F
B % @itE®AE ZA=+—H
=A=+—H BHHEL IFFE
B R 2 &7
$000 $000 $'000
T T Tt
Cash flows from RETHZHERE
investing activities
Payment for the purchase BB Y3 - M/E K&
of property, plantand &2 15k
equipment (72,454) - (72,454)
Proceeds from disposal ~ HEMZE  BFE k&
of property, plantand &2 FT1S3K
equipment 440 - 440
Proceeds from disposal ~HEEMESEIEE 2
of other financial assets ~ FT1S X 6,116 - 6,116
Payment for acquisition HEEHMEHMEE 2
of other financial assets <tk (13,767) - (13,767)
Interest received EHFE 4,190 6,766 10,956
Net cash used in REZBRAZ
investing activities FRE (75,475) 6,766 (68,709)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EERETERE)

(b) Merger accounting and restatements (continued) b)) EHEHEEALZREDN(E)
For the

year ended  Adjustments For the
31 March for year ended
2021  combination 31 March
as previously  using merger 2021
reported accounting as restated

MEMSH BEMat —T-—&
“E-oF i A=A

—A=+—H aHER IEFE
IEFE T 2 &7
$'000 $/000 $'000
T+ T T
Cash flows from METBZ2RERE
financing activities
Interest paid SR (36,991) - (36,991)
Proceeds from new bank ¥TiRTTEE Z TS
borrowings 322,557 - 322,557
Repayment of bank ERRTEE
borrowings (372,552) — (372,552)
Capital element of lease BEfJHEM T2
rental paid BRI D (3,985) - (3,985)
Interest element of lease BEfHAERE 2
rental paid NS (219) - (219)
Dividends paid EIRAR 2 (190,217) - (190,217)
Distribution by DETWER
Jiaxuntong to the Al @z HIARER

controlling shareholder

of before the

Acquisitions - (23,000) (23,000)
Proceeds from issuance  1T{E B ARIER T TAX

of shares upon exercise 17 Z FT153K

of share options 10,070 - 10,070
Net cash used in METEFAZF

financing activities Be (271,337) (23,000) (294,337)
Net increase in cashand HERRLZEY 2

cash equivalents BN 111,703 89,549 201,252
Cash and cash FUzHEeRES

equivalents at the EEY

beginning of the year 297,482 142,187 439,669
Effect of foreign SINEEREH I HE

exchange rate changes 11,578 10,339 21,917
Cash and cash FRZAERES

equivalents at theend E &Y

of the year 420,763 242,075 662,838
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

142

(9]

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022 comprise the Group and
its interest in an associate. The measurement basis
used in the preparation of the financial statements
is the historical cost basis except for investment
properties, other financial assets and employee
benefit liabilities which have been measured at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

2

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA

EREHBERE)

(o

MEBRRZEREE
HE-_ZT-_—_F=-A=+—H
IEFE AN RREER
EEREBENRER o AN
BHRERARLKAERFE
BEREER - HIREWE - HM
TREENETIRAMEBERIN
NFEE °

RUENEBEMHRELERZ
MEBRRFEZEEEFLH
B ARTREREFERRLZ
ERNEE B WARX
M2 @Bz 2% - WEMRFTR
MR RER I RE & M H A
EREBRABEREEZER
ERIKIE - RAREEBEMTT
ERGHEREHAECEENME
EHEEREE  BRAEART
REBRIR L FfhaT o

HEHERENBREFER
A o REBRZEFHAFT R
IR - EERRZHE
R HEBRTERF LK
KEIRE - HERRERRE K
NI EAEIERR o

EEERNEAEBMBREE
AMIEHR B AMBHRERAEKR
TEBZ Y TEEEEER
IRERH 4R ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

AT HRAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

2 EESTHEERE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group.

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s result and financial
position for the current or prior periods have
prepared or presented in this financial report.
The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows, and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains,
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

(d)

(e)

BRBEED

FEGH SR RHZER
AEEZ AT HEERER
BB BIMEERZERT -

EASRLIEE ININENT Py =N
SAEHIRMARELZEIZAK
SEEE RV HARIL EE KR
FE - REBYBERKBEARN
GEtHIM R R ER 2 EAIFH
RN REE

MYE AR R ERER
B~ R fE AR EBIES 2
B -EXAKERENUEREE
BEXRESEREREH A E
Bl - WEEMEE N UZE
ZEOR - AIREEHRER
BRI - ARHEAKEEER
BEGIER - RABG RN R
SEREMTABEE)REE
ESES

KB A R Z R E R EUSES
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of
a financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests” proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

BASBTLFIR)
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2 EESTHEERE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

®

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
(see note 2(f)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(I)(ii)).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post-acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see note
2(I)(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

(e)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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®

Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to $nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method,
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investees, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)).
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2 EESTHEERE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(®)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
The Group’s and the Company’s accounting policies
for investments in debt and equity securities, other
than investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are
initially stated at fair value, which is their
transaction price unless it is determined that the
fair value at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by
a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL") for which transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss and where
indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending
on their classification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities

2

148

(continued)

(i)

Investments other than equity investments
Non-equity investment held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

Amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Interest income
from the investment is calculated using
the effective interest method (see note
2(w)(iv)).

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) (recycling), if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.

FVPL, if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g Other investments in debt and equity securities

(continued)

(if)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is
not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the other financial assets revaluation reserve
until the investment is disposed of. At the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the other financial assets revaluation reserve
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends
from an investment in equity securities, if any,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or
FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other
income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

150

(h)

@)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see note 2(j)) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change in
fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (including
right-of-use assets and land use rights) are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation or
amortisation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Gain or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Construction-in-progress represents buildings, plant
and machinery under construction and pending
installation and is stated at cost. Cost includes the
costs of construction of buildings, the costs of plant
and machinery, installation, testing and other direct
costs. No depreciation is made on construction-in-
progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When the
assets concerned are brought into use, the costs are
transferred to other property, plant and equipment
and depreciated in accordance with the policy as
stated in below.

Depreciation and amortisation is calculated to
write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives. The annual rates used for the
calculation of depreciation are:
— Land use rights and Over the lease term
leasehold land

—  Buildings 2% to 4%

—  Fixtures and leasehold 8% t0 33.33%
improvements

- Machinery 6.67% to 20%

- Tools and equipment 15%

- Furniture and computer 15% to0 33.33%
equipment

- Properties leased for Over the lease term

own use

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2

2

152

()

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i) Asalessee
Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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2 EESTHEERE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see notes 2(i) and 2(1)(ii)).

The initial fair value of refundable rental
deposits is accounted for separately from the
right-of-use assets in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to investments
in debt securities carried at amortised cost
(see notes 2(g)(i), 2(w)(iii) and 2(I)(i)). Any
difference between the initial fair value and
the nominal value of the deposits is accounted
for as additional lease payments made and is
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

154

()

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification. The only exceptions are
rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B
of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
has taken advantage of the practical expedient
not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognised the
change in consideration as negative variable
lease payments in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the
rent concessions occurred.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, The Group presents right-of-use assets
that do not meet the definition of investment
property in “property, plant and equipment”
and presents lease liabilities separately. The
current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the principal portion of
contractual payments that are due to be settled
within twelve months after the reporting
period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the
lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note
2(w)(iii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR Y

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2
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(k)

U]

Intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by
the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(1)(ii)).
Operating rights acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives.

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on the
following items:

—  financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and bank deposits,
restricted deposits, trade and bills
receivable and prepayments, deposits
and other receivables);

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15
(see note 2(0)); and

- debt securities measured at FVOCI
(recycling).

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including debt securities and equity securities
designated at FVOCI (non-recycling), are not
subject to the ECL assessment.
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(i)

Notes to the Financial Statements

AT HRAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present values of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5% &<RBE5 -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2
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Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

—  12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

—  lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model

applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5% &2RE5 -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when
(i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held) or (ii) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractual due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);
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B RS SRR Y

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5% &<RBE5 -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2
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Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

and contract assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the fair value reserve (recycling).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AT HRAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2(w)(iv) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Groups assess
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

—  significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
or

—  the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EESTHEEGE)
()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) I FEBBREEZREEGE)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments i)y &EMIEBERANEEZE
and contract assets (continued) BEEB(E)
Basis of calculation of interest income FEWAZGTEELE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR Y

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

2

162

0]

(i)

(if)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

—  intangible assets;

-  goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial

position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AT HRAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EESTHEEGE)
()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) ) FEFEREEZREE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) (iiy HMEBEEZRE(E)
Calculation of the recoverable amount — WREEEBEZFER
P
The recoverable amount of an asset is BEZIJKREEEBR
the greater of its fair value less costs of HRAHER AL EK
disposal and value in use. In assessing ASEREEZEZ

value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR Y

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

164

0]

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(if)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

—  Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2(I)(i) and 2(I)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of other financial assets are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of another
financial asset increases in the remainder
of the annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AT HRAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

2 EESTHEERE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Inventories and other contract costs

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value as follows:

(i)

Manufacturing

Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
method and comprise all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sales.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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B RS SRR Y

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)

2

(ii) Property development

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

2 EBEESHEEKE)
m) BEERESRBRAKRE)
(i) YIEERE

166

Cost and net realisable values are determined
as follows:

—  Property under development for sale
The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of
land, aggregate cost of development,
materials and supplies, wages and other
direct expenses and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling
price less estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in selling the

property.

—  Completed property held for resale

In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group, cost is
determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development
project, attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less costs to be
incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for
sale comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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(iii)

Notes to the Financial Statements
B #% 3R 2R Y =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer
or the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer
which are not capitalised as inventory (see
note 2(m)(i) and (ii)), property, plant and
equipment (see note 2(i)) and intangible assets
(see note 2(k)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain
a contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained (for example, an incremental sales
commission). Incremental costs of obtaining
a contract are capitalised when incurred if
the costs relate to revenue which will be
recognised in a future reporting period and
the costs are expected to be recovered. Other
costs of obtaining a contract are expensed
when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract
or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract; generate or enhance resources that
will be used to provide goods or services in
the future; and are expected to be recovered.
Costs that relate directly to an existing contract
or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract may include direct labour, direct
materials, allocations of costs, costs that are
explicitly chargeable to the customer and
other costs that are incurred only because the
Group entered into the contract (for example,
payments to sub-contractors). Other costs of
fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised
as inventory, property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.

EREHBEE)
(m) FERERKAE(E)

(iiiy BERAA

Hib AR ARNERE
B EERAKBITR
FAHZKA » EXEE
M AFE (RKTEE2m)i)
(i) ~ W% - BER&
#H(RMEE2>)) mp &

B (RPRE2(k)

MBAHZIBERAR/AR
SEREEPAHNME
£ HARERES AR
SELEZRA(PIINEE
HEME) - HBEBKE
AN S T
MR - MR AN TEHI AT UL
@ ARG EHZIEEX
AREERGRAER -
MB A2 B AEE

R o

BITEHZRAERIL
E A SR SR A SR R £
B R 2 ER ¢ A&t
UL E o BIRA A A9k
FEABANEHEOER
M2 XA RE B IR E &
AT BEME - RAD
fic - AR &P UELZ A
RARERAREBETLA
0 B A 2 Bl A AR (15
me Mo BENR) - E
TR EMAARCRIE
REE - ME - BEMR
BREVEEERL)E

BERTAER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 3%

167



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR Y

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2
(m) Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

2

168

(n)

(iii) Other contract costs (continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Impairment losses are recognised to the
extent that the carrying amount of the contract
cost asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining
amount of consideration that the Group
expects to receive in exchange for the goods
or services to which the asset relates, less
(ii) any costs that relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not yet been
recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue
to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is
set out in note 2(w).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset (see note 2(0)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the

effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2()(i)).

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA

EREHBERE)
m) FERERKAE(E)

(n)

(i) HEttERMAA(E)
BE XA HIp AR A
R SR EE B S
IR - EAHKAEERB
W ANEEBHEARBREE
RS & G 3k AR 7% M A5 L ER
Z RABEREER i) m R R
ATz BEEREREZE
Bk RSB EE 2 K
N2 FEER - BRREE

18 e

RY= RN AN D)DFN:Fi2)S
EREEMBWARIE
BmAMER - WAERZE
AR E P RE2(w) ©

85 R HE bW AR

PR RR RN AR R B R AR 1
REM AT U AR BB T ABERR -
i B ERERS IR Bl & XA
ZHAEAS - RIRERACE Z A
REGT - WRaE RN ARE
BREERTERKEZACE
B AR EEVNRENEE
(RFEE2(0)) ©

JE U BR B AE P B IR A KRR
EERRETEERATIR(R
BEEE2(D@)) °



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5% &2RE5 -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 2(w)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(I)(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has
become unconditional (see note 2(n)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see note
2(w)). A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 2(n)).

For a single contract with the customers, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented
on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
note 2(w)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expenses is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 2(y)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR Y

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

170

(q)

(r

(s

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value, and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(I)(i).

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AT HRAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

2 EESTHEERE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(if)

(iii)

Pension obligations

Group companies operate a defined
contribution plan under which the Group pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Retirement plan — Long service payments
The Group’s net obligation in respect of
long service payments to its employees
upon the termination of their employment
or retirement when the employee fulfils
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior
periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR Y

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

172

(6]

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Retirement plan - Long service payments

(continued)

The obligation is calculated using the
projected unit credit method, discounted to
its present value and reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group's retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by
the Group. The discount rate is the yield at
the end of the reporting period on high quality
corporate bonds which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related liability.
The actuarial gains or losses are credited or
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in
the current period.

Other compensations

Other directors’ and employees’
compensations are recorded as a liability
and charged to profit or loss when the Group
is contractually obliged or when there is a
past practice that has created a constructive
obligation and the associated services are
rendered by the employees.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AT HRAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

2 EESTHEERE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(®

Share-based payments

The Company operated an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the
Company received services from employees
in return for the granting of equity instruments
(options) of the Company. The fair value of share
options granted to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

-  including any market performance conditions;

— excluding the impact of any service and
nonmarket performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

— excluding the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to the original estimates,
if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

The cash received for the shares issued when the
options are exercised is credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium, net of any
directly attributable transaction costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR Y

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

174

(®

(u)

Share-based payments (continued)

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to employees of a subsidiary in the
Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair
value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment
in the subsidiary, with a corresponding credit to
share-based compensation reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is included in the
amount recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AT HRAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

2 EESTHEERE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR Y

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

176

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair values in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(h), the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is
depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale. In all other cases,
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

2

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA

EREHBERE)

(u)

Frig®i (&)
EREDEERRBRME20zE
AABERARFED® - ERZ
BREBIAS R ENZ2RRY
HEBAREAELEERN R
AHE BRIERRMERAATE
FA—BERATE - Mk
2 B o R AR £ R
MERET A 2Bz - M
FRHE  -ERNHEMEE @ B
EMIBZ St EENA A TE
REEIRNABZKREE -
NmEHRERMHERNLD
M2 BERFE - BEHRIRE
ERBEDTERR

EETIAEE 2 REERSE
HEHRETRE - FEHLR
B R SR T A LA B 5 40
L RIS OR R AL R B E
B MBRBRIEESENZ
PR A+ BIRZFIR A 15 =
% o

Rk 55| BUZ BIINPT 15 F5 X e
REBERE 2N EER TIA
FERR. ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

AT HRAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

2 EESTHEERE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

v)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,

the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,

if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR Y

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

178

(v)

(w)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to
settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, a separate asset is recognised
for any expected reimbursement that would be
virtually certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of
the provision.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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AT HRAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Revenue and other income (continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income
is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does
not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)  Sales of manufacturing goods
Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised
when the customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. Any advance payments
received from customers prior to delivery of
goods are recorded as contract liabilities (see
note 2(0)).

In the comparative period, revenue from sales
of manufacturing goods was recognised when
the goods are delivered to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and the
related risks and rewards of ownership and
collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Revenue and other income (continued)

2

180

(if)

Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties
developed for sale in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the property
is accepted by the customer, or deemed as
accepted according to the contract, whichever
is earlier, which is the point in time when the
customer has the ability to direct the use of
the property and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits of the property. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are
included in the statement of financial position
under contract liabilities (see note 2(0)).

If any advance payments received from
the buyers are regarded as providing a
significant financing benefit to the Group,
interest expense arising from the adjustment
of time value of money will be accrued by
the Group during the period between the
payment date and the completion date of legal
assignment. This accrual increases the balance
of the contract liability during the period
of construction, and therefore increases the
amount of revenue recognised when control
of the completed property is transferred to the
customer. The interest is expensed as accrued
unless it is eligible to be capitalised under
HKAS 23, Borrowing costs, in accordance with
the policies set out in note 2(y).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

2 EESTHEERE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii) Rental income from operating leases

(iv)

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
under the effective interest method using
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2(1)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expenses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2
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(x)

Translation of foreign currencies

(i)

(if)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on
which the Group initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

2 EESTHEERE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(y)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(i) Transactions and balances (continued)
The results of operations with functional
currency other than Hong Kong dollars are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into Hong Kong dollar
at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional
currency other than Hong Kong dollars,
the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(z) Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

2

184

(a)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same Group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a Group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

2 EESTHEERE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(2

(aa)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a Group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

3

186

(@

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Group’s
Finance and Accounting department (“Group F&A”)
under policies approved by the Board of Directors.
Group F&A identifies, evaluates and mitigates
financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The Board is responsible
for overall risk management which covers currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative
financial instruments and cash management.

The Group’s exposure to the aforesaid risks and the
financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(i)  Currency risk

The Group operates primarily in Hong Kong
and the Mainland China and most of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in HK$, United States
dollars (“US$”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).
Currency risk arises from commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations
that are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’s functional currency. As
HK$ are pegged against US$, management
considers that the Group is mainly exposed
to foreign currency risk with respect to RMB.
Management will continue to monitor foreign
exchange exposure and will take measures
to minimise the currency translation risk. The
conversion rate of RMB to foreign currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC
Government.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& SA#BASN » LABTTHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUEOF 3 BiBEREERESMIAATE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (%)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued) (@ HMBEBRERGE)
Currency risk (continued) (i) SMERER(E)
The following table details the currency TREFFARREERE
portfolio of the Group’s monetary assets/ BUREEBUIINLER
(liabilities) denominated in a currency other REMZEREEE
than the functional currency of the entity to (BE)2EHES - BRI
which they relate. For presentation purposes, R - UEE 2 RN
the amounts of the portfolio are expressed in MEHRNPER A -
HKS$, translated using the spot rate at the end A ABTLHIR -
of the reporting period:
At 31 March 2022
“E--"F=ZRA=1+-H
HK$ Us$ RMB Others
BT EYH ARH Hit
$'000 $'000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Tr Tr
Trade and bills receivable & 5 K& EUIR K
and other receivables A YRR - 572,876 1,441 10
Other financial assets HinemiE - 19,514 - 9,702
Cash and bank deposits 316 RIRITIFH 4,229 96,110 2,133 1,507
Amounts due from FEWRBRE A RIBR X
related companies - - 636 -
Trade payables BHRMNER - (252,708) (42,112) (68)
Accruals and other FESTEARAMER
payables BRI - (108,832) (133) -
Amounts due to related  ERIEAEA AIHRR
companies - - 3,611) -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUEOF 3 HEEREERSBHIAATE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)
(@ Financial risk factors (continued) (@ HBRBERE)
(i)  Currency risk (continued) (i) SNERER(E)
At 31 March 2021 (Restated)
—E--%=A=+—-H(EEJ)
HK$ US$ RMB Others
BT E AR Hith
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000
T T T T
Trade and bills receivable E 5 & EHEEUERR
and other receivables RE A R . 638,194 952 32
Other financial assets HinemEE - 18,956 - 7 445
Cash and bank deposits 31 RIR1TFH 4,842 79,078 332 870
Amounts due from FEW HE A AR
related companies - - 604 -
Trade payables ECESA - (247,915) (19,118) (76)
Accruals and other FEET B R KA
payables FERERER - (81,994) (13) -
Amounts due to related  FE{STBEE A RIER
companies - - (3,566) -
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3 MHREREEREMIANTE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

At 31 March 2022, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year and retained earnings would
have decreased/increased approximately
$1,735,000 (2021 (restated): $890,000
decreased/increased), mainly as a result of
the net foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of Renminbi-denominated trade
and bills receivable and other receivables,
cash and bank deposits, trade payables and
amounts due from/to related companies.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained earnings) and other
components of equity that would arise
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rate of HK$ against the RMB had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk, including
inter-company payables and receivables
with the Group which are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies
of the lender or the borrower. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2021.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF 3

3
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MEEREEREMIANTE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (#&)
(@ Financial risk factors (continued) (@) HBEEBEER(E)
(ii) Interest rate risk (i) FIZ=JE
Monetary assets/liabilities acquired at variable VATE B R X% [B] 5 7| R B
rates and at fixed rates expose the Group AZEBEEE AE®
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value AEBSFIHHRERE
interest rate risk respectively. The Group's M= R LA TFERNEE
interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings B o AN 2 I = L 2K
and bank deposits which are primarily issued BHFZNFEMRER
at variable rates. ZIRITEERIRITER
The following table details the interest rate RN REHRANE
profile of the Group’s interest-bearing assets ERREERAGENEZ
and liabilities at the end of the reporting B
period:
At 31 March 2021
At 31 March 2022 (Restated)
I — “F-—f=A=1-H
=R=1-H (BE71)
Effective Effective
interest interest
Note rate $'000 rate $000
i BRAIE Tr BEREANX T
Fixed rate interest-bearing EERZ&EEE,/
assets/ (liabilities): (BF):
Deposits with banks with = A ERHH 2
3 months or less to FITHEH
maturity when placed 17 0.42% 18,000 0.14% 8,432
Key management ERERERRAN
insurance contracts 13 2.01% 19,514 2.01% 18,956
Lease liabilities BEARE 23 513%  (20,576) 4.32% (3,735)
Variable rate interest-  FBFIRBELEE/
bearing assets/ (BfR):
(liabilities):
Pledged deposits ERER 16 1.61% 84,539 - -
Restricted deposits KRR 17 1.63% 397,961 1.61% 275,785
Cash at bank BITER 0.01% 422,227 0.01% 377,020
Bank borrowings RITEE 22 2.94%  (1,201,184) 351%  (917,466)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

(if)

Interest rate risk (continued)

At 31 March 2022, with all other variables
held constant,
increased/decreased by 50 basis points, the
corresponding increase/decrease in interest
expenses on bank borrowings and interest
income from bank deposits at variable rates
will result in a net decrease/increase in the
Group’s post-tax profit by approximately
$491,000/$2,560,000 (2021 (restated):
decrease/increase by $566,000/$2,414,000).

if the interest rate had

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained earnings) and other
components of equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period
and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. In respect of the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group at
the end of the reporting period, the impact
on the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
earnings) and other components of equity is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense or income of such a change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2021.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3

192

(@)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(iii)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group and
is managed on a Group basis. The Group's
credit risk mainly arises from financial
assets and deposits with banks and financial
institutions, as well as credit exposures to
customers, including outstanding trade and
other receivables. For banks and financial
institutions, only independent parties with
high credit rating are accepted.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. There is a concentration
of credit risk in respect of trade and bills
receivable as the Group’s sales are made
primarily to a few key customers. At 31 March
2022, the trade and bills receivable from five
largest customers accounted for approximately
86% (2021: 91%) of the total trade and bills
receivable.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 90 days from
the date of billing. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

AATLIIR)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables

Credit risk in respect of other receivables, the
Group monitors the exposures and manages
them based on historical settlement records
and past experience, current conditions and
forecast of future economic conditions.

Amounts due from related parties

Credit risk in respect of amounts due from
related parties are limited given that the Group
assesses and closely monitors their financial
conditions and the related parties have
sufficient reserves of resources to settle the
amount as they fall due. Therefore, the ECL
allowance is considered insignificant.

Cash and bank deposits (including restricted
deposits and pledged deposits)

The credit risk on cash at banks (including
restricted deposits and pledged deposits)
is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies.
Transactions in relation to derivative financial
instruments, if any, are only carried out with
financial institutions of high reputation. The
Group has policies that limit the amount of
credit exposure to any one financial institution.
Cash and cash equivalent are normally placed
with major licensed banks. Management
does not expect any of these licensed banks
or financial institutions to fail to meet their
obligations.
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(@

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUEOF 3 B EAREERERMTI AN FE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (%)
Financial risk factors (continued) @ HBEBEEE)
(iv) Liquidity risk (iv) REBESREK
Prudent liquidity risk management implies BEHZRDESERER
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability ERARZRERS AR
of funding through an adequate amount of RERBZEEMEER
credit facilities. The Group aims to maintain APAES - NEBLKE
flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines BORFEERSAEE
available at all times. NEFECHEZE)
Mo
The table below analyses the Group's financial ATIERDTAREBRZ &
liabilities classified into relevant maturity MAE  ZARKRARS
groupings based on the remaining period at the HRZEAKNTIEBEATH
end of the reporting period to the contractual BASEEEHEI A
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the Bl e RAFBBECERE
table are the contractual undiscounted cash HWARBRZIERE - A
flows. Balances due within twelve months RER Z ZEXTERX -
equal their carrying balances as the impact of W+ AEARE HﬂZm
discounting is not significant. FRELE BRE{EEE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRERFTRAER
Between Between
Carrying  Less than 1and 2 and
amount 1 year 2 years 5 years Total
FEE SR-F -EZWF ZEIF At
$'000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr T T Fr Fr
At 31 March 2022 R-B-—F
=A=1-H
Trade payables BHEMNER 375951 375,951 £ - 375951
Accruals and other  EETER REMER
payables BRI 1,143,981 1,143,981 - - 1,143,981
Amounts due to related FEfTEIE R RIRRH
companies 3,664 3,664 - - 3,664
Amount due to an FEfE S R AlAR L
associate 1,532 1,532 - - 1,532
Lease liabilities HEARE 20,576 8,800 7,926 5346 22,072
Bank borrowings RITEE
— without repayable on —#BREKER
demand clause ESN 1,151,228 715,667 181,511 297,378 1,194,556
—with repayableon  —KiBZREREE
demand clause &R 49,956 24,014 6,192 1,281 31,487
2,746,888 2,273,609 195,629 304,005 2,773,243
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& SA#BASN » LABTTHIR)
3 HKEREERSMIAANTEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (continued)

(#&)
(@)

(iv)

MBEREER(E)
REBETEME(E)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BRATRRE R
Between Between
Carrying  Less than T and 2and
amount 1 year 2 years 5 years Total
BEE AIR—F —EWF ZZEhfF CEiS
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
At 31 March 2021 RZT_—F
(Restated) =B=+—H
(BE51)
Trade payables B HENER 340,424 340,424 - - 340424
Accruals and other  FEFTER R EAM
payables FERTERTL 846,010 846,010 - - 846,010
Amounts due to related &/ BEE 1 BIHR A
companies 4,032 4,032 - - 4,032
Amount due to an FETH & A RIBR K
associate 1,669 1,669 - - 1,669
Lease liabilities HEaRE 3,735 2,690 1,006 167 3,863
Bank borrowings RITREE
— without repayable on — R BRERER
demand clause fE3K 895,558 307,401 628,850 3,770 940,021
~with repayable on  —HIEERER(ER
demand clause f&sx 21,908 8,300 8,151 6,015 22,466
2,113,336 1,510,526 638,007 9,952 2,158,485
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3

196

(b)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for equity
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the net gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total bank
borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and bank
deposits (including pledged and restricted deposits).
Total capital is calculated as the total equity as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

3
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& SA#BASN » LABTTHIR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUEOF 3 B¥EREEREBRTIAATEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (#&)
(b) Capital risk management (continued) b ELEREE(E)
The Group’s strategy, which is unchanged from REB 7 REGHREFAE - B
prior year, is to maintain an acceptable net gearing FEBFIEI 2 FRITEE
ratio. The net gearing ratios at 31 March 2022 and R RZB__FK_F
2021 are as follows: T —F=RA=+—HZ2FET
BELERNT
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
(Restated)
(BEE5)
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Total bank borrowings IRITEERS 1,201,184 917,466
Lease liabilities HEaE 20,576 3,735
Less: Cash and bank deposits o IR MBI TIERR (441,548) (387,053)
Restricted deposits PR I 1F X (397,961) (275,785)
Pledged deposits B (84,539) -
Net borrowings FEE 297,712 258,363
Total equity AR E 1,696,552 1,696,706
Net gearing ratio FIRITIEEL X 18% 15%
(c) Fair value estimation () 2AFEMEE

The carrying value less impairment provision
for trade and bills receivable, other receivables
and trade and other payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair value
of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that
is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

B 5 ERBEEKERIOREER
Bk EMRUERNES
KREMEMNERZERESE
BIMERVE - FREEHR
B MBAREAFEZ AR
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REERAAE o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3

198

(0

Fair value estimation (continued)

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

—  Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level
2).

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The Group has a team headed by the Assistant
Accounting Director performing valuations for the
insurance contracts which are categorised into Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy. A valuation report with
analysis of changes in fair value measurement is
prepared by the team at each interim and annual
reporting date, and is reviewed and approved by the
Chief Financial Officer. Discussion of the valuation
process and results with the Chief Financial Officer
is held twice a year, to coincide with the reporting
dates.

3
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MEEREEREMIANTE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(9]

Fair value estimation (continued)
The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring

3

(#&)
(o

DFEMEF(E)
RZE-__F#=RA=+—8"
AREBAKE SRR AT ER

basis at 31 March 2022: EEWIEMEENT -
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
$’000 $’000
Frx Tt
Assets: BE:
Level 1 F—E
— Listed equity securities (note 13)  — _ETREZH
(MI7E13) 9,702 7,445
Level 3 E=[=
— Key management insurance —EZTEERRAEL
contracts (note 13) (BF5E13) 19,514 18,956
29,216 26,401

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is
included in Level 3.

EREMSERECEMT AL
NFERBERER 2TIHRE
SR - REBREZEREE
ZHISREREFETRE -
HETABRES B -

BAERRMEEEZ M T
B (PIgsMTE T A) 2 2F
BENMA{ERMETE - HER
iR & F M A B R TS8R
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st E—emI Az AFEM
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF 3

MEEREEREMIANTE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)
(c) Fair value estimation (continued) (c) DAFEMFE)

Specific valuation techniques used to value ARG ESRTAZFEMRE

financial instruments include: BB

-~ Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for — REEWIAZTSEHREL
similar instruments. R HEWRE -

—  The fair value of structured foreign exchange — EBEINEEHMERZA
forward products is determined using Monte ﬁfﬁﬂﬁﬁ%i@‘fzﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Carlo simulation, taking into account of BT EERIAMERZ
observable market parameters such as forward 528 Pl ERE B
exchange rates, volatility and interest rates at ZEHE R - ORE KA
the reporting date. X o

—  Other techniques, such as discounted cash —  HME - fImBAIRIRE
flow analysis including dividend growth MEDN  BREKREER
model, are used to determine fair value for the B - AAETE#R SR
remaining financial instruments. TEZRAFE-

There were no transfers of financial assets/liabilities %— F_HE=-—FERATEE

between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value ToEzHITESMEE,/ 8

hierarchy classifications. 1?2%%

Information about Level 3 fair value BEE=ZB R VEFSEER

measurements

Significant
Valuation unobservahle Weighted
techniques inputs Range average
fhER i FTRREAUE il MET 9%
Key management insurance contracts  Discounted Discount rate 2.0%-2.01% 2.01%
cash flow model (2021: 2.0%-2.01%) (2021:2.01%)
ERERERRAY BRREREL  HEX 2.0%-2.01% 2.01%

200 KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA

(

S (Z2=-%:
2.0%-2.01%) 2.01%)



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 58 585 -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(0

Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of insurance contracts is determined
using the discounted cash flow model. The
duration of the cash flows and the specific
timing of inflows and outflows are determined by
conditions in accordance with the terms of the
respective insurance contracts. The periodic cash
flow is estimated as gross redemption value and
interest income less surrender charges. The series
of periodic net income for the contracting periods
is then discounted. The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to the discount rate. As
at 31 March 2022, it is estimated that with all
other variables held constant, a decrease/increase
in discount rate by 1% would have increased/
decreased the Group’s other comprehensive income
by $2,675,000 (2021: $2,796,000).

3
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2,796,0007T) °

The movement during the year in the balance FAZEFE—EBRTEFEZ
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as AR @JXZDT
follows:
2022 2021
== T
$’000 $000
T T
Key management insurance BEEEEERREA
contracts
Beginning of the year F1) 18,956 19,629
Additions NE - 5,833
Disposal HE i (6,794)
Interest income recognised in profit Bz IR 2T S A
or loss 377 423
Exchange gain/(loss) recognised in A 1Bz R 2 [E i,
profit or loss e sk, (fEi8) 125 (126)
Fair value gain/(loss) recognised FARREM 2 ERA
in other comprehensive income R A EKE,
during the year (B8) 56 9)
End of the year FIK 19,514 18,956
There were no fair value losses or gains for the years RZEZZFRZF—F=

included in profit or loss for these assets held at 31
March 2022 and 2021.

A=T—HAMKBAEEEL LA
N ERGRERBERENED

A o
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4

202

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates may be

different from the actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities in future years are discussed below.

(@

(b)

Expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables

The Group maintains a loss allowances of trade
receivables measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL of receivables stated at amortised cost.
The loss allowance is estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factor that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date. If there is a change in the financial
condition of the debtors, actual write-offs would be
higher or lower than estimated.

Write-down of inventories

Inventories are written down to the net realisable
value based on an assessment of the realisability
of inventories. Write-downs on inventories are
recorded where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be realised. The
identification of write-downs requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value and write-downs of
inventories.

4
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group’s chief operating decision-maker
(“Management”) reviews the Group’s internal reports
periodically in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating
segments based on these reports.

The Group is organised on a worldwide basis into three
(2021: three) major operating segments. They are (i)
metal and plastic business; (ii) electronic manufacturing
services business; and (iii) real estate business.

Management considers the business from both a
geographic and products and services perspective.
From a products and services perspective, Management
assesses the performance of metal and plastic business,
electronic manufacturing services business and real estate
business. In addition, there is further evaluation on a
geographic basis (Japan, Hong Kong, Mainland China,
Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and Mainland China),
North America and Western Europe). Management
assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on operating profit. Segment information provided
to Management for decision making is measured in a
manner consistent with that in the financial statements.

A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is not
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management and accordingly, no segment assets or
liabilities information is presented.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.
Segment profit is defined as the operating profit generated
from the reportable segment before finance income,
finance cost, share of associate profit and income tax
expense with inter segment profit being excluded.

5

7 R
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HEENDIEER - EIREIAZLE
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B RERt - SN(TEEREAR -
FELBERM) « LM R FEE)
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KAzoWER ZAET BB
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HTIFEE BERATERE -
B - A mEF HHEELAEE
#to

\

WARRXTI2EZE N BMEL
ZHEBMZEDBRMELEZHAX
FEZED M2 EEFTESHEM
EEZEMAXDOETEAIZ28RD
2B D EDR A Z EE ST YA
BAFSAR AN ~ FEARES & 2 ADE A NP
CHERM RS MELE ZKE
Al - BN EED #REDRE A -

=
==
=T

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 3% 203



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR MIEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& A HBASN + LB TTHIR)

5  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 DEEEE)
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2022 HE_T-_—_F=A=+—HIL%F
are as follows: B2 #xEmT
2022
—E-CEF
Electronic
Metaland  manufacturing
plastic services Real estate
husiness husiness business Total
E7ER
REBBER RIXB  FHEXREK a4
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000
T Tr Tr T
Segment revenue piLON
Revenue from external customers REMPEP A 1,920,032 1,154,981 938,421 4,013,434
Inter-segment revenue A EERA 32,438 - - 32,438
Reportable segment revenue BEDHURA 1,952,470 1,154,981 938,421 4,045,872
Gross profit e 392,597 45,494 710,272 1,148,363
Distribution and selling expenses and 7 #HRIHEERR KR
general and administrative expenses 1T EF (126,097) (12,511) (54,402) (193,010)
Other income/gains BN/ s 8,261 545 1,963 10,769
Valuation gain on investment RENFEERE
properties 1,967 - - 1,967
Segment profit RN 276,728 33,528 657,833 968,089
Segment profit includes: ARENEE
Depreciation and amortisation o~ ¥% - BER&ZETE
property, plant and equipment K& 93,427 2,564 1,127 97,118
Amortisation of intangible assets BVEECBH 1,548 : - 1,548
Write-cown/(reversal of write-down) of RERE#HFEM,/
obsolete and slow-moving (s &)
inventories 1,197 (1,593) - (396)
Recognition of loss allowance for &5 REREWEHEE
trade and hills receivable BEoBR 2,001 1 £ 2,002
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& SA#BASN » LABTTHIR)

5  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 DBHEE)
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2021 BRE_T_—F=-A=+—HLHF
are as follows: EZDEEENT :

2021 (Restated)

“B--F(2E5)
Electronic
Metaland  manufacturing
plastic services Real estate
business business business Total
ERREtE
TEBBEH RIXH  EHEXH aft
$'000 $'000 $'000 §'000
T T T T
Segment revenue pi: L ON
Revenue from external customers REMPEE WA 1,895,368 898,006 679,424 3,472,798
Inter-segment revenue DA 25,539 - - 25,539
Reportable segment revenue REF WA 1,920,907 898,006 679,424 3,498,337
Gross profit EN 404,628 48,024 493,725 946,377
Distribution and selling expenses and -~ 7 #HRIHEER R~
general and administrative expenses 1 THER (133,212) (16,732) (56,226) (206,170)
Other (losses) and income/gains Eft (B8 RN/ s (2,588) 1,689 3,500 2,601
Valuation gain on investment RENFHEERE
properties 1,184 - - 1,184
Segment profit pakz gl 270,012 32,981 440,999 743,992
Segment profit includes: ARENEE
Depreciation and amortisation of % BE k&G TE
property, plant and equipment R 84,850 2,341 1,262 88,453
Amortisation of intangible assets BVEEZEH 1,543 - - 1,543
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) ~ FRE R#$57F SR,/
of obsolete and slow-moving (Mor 2 &)
inventories 1,286 (1,286) - -
(Reversal of)/recognition of loss EUPE AL G
allowance for trade and bills Bt (BE),/ B2
receivable (4) 4 - -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& A HBASN + LB TTHIR)

5  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 DEEEE)
A reconciliation of segment profit to profit before taxation 73 80 M FR B = BR A AT

is provided as follows:

2022 2021

—ZE_-— —E-—F

(Restated)

(BE5))

$’000 $'000

Fx 7

Segment profit 73 86 A 968,089 743,992
Finance income 2F TN 17,067 11,379
Finance costs B RAR (14,738) (7,975)
Share of profits of an associate JE(RER & N R A 1,164 1,487
Profit before taxation B FR B a A 971,582 748,883

206 KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA



Notes to the Financial Statements

IR MIEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& SA#BASN » LABTTHIR)

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue
and (ii) the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, intangible assets and investment
in an associate (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of revenue is based on the country
in which the final destination of shipment is located or
services are provided and properties are located. The
geographical location of the specified non-current assets
is based on the physical location of the asset, in the case
of property, plant and equipment, investment properties
and the location of the operations to which they are
allocated, in the case of intangible assets and investment
in an associate.

The Group’s revenue

5

RS (E)

NRINE () A B 2 WA R (i) A 5
Bz BELRE BRED
X BREEMRBZERRZE
B([EEFRBEE]) TEMRZ
BHE o WAPTIEHD R AR I8 S AR A8
Bt R HER M EMEBRR
DB BEFRBEEMERZ
B - MRWME - BB KRR
BMEIRIBEZEEANS 2700
HoOMRERNEEMRBERRZ
BREDREEMOREE 2N
b o

Specified non-current assets

REEZKA EEERBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C-FE —E-—F ZE--f —T-—F
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE7) (BE7)
$000 $'000 $000 $'000
Fr T Fr T
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &/ (Fr7Eit) 932,259 759,928 34,199 41,136
Japan SN 126,929 38,213 - =
Mainland China B 1,777,196 1,551,378 970,016 821,493
Asia (excluding Japan, Hong T (TEFEAX -
Kong and Mainland China) BB KPEAM) 179,145 138,699 43,111 -
North America JEZEM 579,823 496,699 -
Western Europe it 418,082 487,881 - -
Sub-total N 3,081,175 2,712,870 1,013,127 821,502
4,013,434 3,472,798 1,047,326 862,638
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5

208

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The Group’s customer base includes three (2021: three)
customers with whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group’s revenue. For the year ended 31 March
2022, the total revenue from sales of merchandise in the
metal and plastic business and electronic manufacturing
services business, including sales to entities which
are known to the Group to be under common control
with these customers, amounted to approximately
$2,428,227,000 (2021: $2,196,185,000) and arose in all
geographical regions in which the businesses are active.
Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 3(a)(iii).

The Group’s sales are made primarily to a few key
customers. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the
revenue derived from five largest customers accounted
for approximately 69% (2021 (Restated): 73%) of the
Group's total revenue.

A TTEIR)

5
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FEER zxﬁak%ﬁ2¢ﬁ
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& SA#BASN » LABTTHIR)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 YE- BERRE
Land use
rights and Properties Fixtures and Furniture and
leasehold leased for ~ Construction-~ leasehold Toolsand ~ computer
land  Buildings  ownuse in-progress improvements  Machinery equipment  equipment Total
1HERER LS ZER R

BELH ¥ BR  ERIE  WRKE B% IARER SRR ak
§000 §000 000 000 §000 §000 000 000 §000
e e e e e e e i e

Cost: Ak
AT April 2021 (restated) “EC-EmA-A

(BE5) 25,277 331,634 1172 8,645 121,182 550,546 63,546 127,687 1,239,689
Additions RE - - 1,771 94,759 32,316 74,363 11,181 9,609 243,999
Disposals e - - (8,564) - 1 093 (8 a0y (17760
Reclassifcation Ediy ] - - - - - - (481) 481 -
Exchange adjustments bt 4,955 12,273 442 1,932 3479 16,870 2,746 2999 45,69
At31 March 2022 -

ZA=1-H 30,232 343,907 JLRA 105,336 156,959 033,846 76,764 139758 1,511,623
Accumulated depreciation, amortisation Z3tH% - BERHE

and impairment losses: FE:

AT April 2021 (restated) —E--%MA-H

(RE5)) 930 86,489 7730 - 61,054 430865 29301 95306 720087
Charge fo the year EEHR 591 71 6,190 - 823 M4% 14306 16200 97,118
Written back on disposals RitE e - - (8,564) - (4 (7933) (225) 003 (17,739
Reclassfication iy - - - - - - (120) 120 -
Bxchange adjustments RARE 1527 4,988 34 - 1,758 11,501 1375 2514 23,897
At31 March 2022 S

ZA=t-H 11,440 98,589 5,590 - 71,021 478,929 44,657 13,137 823,363
Net book value: FHFE:
At31 March 2022 S

ZA=1-H 18,792 245,318 19,231 105,336 85,938 154917 32,107 26,621 688,260
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6  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 6 YE BERREE)
Land use
rights and Properties Fixtures and Fumiture and
leasehold leased for ~ Construction- ~ leasehold Toolsand — computer
land  Buldings  ownuse inrogress improvements  Machinery  equipment equipment Total
HEERER manx B A

i e 25 BR  EEIE  MERE B8 IARGE EERE ok
§000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §000 000 §000
T i\ e T T A\ ﬁ T T

Cost: WA

At1 Aprl 2020 as previously reported  ~F=ZFMA-R
2 25277 331,634 7,786 1478 102,967 513,562 52,105 102,093 1,136,902

Adjustments arsing from adoptionof ~ HARFEFEFEES

merger accounting (note 2(5) EalHELZ B

(Hka) - - - - - - 5 1,104 1157
At April 2020 (restated) ZE_TEMA-H

(BEH) 25,277 331,634 7,786 1478 102,97 513,562 52,158 103,197 1,138,059
Movement during the year (restated): ~ KEEZB(EET)
Additions RE - - 2,748 6,860 10,708 28,571 12,108 21,389 82,404
Disposels e 4 / - - G 18 Wse (3% (1890
Bxchange adjustments iR - - 638 27 7,884 21,263 3,7% 4336 38,206
At31 March 2021 (resated) 25555

=t-RB(EE) BT B34 1,172 8,645 121180 550,546 03546 127,687 1,239,680

Accumulated depreciation, amortisation  23H47E + B3 RE
and impairment losses: B

At1 Aprl 2020 as previously reported  ~F=FFMA-R
iy 8,823 80,015 3,053 3 48468 381,690 25,133 78680 626,064

Adjustments arising from adoptionof ~ HERAHEHRES
merger accounting (note 2(5) EalHELZ BB

) - - - - - - 3 825 86!
A1 Aprl 2020 (resated) ZE_ZEMA-H

(BE5) 8,423 80,015 3,053 A 48468 381,690 25,169 19507 62695
Movement during the year (restated: ~ KXFEZB(EET)
Charge for the year ERR 499 6,474 4133 - 7,364 49,754 6,843 13,384 86,453
Whitten back on disposals il ] - - - - (345 (12,839 (4400) (1226 (18811)
Bxchange adjustments fibiEe - - 344 - 5,567 12,259 1,709 3641 23,520
At31 March 2021 (restated) —E--%-R

=+-R(BE)) 932 86,489 7,730 - 61,054 430,865 29301 95306 720,067
Net book value: BEFE:
At31 March 2021 (restated) I

=+-R(2E) 15,955 245,145 3,442 8,645 60,126 119,681 34205 32,381 519,602
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 6
Depreciation and amortisation expense of $89,701,000
(2021: $81,143,000), $7,417,000 (2021 (restated):
$7,310,000) has been charged to cost of revenue, general

and administrative expenses, respectively.

¥ BWERREBE)

e & # 3 E B+ 89,701,000 T
— T — — 4 : 81,143,000 T) &

7,417,000c(ZE = —F (B &) :

7,310,0007T) 7 Bl T AMLABK A

—MREITHER -

(@) Right-of-use assets @ ERAEEE
The Group's interests in right-of-use assets at their AEBHEEREEE 2SR
net book values are analysed as follows: HEREFEST -
2022 2021
—==-= T —F
$’000 $000
T T
Leasehold land and buildings REBREZHET
in Hong Kong, held on leases NMIBF10E50F 82
between 10 to 50 years (note (i) HE (MIFEG)) 1,768 1,873
Land use rights and buildings in INGRICIES Y Spmub: AL v 2
the PRC, held on leases between  KIEF10250F 2
10 to 50 years (note (ii)) GEAGEED) 262,342 259,227
264,110 261,100
Properties leased for own use HEMFEaRZTER
carried at depreciated cost BN (B (i)
(note (iii)) 19,231 3,442
283,341 264,542

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 3% 211



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR Y

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

6

212

(@

Right-of-use assets (continued)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong
held for own use

The Group holds several buildings for its
office and warehouses. The Group is the
registered owner of these property interests,
including the whole or part of undivided share
in the underlying land. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire these property
interests from their previous registered owners,
and there are no ongoing payments to be
made under the terms of the land lease, other
than payments based on rateable values set
by the relevant government authorities. These
payments vary from time to time and are
payable to the relevant government authorities.

Land use right and buildings in the PRC
held for own use

The Group holds several buildings for
its factories. The Group is the registered
owner of these property interests, including
the underlying land use rights. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests from their previous registered
owners, and there are no ongoing payments to
be made under the terms of the land lease.

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its warehouses through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 2 to 3 years with no extension
options. None of these leases includes variable
lease payments.

6
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& SA#BASN » LABTTHIR)

6  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 6 YE BERREBZ)
(b) Buildings leased out under operating leases (b) BEKLEHEEHBZEF
The Group leases out an insignificant portion of AREBUAKLEHEEZ FAHAE
factories located in the PRC under operating leases. SRRz —/ o IR - 8
The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 HRNBATE R —F  HES
year. None of the leases includes variable lease RAEPHENR2HEE - K
payments. Undiscounted lease payments under SERHERSEEZ AT
non-cancellable operating leases in place at the HKEHE T 2 RERFTIRA
reporting date will be receivable by the Group in SrRYEeRE(ZT - —%F
the coming year is $nil (2021: $nil). &) o
7  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 7 REU=
2022 2021
—ZE=-= —F-—F
$’000 $000
Fr TIT
Beginning of the year F9] 317,420 294,800
Additions NE 90 -
Exchange differences HER 13,484 21,436
Fair value gain N EW 1,967 1,184
End of the year FK 332,961 317,420
The investment properties are under construction and R ERZPREMETIRER
located in the PRC under lease terms of 40 years expiring HU+F(R_ZEATFENAE_T
in August 2050 to January 2051. A—F—REE) 2 HEBMmFE -
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value measurement of properties

7

214

(a)

Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the
fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties is categorised into Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group's
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur.

The valuation of the Group’s investment properties
as at 31 March 2022 was conducted by Masterpiece
Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent
professional valuer, which has among its staff
members of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The
investment properties were valued on the basis
that it would be developed and completed in
accordance with the Group’s latest development
proposals. The Chief Financial Officer has discussion
with the independent professional valuer in the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when
the valuation is performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties
is recognised in the line item “valuation gain
on investment properties” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

7

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA

BRMK ()
Wz AFEHE

(a)

NFEEBR
RZZE-_—_HF=ZA=+—HK
R-_E-_—F=ZA=+—8"
REBEKREME L A TFEEFE
EEREBVBRELENF13
B AFEFEIZCEESE
BEZEBRVEEL -

BEZT-_—_FRk-_F=-—
—A=+—HIEFERN F—
HE-_EBRETESESE @
FoERIEE LA o K
SEZBUR RN HRE HRER
NEEEREEE 2 ES -

R-_E-_—_##=ZA=+—H"
REBZREMELE LT
FHEE N LB RA R A A
B EEEBEASHNEME
S8R  REVEMEERR
SERHEERZECERA
AEE - EEPHLEFHEAR
ETHERN  BEVEEES
MEFET G AT A RE
RaHh#ER -

o

LEME 2 N FHERAETINER
BEmK EZ[REYEAEER
1—TAmER

=
Sz
P



Notes to the Financial Statements

AT HRAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

7 REWHE)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(b) Information about Level 3 fair value

M2 AVEFTE(E)
(b) BEAF=ZERAFEFEZE

measurements Bl
Valuation
techniques Unobservable inputs Range
fh{ERA TABE 2 HE CEE
Investment properties Market comparison  Adjustment factor on size -13% —-3%
—land in the PRC approach and location of the (2021:
properties -36% — -25%)
BREME-—NPEZ LM THLECX YEmMBERMUE 2 HERE -13% - -3%
—ET-—F:
-36%—-25%)
Investment properties Residual method Adjustment factor on size -13% - -3%
— property under and location of the (2021:

development properties -52% — -3%)
in the PRC

REME-RPBEzE  FEpA YEmMERME 2 HERE -13% - -3%
= R

-52%—-3%)

RPBEDBERREME Z L1
Z R FHETDERMS L BOAE
o X2EHRBHSAERS

ALBREERS < EH 2 HE
RECRME B RUEE

The fair value of land that in the PRC classified as
investment properties is determined using the market
comparison approach by making reference to the
comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market was adopted. The adjustment factors
used have been adjusted for the size and location THE - AP EFEEYER
of the properties. The fair value measurement is BRUEZABRREZIIEEE
positively correlated to the adjustment factors on size 7 o

and location of the properties.

RPBEDERRENEZHER
WME 2 RFETEBRGREE
T UWSERBEHSAESZ
ALBHEERS  YEEET
A8 3R B A TE B B R K
K ARREZTKFEERZ
BE - ERZABRARDZY
EZEEMMIBETHE - A
FEFAERDEEBENMMIEZ
ARAEZIIEmAARE -

The fair value of property under development in the
PRC classified as investment properties is determined
using the residual method by making reference to the
comparable transactions or asking cases as available
in the relevant market and it had taken into account
the construction costs that will be expended to
complete the development to reflect the quality of
the completed development. The adjustment factors
used have been adjusted for the size and location
of the properties. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the adjustment factors on size
and location of the properties.
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8  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 ®\EEE
Computer
software
BB
$'000
T
Cost: R
At 1 April 2021 —E-—%/A—H 14,412
Addition INE 38
At 31 March 2022 —E-—F=ZHA=1+—H 14,450
Accumulated amortisation: STy
At 1 April 2021 —E_—FMA—H (8,062)
Charge for the year FEHIR (1,548)
At 31 March 2022 — - —F=ZHA=1+—H (9,610)
Net book value: BRMEFE
At 31 March 2022 — - —F=ZA=1+—H 4,840
Cost: R :
At 1 April 2020 and at —ETEFMA-AR
31 March 2021 —E-—%=ZA=+—H 14,412
Accumulated amortisation: Sty
At 1 April 2020 —ET_TFMA—H (6,519)
Charge for the year FEHI (1,543)
At 31 March 2021 —E-—F=ZA=+—H (8,062)
Net book value: BRMEDFE -
At 31 March 2021 —E-—f=HA=+—H 6,350
Amortisation of $1,548,000 (2021: $1,543,000) was HE_T-_—_F=-A=+—HIF
included in general and administrative expenses in the JE » 1,548,0007C#iH( — T ——%F :
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 1,543,00070) BHEREGEEDZ KT
31 March 2022. —MRITERER -
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AT HRAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as

at 31 March 2022 are:

Name

1

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and
types of legal entity
it B R
EERRER

Principal activities and

place of operation

IRREREEHE

9

el NG
AAFR-—_E-_—_&E#=A=+—H
FTEMBRRIZER :

Karrie Industrial Company

Limited

BHNEMBRAT]

Karrie Technologies
Company Limited

FNRRBEARAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BEAREERT

Hong Kong, limited

liability company

BEAREMERT

Sale of server casings, office
automation products, visual
accessories, plastic and metal
parts, metal stamping dies
and plastic injection moulds

and provision of management

services, Hong Kong

HEMREINR - WAEEE EBAR1,0007T

m - FRA  BBREBH
- eBHERANIEEA

RRBERRY - BE

Manufacturing and sales of
plastic parts, sales of metal
stamping dies and plastic
injection moulds, provision
of electronic manufacturing
services and investment
holdings, Hong Kong

Particulars of issued/ Interest
paid-up capital held
BT/ BHRE Fris IR E
Ordinary shares of $1,000 100%
Non-voting deferred
shares of $5,000,000 (i)
BEREEETR
5,000,0007T(i)
Ordinary shares of 100%
$30,000,000

BENHEBRBEMH - £BHRE  LiHA%30,000,0007T
BARTHEER RESTE
R TRBEREEER &5
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B a7BASN + LABITHIR)
MEAR(E)

9 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

9

establishment and Principal activities and Particulars of issued/ Interest
Name types of legal entity  place of operation paid-up capital held
30 VAR L
1 HEEERER TEXBREE T BT/ EHRE Fris IR E
Karwin Engineering Hong Kong, limited ~ Design, manufacture and sale  Ordinary shares of §10 100%
Company Limited liability company of server casings, office Non-voting deferred
automation products and shares of $100 (i)
visual accessories; sale of
plastic and metal parts,
metal stamping dies and
plastic injection moulds and
investment holdings, Hong
Kong
RERMIRERA BEAREMALA Rt RERHEARSINR . BBERIOT
PAENBERRTGAL ERZRERITR1007T()
HEZBREBHM - ©8
HEEATERARRE
B BB
REEMEBELEASE  The PRC, limited Manufacture of server casings,  Paid-up capital 100%
BRAT liability company office automation products $174,755,000 (ii)
and metal parts, the PRC
TEARAMAR  REMRSNR BAEE  CHEA74,755,0007T(0)
EmREBHH - PE
REEEELBEAE  The PRC limited Manufacture of server casings,  Paid-up capital 100%
BRAT liability company office automation products, $128,510,000 (iii)

PEAREEAH

visual accessories, moulds

and plastic parts and provision

of electronic manufacturing
services, the PRC

BERARSINGE  BAEXE

Euu ?ﬂﬁiﬁﬁ BAREER

HW‘% & I
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AT HRAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

9 MEBARGE)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and Principal activities and Particulars of issued/ Interest
Name types of legal entity ~ place of operation paid-up capital held
30 VAR L
1 EERRER TEXBREEHE BT/ BHRE FrisiRE
RERESTEXAR  ThePRC limited Property holding, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%
N liability company $428,000,000 (iv)
TEEREMEAR  BEME T B #(&7428,000,0007C(iv)
HESHEBEAERE  The PRC, limited Property development and Paid-up capital 100%
BRART liability company management, the PRC US$20,000,000 (v)
TRERREAR  WEEERER E E#E720,000,0005%T
V)
HEGFEFARAR  The PRC, limited Property holding, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%
liability company US$16,000,000 (vi)
TEAREMAR  HENE - FE E4I& 716,000,000 T
(vi)
RERelEHEREER  The PRC, limited Property development, the PRC  Paid-up capital 100%
NS liability company US$43,700,000 (vii)
FRERELAR  NEREE - FE E#& 743,700,005 T
(vii)
BEGZANFMERE  The PRC, limited Property development, the PRC  Paid-up capital 100%
BB liability company RMB97,501,000 (viii)
TEEREMLRR  WEER TH EHERAKI7,501,000
JC(viii)
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9 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

9 KEBARGE)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and Principal activities and Particulars of issued/ Interest
Name types of legal entity  place of operation paid-up capital held
2t R bR
1 AEERER FRREREEBE BT/ EHRE FrisRiE
FILEAFMEREBR  The PRC, limited Property development, the PRC  Paid-up capital 100%
NI liability company RMB32,000,000 (ix)
TEARAMTAR  MRER T EAEARARH32,000,000
TC(ix)
REmamBEKER  The PRC, limited Property development, the PRC  Paid-up capital 100%
BRAT liability company RMB50,000,000 (x)
REERETLA MEER P B&ERARES0,000,000
o)
Karwin Thai Advanced  Thailand, limited Manufacturing and selling of Paid-up capital 100%
Technology Industrial liability company server castings, HDD cages, THB224,225,000
Limited rack mount rails, metal
stamping dies and plastic
injection moulds, Thailand
FERREMAR  RERBEFRSIN - BERE CHER224,225,000%5%

B cEHERART
PR HE
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AT HRAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(vii)

(viii)

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, are
not entitled to dividends, and are not entitled to distributions
upon winding up unless a sum of $200,000,000,000 has
been distributed by the relevant companies to holders of the
ordinary shares.

RERMEREZBASARRAF is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
15 years up to 19 May 2026.

RERMERLTZBASARRAF is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
15 years up to 24 May 2026.

REZBEETEZEABRRF is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
25 years up to 18 February 2030.

BEEEFNEBAEREAERRADF is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
40 years up to 2 December 2049.

HEEFEEARAF is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise
established in the PRC with an operating period of 40 years
up to 22 March 2051.

REmAlFMERRZEFR A F is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
20 years up to 17 September 2033.

HEGEEFNFEREAR DG is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with a long-term operating
period.

#8110 52 /a7 5 b 2 7 3 B PR A &) is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with a long-term operating
period.

REmBMMAERERERAR is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
30 years up to 18 May 2031.

9

MEBAT(E)
B3 -

() EIRERIEERD I IER AN ER AT
R - WERMEIREE - IIEE
DERE - BRIEBBERRESE
BRELBRRIRE 2 LEBR
200,000,000,0007C : & BIFZE /81D
BEDZEMDIE

iy ReBERBEERASERARTI—
RPBER 2 ERBINEDRE  HE
¥R ATRE  RZZZXEFRA
+hBER -

(i) REBMERZEBRAEBRARI—
RPBERY 2 ERBINERE  HE
¥PRATREF  RZZE=-~FhHA
—+mBER -

(ivy REREETEEBRABT—RF
B 2 EEAIINERSE - HEEH
REZ+HFE RZT=TF=A
+NABER -

v HERMEBAEREERART—
RHRBRIZEREINEDRE - HE
EHRAN+E  RoTMAE+—
B—BE e

(vi) EEESFEXBRARTI—HRPEK
TREBAIELE  HEEHRA
M+ RZERA-F=A=+=H
[

(vii) RERAIEHEMREARARI—R
PR ZEHEBINEDRE  HEXE
HRE-_TF RZZT==%N1A
+ERER -

(vii) BEZZENFMERZEERQRT)
—RPBEKRIE2ERERINERE B
BEHRARE -

(0 BLEFEERZERAT—R
RERT2ERANEDE  HEE
HIR AR -

x) FREmmUBEMRERBRART—
RPERI2ERBINEDLE  HE
EHRA=TF R-_T=—%F1A
TABEM °
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INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

LA TTEIR)
10 REEEQTRZRE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
$’000 $000
T T
Share of net assets BiEEEFE
Beginning of the year F9] 19,266 16,538
Share of profits of an associate il NIVl 1,164 1,487
Exchange difference HBER 835 1,241
End of the year FK 21,265 19,266
Balances with an associate EARE N ) 2 AR
Amount due to an associate JEATEE & X AR
(note 34(b)) (i =E34(b)) 1,532 1,669
The outstanding balances due to an associate are LB E R AR R EE R Z AR

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand, and

are denominated in RMB.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA

AEEW - AFRE - WEEKE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

IR MIEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 10 REERTZREHE)
Particulars of the associate of the Group is as follows: REBEBENT]ZFABERNAT
Proportion of
ownership interest
Place of HRERLA
establishment Particulars of Group's
and types of Principal activities and issued and effective Held by a
Name of associate legal entity place of operation paid up capital interest subsidiary
B 3t B BT/ HHEAF
BELRER EERRER IREBREEHE BRIRAE FEEER =]
ERBEHEA The PRC, limited Research, sales of industrial ~ Ordinary shares of 30% 30%
RHERIBRAR] liability company  robots and robot RMB10,000,000
(“Cuifeng”) peripheral automation

equipment, and
provision of automation
solution, the PRC
BEREERSZA TEBRAMLRAR B EEIERMSEAR  EERARE

BERONERAF WEAFEEDRE > 10,000,007
([Rig]) RREBE R
= HE
Cuifeng is a listed corporate entity on the National RENPEARANEZE /N
Equities Exchange and Quotations of the PRC whose ERMERZGEE - WEETS
quoted market price is not available. B -
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10

224

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 10
Summarised financial information of the associate
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statement are disclosed below:

RBE QR ZRE(E)
RESTHRRZENZERARRZ
BRERRFHEMRE - WREE

M HR ZEREEETHR KB

LI
Cuifeng
Zig
2022 2021
—'=-= —F—F
$’000 $000
T Tt
Gross amounts of the associate BENR 2B
Current assets RENEE 55,376 48,289
Non-current assets ERBEE 5,707 5,167
Current liabilities RBBIE (13,301) (11,399)
Net assets/equity BESRE TR 47,782 42,057
Revenue WA 55,809 50,206
Profit for the year FE A 3,886 4,956
Total comprehensive income for FEZHMB AL
the year 3,886 4,956
Reconciled to the Group’s interests in ~ FAH E AR KB A B
the associate DRz
Gross amounts of net assets of the BERR 2 FEEMERR
associate 47,782 42,057
Fair value adjustments on identifiable ~ YZf& 8838 2 o] PR &
intangible assets upon acquisition WEERNTHEAR 32,349 31,034
Capital injection by the Group REEITE (14,760) (14,160)
65,371 58,931
Group's effective interest REE 2 ER#ER 30% 30%
Group's share of net assets of the REBE ERHE AT
associate BEFE 19,611 17,679
Goodwill EES 4,144 4,077
Impairment losses recognised HIEEE (2,490) (2,490)
Carrying amount in the consolidated RiRE M BHRET
financial statements BRE(E 21,265 19,266
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IR MIEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& SA#BASN » LABTTHIR)

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES 11 REFIPEZEMIA
Financial assets measured
Financial assets measured at fair value through other
at amortised cost comprehensive income Total
SHEE
NEHEHATESREE BATEHARGZERA i
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
E-CF 0 -F-- E--f -F--& CZE--E -E--F
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE5) (BE5)
§000 §/000 §000 §/000 §000 §/000

i L T L

Assets &g
Trade and bills receivable (note 12)  EZREHEYE
(Ftzt12) 605,903 658,268 - - 605,903 656,268
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ BRIF - Re REMEN
receivables (note 12) B (FEE2) 182,023 94575 - - 182,023 94575
Other financial assets (note 13) & BAE (Hf3E13) - £ 29,216 26401 29,216 26401
Pledged Deposts (note 16) EREF (M) 84,539 C - - 84,539 -
Cash and bank deposits and Re kTR RERA
restricted deposis (note 17) Fa(ME7) 839,509 662,838 - - 839,509 662,838
Amounts due from related EUBELAER
companies (note 34(b)) (F3E34(0)) 39,952 515,945 - - 39,952 515,945
1,751,926 1,931,626 29,216 26,401 1,781,142 1,958,027
Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost
DR AT ESRmAs
2022 2021
—E-F —E—F
(Restated)
(BE5))
$’000 $000
Fr T
Liabilities =L
Trade payables, accruals and other B I RN - [E5T &
payables (note 21) FA B B FE A AR K
(FF5E21) 1,519,932 1,186,434
Bank borrowings (note 22) RITEE (FIEE22) 1,201,184 917,466
Amount due to an associate JE1-T B X R BR K
(note 10) (Mg7E10) 1,532 1,669
Amounts due to related companies JETRA:E A RIAR K
(note 34(b)) (M95E34(b)) 3,664 4,032
2,726,312 2,109,601
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& A HBASN + LB TTHIR)

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS, 12 BEZREFBERWERN AR &
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES SR HMEWRR
2022 2021
—=E== —E-—F
(Restated)
(BEE5)
$’000 $'000
Frx T
Trade and bills receivable B 5N ERERERR 608,194 658,557
Less: Loss allowance for trade and B B S NEREIER
bills receivable NEERE (2,291) (289)
605,903 658,268
Prepayments, deposits and other AR RE REAM
receivables JE AR 3K 182,023 94,575
787,926 752,843
Less: Other non-current assets B BEMIEREEE
(Note) CES) (43,077) (10,849)
744,849 741,994
Representing: Rk :
Trade and bills receivable, net of B 5 MEREBERR -
allowance bR B 605,903 658,268
Prepayments, deposits and other TR e MEME
receivables U BR X 138,946 83,726
744,849 741,994
Other non-current assets HMIEREEE 43,077 10,849
Note: Other non-current assets represent deposits paid for the Mzt : HERBEERKRBEYE K

purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets amounted to approximately $43,077,000 (2021:
$10,849,000).
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IR MIEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group generally grants credit periods ranging
from 30 to 90 days, except for four (2021: four) of the
customers who is granted a credit period over 90 days.
An ageing analysis of trade and bills receivable, based on

12

BEEREERUIRR - AN - &
EREMERERR(E)
BREFOU(ZT=—F: O)FE
Pz BEE@EI0RI  AEE—K
RTEPZBHH30BEEIR - &
ZREBREYPRFIZEZ A HFE

invoice date, is as follows: IR ¢
2022 2021
—E=-= —E—F
$’000 $'000
Fx Tt
0 to 90 days 0£90H 562,688 651,073
91 to 180 days 91£180H 37,933 5,098
181 to 360 days 1812360H 7,562 2,386
Over 360 days 360HMA E 11 —
608,194 658,557

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivable,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables approximate
their fair values.

The receivables are expected to be recovered within one
year. Any amounts not expected to be recovered within
one year are not included in current assets.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade and bills
receivable at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

%5 REREWER - B &
© BE A R 2 SR E S A
FEABE -

AW ERERE-—FAKD -
THEEBERIEE —FAUKEA
TEERRBEENA -

AEEE S MNERREERZER
BRBETERSFNEATERN ZEH
FEBERZER  %EBEEABEH
BiBEEAE  c ARAKREZESL
FEBRERIARRATREFE
ZHEABAGEREEZR  FE
RBHRREZBREEISE—F
BOAEEZ T REFPE -
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12

228

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS, 12
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group'’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade and

bills receivable as at 31 March:

ESREEREWRA - AR - &
eREMEBWERREZ)
TREHEHEEAEEEIRE
BRUENEERRMEHEER
BR=A=+—8":

2022
—Eg-=
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FHHEER REAE EERE
% $’000 $’000
T T
Current (not past due) ER1(FkEH) 0.00 515,930 -
1 to 90 days past due A1 E90H 0.98 82,871 809
91 to 180 days past due #EA91E180H 11.64 8,953 1,042
Over 180 days past due #EA180H A E 100.00 440 440
608,194 2,291
2021
—E-—F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEEAE R X BREAE(E EERE
% $/000 $'000
W T+
Current (not past due) ERI(REE) 0.00 585,295 -
1 to 90 days past due B EA1E90H 0.33 65,739 220
91 to 180 days past due BEI91E180H 0.92 7,523 69
658,557 289

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
in the past. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group's view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA

BHERXENBEZERERLE
B o It F A R T EIA R BRI SR
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IR MIEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Movement in loss allowance account in respect of trade
and bills receivable is as follows:

B REREREN B &
&R E At AR ()

AEE 5 KRR B AR 2 B 1R
M

2022 2021

—E=-= —E—F

$7000 $'000

T T

Beginning of the year F4) 289 319
Recognition of allowance during the year P2 =R 2,002 -

Written-off of trade and bills receivable &% &FIEEM

AR = (30)

End of the year FIK 2,291 289

The recognition of allowance for impaired receivables is
included in general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had been
no significant change in credit quality and the balances
were still considered fully recoverable.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying value of trade and bills
receivable, deposits and other receivables stated above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The credit quality of the Group’s trade and bills
receivable, deposits and other receivables that are past
due but not impaired has been assessed by reference
to the historical information about counterparty default
rates. The existing counterparties do not have significant
defaults in the past and have sound financial position to
their liabilities past due. Therefore, the ECL allowance is
considered insignificant.

HERERKERREZEADE
ERFABRaRT —RETHRER -

E B HE KR E 2 AR R EE T
HAEEERFEACH ZIBILE
FEHE REBTLER EEER
RSB AR L FRERIE LR E R -

T RIS <G E

RBEHR - EERRZ&ZKAR
REME S REBREWERR - 2
REMBWRRZEmE - AEE
W ESS B T RER 2 ER S o

REBEEFPHERE  HAKED
2 Hm A ARREZ E 5 M EIREK
B e MEMERERZEE
BRELFNE  BR2EPEBRE
RBEERZHRCHE - Hitt - B
EEBRERALTEE -
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13 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

230

13 HitemEE

2022 2021
—=E-= T —F
$’000 $000
Fr T
Financial assets measured at FVOCI BRAFHES AR EE
(recycling) WA (rT#E[E)EtE 2
TREE
— Key management insurance contracts —EZEEERBRE L
(unlisted investments) (note (i) (FELETIRE)
) 19,514 18,956
Equity securities designated at FVOCI  [R#EE St A B2
(non-recycling) WA (T ATEE[E)
— Equity securities listed outside Hong ~ — & LASN £ kA
Kong (note (i) & 7 (P EGi)) 9,702 7,445
29,216 26,401

Notes:

(i)

At 31 March 2022, the insurance contracts represented life
insurance plans with investment elements relating to a key
management personnel of the Group. The total sum insured
is US$7,081,000 (approximately $55,232,000) (2021:
US$7,081,000 (approximately $54,878,000), with an annual
minimum guaranteed return of 2.0% to 4.2% for the first 10
years and 2.0% for the years afterwards.

At 31 March 2022, if the Group terminated the insurance
contract, the account value, net of a surrender charge
of US$2,202,000 (approximately $17,176,000) (2021:
US$2,117,000 (approximately $16,407,000)), would be
refunded to the Group. The amount of surrender charge
decreases over time and is no longer required from the 19th
year of contract conclusion onwards.

The listed equity securities outside Hong Kong are shares in
T.Krungthai Industries Public Co., Ltd. (“TKT”), an automotive
parts and components and moulds manufacturer in Thailand.
The Group designated its investment in TKT at FVOCI (non-
recycling), as the investment is held for strategic purposes.
No dividends were received on this investment nor disposal
of investment was made during the year ended 31 March
2022 (2021: $nil).

fia -

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA

R-ZZE-__F=A=+—8 %R
BANEBREBR _ZXTEBEEEA
BrBARERGZ NERE - B8R
1 /47,081,000 3 7T ( 49 55,232,000
TTI(ZZT=——4 : 7,081,000 7T (4
54,878,0007T)) © B TFHIEREE
MR BEFFE20%EL42% R EBFE
2.0% °

R-ZZTE-_—F=A=+—0" ' &R
SERLEZREBEH  RBRES
M ERRE A% 52,202,000 %E T
(#917,176,0007T) (Z T = — 4 :
2,117,00055 75 (4916,407,0007C) ) &
FUR B T o BRUEBRERRM
WL RRZENBZERETNERT
FAURER °

EBAIN £ IR HEE S RT Krungthai
Industries Public Co., Ltd([TKT]) Z
&M - REERETETH - AR
RE - HARRBMSEZIRE A&
B ETKTIRE Bl A FEFT AEM
ZERWACIAEE) - HE-_T=-—
FZA=FT—HFERN L/ ZZE
Z—F - E)BERE R HEZINE o



Notes to the Financial Statements
Br H5 ek Y &
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& SA#BASN » LABTTHIR)
14 INVENTORIES 14 #®&

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (@) REFEEMBEMRRRZTFERE
financial position comprise:

2022 2021
g —E—F
$’000 $’000
F 7T
Raw materials [FEA R 190,176 114,302
Work-in-progress B o 97,333 52,916
Finished goods BURK 490,857 223,854
778,366 391,072
(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised b) FEZ®HBEERAZHEE
as an expense and included in “cost of revenue” in BERGEERRATKRAK
the consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 27) AKI(HFE27) AT -
is as follows:
2022 2021
—B—— —E-—F
$’000 $'000
Frx T
Reversal of write-down of obsolete  FRE 2 # $5 17 S HUR 2
and slow-moving inventories (o] (396) =
Carrying amount of inventories sold B &FE 2 KEE 2,148,846 1,969,902
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& A HBASN + LB TTHIR)

15 PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND CONTRACT COSTS MEBRRRERKA
2022 2021
—E=-= —F-—F
(Restated)
(BE3I)
$’000 $000
F5 Fi
Property under development for sale (SRLES=L7/ES 184,070 1,002,708
Completed property held for sale (SOEE/ES 1,079,717 104,835
1,263,787 1,107,543
Contract costs BRI 4,301 3,374
1,268,088 1,110,917
(a) The analysis of carrying value of land held for (@ FAMEERIHWZEEED
property development for sale is as follows: fanr -
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
(Restated)
(B2&7)
$’000 $000
Fr TIT
Outside Hong Kong FEFEBIAIN
— Less than 50 years — VAT F 112,593 127,588
(b) The analysis of the amount of properties recognised b) MEZSHEEEIAAXLNME

BERNGA B EN AR
2 |(HEE27) S AF A -

as an expense and included in “cost of revenue” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 27)
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is as follows:
2022 2021
—E-—F B —F
(Restated)
(BE3))
$’000 $'000
T T
Carrying amount of properties sold 2 &Y% 7 REE 228,150 185,699
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15 MEBRERRESBREE(E)

15 PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND CONTRACT COSTS

(continued)

(c) At 31 March 2021, certain of the Group’s property
under development for sale were pledged for bank
borrowings as disclosed in note 22 to the financial
statements.

(d) Contract costs

Contract costs capitalised as at 31 March 2022 and
2021 relate to the incremental sales commissions
paid to property agents whose selling activities
resulted in customers entering into sale and
purchase agreements for the Group’s properties
which are still under construction at the reporting
date. Contract costs are recognised as part of “selling
expenses” in the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which revenue from the related property
sales is recognised. Contract costs of $4,177,000
(2021 (restated): $616,000) were recognised in
profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2022.
No impairment was identified for the contract costs
as at 31 March 2022 (2021: $nil).

16 PLEDGED DEPOSITS
The Group has deposits pledged to secure the Group’s
bank borrowings of $169,079,000 (2021: $nil), details of
which are set out in note 22.

The remittance of the pledged deposits placed with
banks in Mainland China are subject to relevant rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC Government.

16

(0

(d

R-E-_—®F=HA=+—8"
AEBETHAEEMEDE
HIERITRE  RAMEHRE
BosE22A H 55 -

BRKA
BRKAR_ZTE_Z_R=F
——F=A=+—HEXLE
R ZES N TFWEL L 2
HEHEMeEW  HEEE
BENRERAEENREH
MEBRER ZYETLEEH
o BRKARNIERMEES
WAEBRRBENGEER
KPHEEBRBERAEFR —
i HE_ET-__F=H
=+t—BFERN  iFTAEBH®
2 & RBKA A4,177,0007T (=
T-—F(B&E%) : 616,000
L)  RZE_—F=ZA=+—
H I £ & [ B AN 45 38 Bl 2 R B
(ZT=—F:8|)o

BEHER
AEBZEHERARERAEEZ
R1THEE A169,079,000C (= &

FE) - FIBENKE22 -

PEE i AR B 3 3R 1T 2 B R A R
1A FR B U P AR A 2 SN 1 AR D1
KRR o
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17 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED 17 BRERBATERRIREIFER
DEPOSITS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise: @ HLBALFEMEE:
2022 2021
g —E—F
(Restated)
(BE&E5)
$’000 $’000
T Tt
Cash at bank and in hand BT FEANES 423,548 378,621
Deposits with banks with 3 months =1 A 3k & 52 2 H7 2 iR
or less to maturity when placed 1TF 18,000 8,432
Cash and bank deposits B MIBITER 441,548 387,053
Restricted deposits (note (i) SR HITF (M EEG)) 397,961 275,785
Cash and cash equivalents inthe ~ RIR&MEXRFP 2HE
consolidated cash flow statement  KIRE&HEW 839,509 662,838
Notes: BEE

234

(i)

In accordance with relevant government requirements,
certain property development subsidiaries of the
Group are required to set up designated bank accounts
with certain amount of pre-sale proceeds for the
construction of the relevant properties. The restricted
deposits represent the pre-sale proceeds to secure the
future payments of the Group’s property development
projects. Such restricted deposits will be released for
the payments for construction costs of the related
property development projects or upon completion of
the construction.

The remittance of bank balances of RMB471,260,000
(equivalent to $556,087,000) and RMB624,576,000
(equivalent to $768,228,000) as at 31 March 2021
and 2022 respectively placed with banks in Mainland
China are subject to relevant rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
Government.
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REBRABASRE  AREETHE
REMEARAMNEREMEERER
FHEERITARE TREESRP
XBRFEFRAEEMEIR - UER
REEMEHERIAR ZARENK - &
EXRBTFRER BB DEE R
HB ZBERARERRTKE R

EER T —FR-TE-_F=
A=+—BHEAHRBERBIETZIR
T8 - DRI A AR 471,260,000
7T (FBE 7 556,087,0007T) B AR
624,576,000 7T (48 E 7 768,228,000
TL) 7838 5F R R B R AT P AR A 2 HNE
EHEGI R ARA -



Notes to the Financial Statements

IR MIEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& SA#BASN » LABTTHIR)

17 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED
DEPOSITS (continued)

(b)

17 BRERBITERRZRFERE)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMETFEFELZEERD
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRADEEREREDE 2
liabilities from financing activities, including both BEEE  BRASAFERS
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from 2y METHELECLEBR
financing activities are liabilities for which cash HASENBEIRRELRE
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified BianeRenERTEEAR
in the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as BEBMELRSREZAE -
cash flows from financing activities.
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITEE HESE aHf
(Note 22) (Note 23)
(M¥zE22) (M¥zE23)
$’000 $’000 $’000
T T Fr
At 1 April 2021 —E--—#mA—H 917,466 3,735 921,201
Changes from financing MMERESFREZ
cash flows: S
Proceeds from new bank ~ ¥TR1T{EE 2
borrowings FRSsR 792,683 - 792,683
Repayment of bank ERRITEE
borrowings (517,702) - (517,702)
Capital element of lease ~ EfJHEHRE 2
rentals paid BRI D - (5,151) (5,151)
Interest element of finance EfHEMEE 2
lease rentals paid M BB - (678) (678)
Interest paid EAALE (36,454) - (36,454)
Total changes from BMERSREL
financing cash flows ga)mE 238,527 (5,829) 232,698
Exchange adjustments RigAE 8,737 221 8,958
Other changes: Hit @5 :
Increase in lease liabilities & & & 2350 - 21,771 21,771
Interest expenses (note 29) FI83Z i (FIFE29) 14,060 678 14,738
Capitalised borrowing BRMLEERAR
costs (note 29) (B45E29) 22,394 - 22,394
Total other changes Hh#Eh4aE 36,454 22,449 58,903
At 31 March 2022 —E-—F
=A=t+—-8 1,201,184 20576 1,221,760
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17 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED 17 BE2RBATEARZIREEFERE)
DEPOSITS (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b)) BMETBREL2EEAD
activities (continued) (4&)
Bank Lease
borrowings Iiabilities Total
IRITEE HEaE A
(Note 22) (Note 23)
(Mf7E22) (BF5E23)
$'000 $’000 $’000
Tt T Tt
At 1 April 2020 —EBC-BE
MA—H 951,637 4,665 956,302
Changes from financing MMEREREZ
cash flows: EHE
Proceeds from new bank ¥iR1TEEZ
borrowings PSR 322,557 N 322,557
Repayment of bank EERITEE
borrowings (372,552) - (372,552)
Capital element of lease ~ EfHEHE 2
rentals paid BRE D - (3,985) (3,985)
Interest element of finance ENHEMRE 2
lease rentals paid A BE o (219) (219)
Interest paid ENFE (36,991) - (36,991)
Total changes from %Eﬁfﬁi}miz
financing cash flows % gapmE (86,986) (4,204) (91,190)
Exchange adjustments HRARE 15,824 307 16,131
Other changes: HAt %5 :
Increase in lease liabilities THE & & 21N - 2,748 2,748
Interest expenses (note 29) F| 237 1 (FI5E29) 7,756 219 7,975
Capitalised borrowing BARCEERA
costs (note 29) (MI7E29) 29,235 - 29,235
Total other changes HA S iE(E 36,991 2,967 39,958
At 31 March 2021 —E-—£F
=A=+-—H 917,466 3,735 921,201
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(c) Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for
leases comprise the following:

17 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED 17

RERBITERRZRFEFRE)

(0 HERSRHAHE

BEEReRERAZEES
AN Tl

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Within operating cash flows REEXRBRERE
ZA 6,126 4,938
Within financing cash flows RRERSREZA 5,829 4,204
11,955 9,142
18 SHARE CAPITAL 18 B
2022 2021
—EC-CF —T-—F
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
ROYE HE BRing8 &
000 $000 000 $’000
T Tr T T
Authorised: EERK
Ordinary shares of HK10 cents & &R B AREE10/8(L
each 4,000,000 400,000 4,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREMERE
Ordinary shares of HK10 cents & @R EGREE1075(L -
each:
Beginning of the year 1) 2,012,440 201,244 1,993,840 199,384
Issuance of shares under share  EEAREATEI T 8170k
option schemes 10,750 1,075 18,600 1,860
Cancellation of shares G (1,880) (188) - -
End of the year FR 2,021,310 202,131 2,012,440 201,244
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18 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
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(a)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the
Company has cancelled 1,880,000 shares of

18 BAR(E)

(a)

BE-_ZE-_—_F=A=+—
BIEFER  AQABEEHE

the Company, of which none of the shares were 1,880,000 A A RIfR 1 » & H
repurchased before 31 March 2021. TR _ZE_—F=A=+—
HATEE -
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the b BE_FT__F=HA=+—H
Company repurchased its own shares on the Stock IEFER - NARMERRFTE
Exchange as follows: BaAROIT
Number Highest Lowest
of shares  price paid  price paid  Aggregate
Month/Year £/8 repurchased per share per share amount
BREN EBREN
EERHBE BSEX - REER meR
$ $ $'000
T 7T T
July 2021 —T—%+tH 698,000 1.78 1.73 1,229
September 2021 —T--FNA 1,182,000 1.54 1.47 1,782
1,880,000 3,011
During the year ended 31 March 2022, share option (¢ HE-_E-_—_#=A=+—H

have been exercised to subscribe for 10,750,000
ordinary shares (31 March 2021: 18,600,000) in
the Company at a consideration of $6,418,000
(2021: $10,070,000) of which $1,075,000 (2021:
$1,860,000) was credited to share capital and the
balance of $5,343,000 (2021: $8,210,000) was
credited to the share premium. $2,434,000 (2021:
$3,749,000) has been transferred from share-based
compensation reserve to the share premium in
accordance with policy set out in note 2(t).
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IEFERN - BREDETE
LA (B 6,418,000t ( =T = —
£ 110,070,000 7T ) 2 ﬁ§$“
7]10,750,000 f E @A (==
— — 4 : 18,600,000 % ) -
F1,075,0000( =T = —F :
1,860,0007T) E 5T ABEA - 4
®E5,343,0007L(ZF = —4F -
8,210,000 7T ) Eﬂ)\ﬂﬁﬁiﬁ?’l
B o RIEM 200 TR
2,434,000 L (=& = — & :
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19 SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 24
August 2012 (the “Scheme”) under which it may grant
options to employees of the Group (including executive
directors of the Company) and other third parties to
subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a
maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time excluding
for this purpose any shares issued on the exercise of
options. The exercise price will be determined by the
Company’s board of directors and shall at least be the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant of the options, and (ii) an average
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
options.

On 11 August 2014, a total of 18,000,000 share
options (the “2014 Share Options”) were granted to
certain qualified participants of the Group (including an
executive director of the Company) under the Scheme.
The 2014 Share Options entitle the grantees to subscribe
for a total of 18,000,000 new shares of $0.10 each in
the share capital of the Company. Depending on the
financial performance of the Group and other conditions
of the 2014 Share Options, not more than 50% of the
2014 Share Options will be vested on 1 August 2015 and
not more than 50% of the 2014 Share Options will be
vested on 1 August 2017. The exercise price of the 2014
Share Options is $0.419 per share, which represents
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company of $0.405 per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
of the Company of $0.419 per share as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company of $0.10 per share. All the 2014 Share Options
were accepted by the grantees.

19

BB RE

AREIR—ZE——FENA=-+HMA
KA—IEEBRERE - AJEERAAR
SECEE(BERARRIZHITE
E)RE-ERLERENERER
NElZBH, » ERZUAARRBTE
BEITRAEE(TEERITEER
BEMBEITZRHD)30% AR - ZE
RETEEKBARRIZESSE
JE - VAR AR R ER T A
ZWHE R BER THRER
AIAERZ S BARRBRG 2 FHK
Mg °

2NN ENAR+—HHXSE
18,000,00017 &R #E ([ —F — M4 B8
BEDEERTASEETEERZ
LEE(BEAREZHITESE)
T -ERERTEAERARES
BREEBEAR0.10TTZ AR ZRAE H
18,000,000 %7 % - iR IR & B B 15 %
fENEAM — T — U T
FBiB50% 2 —F— B RESZR =
T-RENA—BHEE KT8
B50% 2 —E—UERESR=-F
—tFNA—BHEE - —_F—NW
BlRETEERER0.4197T » LAG)
RRARRMDABRER T B KT
BEAR0.4057T (i) BEX THERE
HATRAERX S HARQRKRNDZFH
WHB&0.4197T ¢ (i) AR A
D 7 BIREE0I10TT » = E UK
SEAE -FIE_Z—ERER
FER AR o
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19

240

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

On 27 October 2016, the Company granted a total of
24,700,000 share options (the “2016 Share Options”)
to certain qualified participants of the Group (including
executive directors of the Company) under the Scheme.
The 2016 Share Options entitle the grantees to subscribe
for a total of 24,700,000 new shares of $0.10 each in
the share capital of the Company. The exercise price
of the 2016 Share Options is $0.70 per share, which
represents the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company of $0.70 per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
of the Company of $0.656 per share as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company of $0.10 per share. All the 2016 Share Options
were accepted by the grantees.

On 20 April 2021, the Company granted a total of
15,000,000 share options (the “2021 Share Options”)
to certain qualified participants of the Group (including
executive directors of the Company) under the Scheme.
The 2021 Share Options entitle the grantees to subscribe
for a total of 15,000,000 new shares of $0.10 each in
the share capital of the Company. The exercise price
of the 2021 Share Options is $1.69 per share, which
represents the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company of $1.69 per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
of the Company of $1.484 per share as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company of $0.10 per share. All the 2021 Share Options
were accepted by the grantees.

19
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19 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 19 BREE)
(@) The terms and conditions of the Share Options are as (@) BBRE Z GRS
follows:
Exercise price Number of Vesting
per share options  condition Expiry date
BRTEER BREHE RTH4 ) EE
Options granted to directors: BERERTES:
-on 11 August 2014 -RZE-EENAT-H $0419 5,000,000 Notmorethan 10 August 2024
5,000,000
options will
vest on
1 August 2015*
A%5H5,000000 —F-ME
hERERR  \ATH
“2-1%
NE—REE*
~on 11 August 2014 -RZF-EENAT-H $0.419 5,000,000 Notmorethan 10 August 2024
5,000,000
options will
vest on
1 August 2017*
A%5H5,000000 —TZMF
PERERR  \BTH
Itk
NA—BHE*
-on 27 October 2016 -RZE-AETAZTHA $0.70 3,150,000 Vesting on 26 October 2026
1July 2017
RZE—tE  ZTIRF
tA-B5E TAZ+~A
—on 27 October 2016 -RZE-~F+A-t+A $0.70 3,150,000 Vesting on 26 October 2026
1uly 2018
RZE-N\& Iy
tA-REE  tA-1iA
-on 27 October 2016 -R=F-~F+A-ttA $0.70 4,200,000 Vesting on 26 October 2026
1 July 2019
RZE-NE TENE
tA-BEE  tAZTRE
- on 20 April 2021 i ey = §1.69 3,150,000 Vesting on 19 April 2022
20 April 2021
i i

MA-TREE MWATHA
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19  SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 19 BREGE)
(@) The terms and conditions of the Share Options are as (@ BREZERRGHEDT :
follows: (continued) (&)
Exercise price Number of Vesting
per share options - condition Expiry date
BRTEER BREHE RTHE LR
Options granted to employees: BRERFET .
~on 11 August 2014 -RZEF-IENAT-H §0.419 4,000,000 Vesting on 10 August 2024
1 August 2015
RZT-1%  _TCME
N\A-B&E /\AtH
—on 11 August 2014 -RZF-EBENAT-H §0.419 4,000,000 Vesting on 10 August 2024
1 August 2017
RIF-tF ZEFCpF
N\A-B&E /\AtH
- on 27 October 2016 -RZE-ETAZTHH $0.70 4,260,000 Vesting on 26 October 2026
1 July 2017
RZE—+F  ZE-RX
tA-H5E  tAZtRH
- on 27 October 2016 -RZE-AETAZTHA $0.70 4,260,000 Vesting on 26 October 2026
1July 2018
RB-\F  ZEI5E
tA-H5E  tAZtRH
- on 27 October 2016 -RZE-AETAZTHA §0.70 5,680,000 Vesting on 26 October 2026
1July 2019
RZB-NF  ZEINE
tA-REE  tA-1iA
—on 20 April 2021 -RZEZ-FNA-TA $1.69 11,850,000 Vesting on 19 April 2022
20 April 2021
i S S
MAZtRGE MAthH
Total number of share options e 57,700,000
*  The vesting of the Share Options granted to an * MARRRRITESR T ZER

executive director of the Company is subject to the

KM -

performance of the Group and other conditions.
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19 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 19 BREGE)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices (b) FERXHESE NINEFIITEE
of share options are as follows: LUl
2022 2021
—EB-CF —E-—F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price  of options price  of options
REF BRE  ETH R R
TEE L (=] 172 EgE|
000 ‘000
T T
Outstanding at the RERARITE
beginning of the year $0.59 12,600 $0.56 31,200
Granted during the year —~ RFERE $1.69 15,000 - -
Exercised during the year ~ N RTT{E $0.60 (10,750) $0.54 (18,600)
Lapsed during the year RERRN $1.69 (150) - -
Outstanding at the end of ~ IR HATTE
the year $1.56 16,700 $0.59 12,600
Exercisable at the end of ~ REFE AT
the year $1.56 16,700 $0.59 12,600

The Share Options outstanding as of 31 March
2022 had an exercise price of $0.70 or $1.69 (2021:
$0.419 or $0.70) per share and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 0.63 years (2021:
4.70 years). During the year ended 31 March 2022,
150,000 share options have lapsed (2021: nil). The
value of vested options which lapsed during the
year was amounting to $38,000 (2021: $nil) and
was released directly to retained profits.

RZE-_—_#=A=+—H"
MARITECHEREZITFEE
BER0.70TH1.69TT(ZF
——1% 1 0.41970%0.707T) &
NEEFHTEELFH0.63F
TE-—F 1 470F) - HE
TR F=ZRA=+—HLHF
EA - BA150,000( —ZF = —
F B DIBRERY - AFE
AP HEBRECHEBR
38,000 C( =T =—4F : &) -
WEEFTARE B
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19 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

244

(9]

Fair value of the Share Options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference to
the fair value of share options granted. The estimate
of the fair value of the 2014 Share Options, 2016
Share Options and 2021 Share Options granted
was measured based on the Trinomial Model,
after taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the share options were granted. The
contractual life of the share option and expectations
of early exercise were incorporated into the
Trinomial Model. The significant assumptions and
inputs used in the valuation model are as follows:

Fair value of and assumptions for 2014 share
options

Fair value at measurement date $0.176 to

$0.194
Share price $0.405
Exercise price $0.419
Risk-free interest rate 1.97%
Expected volatility 52.84%
Expected dividend yield 2.47%
Expected exercise multiple 2.2t02.8

Fair value of and assumptions for 2016 share
options

Fair value at measurement date $0.239 to

$0.271
Share price $0.70
Exercise $0.70
Risk-free interest rate 1.00%
Expected volatility 51.27%
Expected dividend yield 5.00%
Expected exercise multiple 1.8t0 4.0

19
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BREGE)

(o

BRE A FEREBER
BTk B A ERE A F K 1 R 1T
FEBRECRE 2 AFETY
SBARLERE 2 A FER
BB HE TR -
—E-RNERER-T B
f&#E 2 N FEMGET R RZE
R AR R 4R DASR B 2 IR R R A1
BIREBE=EAERGTE - B
BZAHNFHRIERITEZTE
HEMAZBRERR - HE
BRATER 2 ERBEREE
LN

—T-iEkEXFEREEA

56
REtERZAYE  $0.176%E
$0.194
M%EE $0.405
1T ER $0.419
428 [ P 1| K 1.97%
TEERR IR 52.84%
TEHAIR Bl e 2.47%
TEEATTIE & & 22%2.8

—E-RBREATVEREEHE

B

REtEHZAFE  $0.239%

$0.271
MHEE $0.70
TEER $0.70
g gE T | B 1.00%
TEERR 1R 51.27%
TE AR Bz 5.00%
TEHERT TR A& 1.824.0
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19 BREE)

19 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(o

(d

Fair value of the Share Options and assumptions
(continued)
Fair value of and assumptions for 2021 share

options
Fair value at measurement date $0.2509%
$0.2520
Share price $1.69
Exercise $1.69
Risk-free interest rate 0.05%
Expected volatility 44.58%
Expected dividend yield 5.00%
Expected exercise multiple 2.2t02.8

Risk-free interest rate is based on the yields of the
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes at the grant
date. Expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options). Expected
dividend yield is based on historical dividend trend
of the Company and expected future dividend
policy determined by management.

The vesting of the share options granted are
subject to the performance of the Group and other
conditions. Such non-market conditions have not
been taken into account in the grant date fair value
measurement of the share options. There are no
market conditions associated with the share options
granted.

The Trinomial Model is subject to certain
fundamental limitations because of the subjective
nature of and uncertainty relating to the assumptions
and inputs to the model as well as certain inherent
limitations of the model itself. Any changes in the
above assumptions or inputs may materially affect
the fair value estimation.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31 March 2022 in respect of the Share
Options is $3,768,000 (2021: $nil) (note 28(a)).

(o

(d

BREZ A FERMERBRERR
(%)
—EC-BREAFENKIEE
R

RETEHZAYE $0.2509%

$0.2520
M%EE $1.69
1IfEEE $1.69
428 [ gz 1| 2 0.05%
TEHERR 1R 44.58%
TEHARR B e = 5.00%
TEEATT{E & &k 221t02.8

Aﬂ”aﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁg
:—cﬁ%ﬂﬂx.ﬂ Bz WamR o
H&%mﬁﬁﬂf&%ﬁﬂg
BB 2 A P R SR HARR AT
8) - BHREXREENRRZ
B BE o R 8% & B IR ETRAET R
RALBHUIR

B 2 R i 2 57 B BUR TR AR
SEZXE R EAMRM o th3E
ISR EZB R A
AREBE A EZFE - BE
2R EF L ERENER TS
BEAH2E -

ZIEABRIZ L EARRF) -
REB2MHEMBEBRELEH
B2 AHEEN  ARETESR
BAARF 2 BRI - FARER

KBUERA TR BRI BEH QF
BRATEEERTE

BE-_Z-_—_F#=A=+—H
IHFE  REZEERZE
A ERE A &3,768,000
T(ZEZ—F : &) (&
28(a)) ©
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20 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS 20 EftEEREERR
@ Group @ Z*£HE
Other reserves
Hibff
Other
Share- financial
Statutory Capital based assets Total
Share  Treasury surplus Capital Merger  redemption compensation  revaluation  Translation other  Retained
premium share reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings
EERH BARE HBHXN HfttREE Eibfie

Bl ERR HE  EAEE  offE e WMok CEMEE  BERR g8 RERA
§000 §1000 §1000 §/000 §1000 §1000 $1000 §/000 §1000 §1000 §/000
i R tn r iR fn n n iR fn n

Balance at 1 April 2021 Z8=—£

as restated MA-Rz&R
(BEFl) 294471 - 27,533 2,608 17,045 1,753 2,952 (316) 17,523 363,569 1,131,893
Profitfor the year AT - - - - - - - - - - 549102

Remeasurementof ~ REREEEE

provision forlong 3718

sevice payment — (HiE25(h))

(note 25b) - = - - y - 1 - - . 1%
Equily setled shared-  HAEARAT 225

based transactions ~ (MizE19(d))

(note 19(d) - - - - - - 3,768 i - 3,768 -
Release upon lapse of /45 X & E

share options (MiEH190b)

(note 19(b) - = 1 - - - (38) - - (38) 38
Dividends paidin 2R -FRRE

respect of the

previous year < - - - - - - - - - (141259
Dividends paidin ~ BIEAFERE

respect of the

current year - - - - - - - - - - (110,952)
Currency translation ~ EMAEZR

differences - - - - - - - - 67,792 67,792 -
Fair value gain on other ZH2HEELT

financial assets [E2% @J(TJ

(non-recycling) ) - - - - - - - 2,256 - 2,256 -
Farvauegainon  EtERAELT

other financial assets B2 §if8

(recycling) (FEE) - - - y - - 2 56 A % \
Eflect on acqisition of Wﬁ {REHNE

subsidiaries under  AF ZF/2

common control (MTEZO Ji)

(note 20(c](ii) - - - - (45,725) - - = - (45,725) -
Assumption of debt ~ REMEEE2

labilites arising from [BisAE

the acquisifon o~ (FEE20(c)ii)

Jiaxuntong

(note 20(c)(ii) ) - - - - (331,533) - - - - (331,533) -
Appropriationof  EERHERAT

statutory surplus

reserve - - 32,526 - - - - - - 32,526 (32,526)
Repurchase of shares ~ EIEEFR 1A

(note 20(c)(iv) (HEEa0cliv) - (3,011) - - - - - - - (3,011) -
Cancellation of shares 34713 (FT5E20(c)

(notes 20€)(v)&W)  (iv&(v)) - 3,0m - - - 188 - - - 3,199 (3,011)
Issuance of share upon 7R ER IR/ H (T

exercise of share Tty

options 7,771 - - - - - (2434 - - 5,343 -
Balance at gCE

31 March 2022 ZA=1-H

268 302248 - 60059 2608 G60213) 1941 4248 19% &35 98202 1396219
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20 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS 20 HtRERREER(E)
(continued)
(@) Group (continued) @ X&EEE)
Other reserves
At
Other
Share- financial
Statutory Capital based assels Total
Share  Treasury surplus Capital Merger  redemption  compensation  revaluation  Translation ofher  Retained
premium share reserve reserve resere reseve reserve feserve reserve reserve earnings
EERS BARE LROXMz EtesEE A

RERE  BRE BE  ETRE  AKER BE HERE ZEMBE  HERG 2% RELH
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T i i i T i i i T n i

Balanceat 1 Aprl 2020 W%HEH
aspreviouslyreported  —F-FE
MA-RzEt 282,512 - - 2,608 (38,000) 1,753 6,701 169 (62,343) 193,400 782,916

Adjustment arising from BE(EFIR €178
adoption of merger A EAHHEL

accounting (note 2(b) 2 (izE0) - - 26,753 - 55,045 - - . - 8179 118317
Balance at 1 April 2020 Z2=%
(restated) MA-AzEk

(BE5) 282,512 -7 2,608 17,045 1753 6,701 10962343 2519 901,233

Movement during the K 225

year (restated): (BE3):
Profitfor the year £ - - - - - S - - B N
Remeasurementof  KEIRHEER

provision forlong 312

service payment (72510

(note 25(b)) - N - - - - - - - - (671)
Dividends paidin -~ BIEEERRE

respect of the

previous year - - - - = - S = - - (99,862)
Dividends paidin ~ BIEAFRRS

respect of the

current year - - - - - - - - 7 = (90,333)
Distribution to AETHEAZ R

controlling TBERRR

shareholder of

Jiaxuntong before

the Acquisitions - - - - - - - - - = (23,000
Currency ranslation ~ E%#EZR

differences - - - - - - - - 79,866 79,866 -

Rechssification of ~ MEZMSBEAE

other financial assets  EEEER

revaluation to profit or

loss upon disposal - - - - - - - 12 ¥ 1 -
Fairvaluelosseson ~ Ef2HEEAT

other financial assets (B2 £8)(F A&

(non-recycling) E) - - - - - - - (489) - (488) -
Fairvalue losseson ~ Ef2REELT

other financial assets B2 B (€

(recycling) ) - - - - - - - 9) - 9) -
Appropriation of AT AR HEAF

statutory surplus

reserve - - 780 - - - - - - 780 (780)
Issuance of share upon 7B RIE BT

exercise of share i

options 11,959 - - - - - (3,749) - - 6,210 -
Balance at 31 March =B=-%

2021 restated) =A=1-H

ZEH(EEN) 24471 - 27,53 2,608 17,045 1753 295 (316) 175 363569 1,131,893
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20 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

248

20 HtfRERREENE)

(continued)
(b) Company (b) AEAF
Other reserves
Hfbff
Other financial
Capital Share-hased assets
Share Treasury  redemption  Contributed ~compensation  revaluation  Total other Retained
premium share reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve earnings
BAR%A WRfixfte EptREE  HAHREE
RitaE EER i HABE  HERE  ZEGRE BF  REEY
§'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T T T
Balance at 1 April 2021 —E--EMA-A
k3 294,471 - 1,753 193,185 2,952 172 492,533 247,458
Profit for the year EEGT - - - - - - - 97,517
Equity settled shared-based ~ BARA %1225
transactions (note 19(d) (Mt19) - - - - 3,768 - 3,768 -
Release upon lapse of share BB K e RiE
options (note 19(b) (FE1190)) - - - - (38) - (38) 38
Remeasurement of provision for K& EBEH &
long service payment - - - - - < - 252
Dividend paid inrespectof ~ BIREFERS
the previous year - - - - - - - (141,259)
Dividend paid inrespectof ~ BIERAFERS
current year - - - - - - - (110,952)
Fair value losses on other Bt HARLATELE
financial assets recycling) B () - - - - - 2 (27 -
Repurchase of shares EEERH (K E2000)
(note 20(c)(iv)) - (3,011) - - - - (3,011) -
Cancellation of shares HRAH00
(notes 20(c)(iv)&v)) (iv)&(v)) - 3,011 188 - - - 3199 (3,011)
Issuance of share upon exercise  /T(EHRERE TR
of share options 7777 - - - (2,434) - 5,343 -
Balanceat31March 202~ =Z-=§=B=t-A
i 302,248 - 1,941 193,185 4,48 145 501,767 90,043
Balance at 1 April 2020 —E-EEMA-A
bi 22512 - 1753 193,185 6,701 169 484320 255,690
Profit for the year ERE - - - - - - - 182,009
Remeasurement of provision for & SR & EEEH:1E
long service payment - - - - = 7 = (24
Dividend paid in respectof the 2k LFERE
previous year - - - - - - - (99,882)
Dividend paid inrespectof ~ BIEAFERS
current year - = = < - - < 90,335)
Reclassification of other financial HiEZ 2 BEEZRE
assets revaluation o profitor 1
loss upon disposal - - - - - 12 12 -
Fair value losses on other HeREELTELE
financial assefs (recycling (M) - - - - - 0) 0) -
Issuance of share upon exercise  /T(FERERETTR (D
of share options 11,959 - - - (3,749) = 8,210 -
Balanceat 31 March 2021~ —E=-F=f=+-R
k3 294,471 - 1,753 193,185 2952 172 492,533 247 458
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20 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(continued)

(b)

(o

Company (continued)

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders,
subject to the condition that the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after
the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of its
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

At 31 March 2022, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was $283,228,000
(2021: $440,643,000). After the end of the
reporting period, the directors proposed a final
dividend of HK4.0 cents per ordinary share (2021:
final dividend of HK7.0 cents per ordinary share),
amounting to $80,852,000 (2021: $140,871,000)
(note 32(a)). This dividend has not been recognised
as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
entities outside Hong Kong. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 2(x).

(i) Merger reserve

Since AG5 is adopted, the net assets of
the acquired controlling companies are
consolidated using their existing book values
from the perspective of ultimate shareholder.
Merger reserve represents the difference
between the consideration paid and the net
book values of the acquirees.

20 EftFERREERNE)

(b)

(0

AAT(E)
REBRE-NN—FRADE
= %A%%T@“/ﬁ?ﬂx
% BEXMNKREROAR

EEXMEIMAE - ﬁ(ii)ﬁiﬁ
FZT“EETETEH TS
HLJE&EE%"TTHx$&HxT
Bz ARt - AR
AEf - IABE ﬁ?ﬁé%@ﬂl)\
BERMEH DK ©

{ﬁﬁ@E%“ AR A
2 {7 1% 4858 /5 283,228,000 7T
(== = — & : 440,643,000
JL) o EMKRE EEgE
HIRERHR B R EER4.0
BIW(ZZTZ—F  RERE
ERETER7.0EWL) €8 A
80,852,000 ( — & = —4F :
140,871,0007T ) (FI5E32(@a)) °
IER% B RS BRI R R A
BfE-

RE2HEREN

(iy MERHE
BERFEERERETE
INE BRI R ME £

ZEBNNEZR - R
%mmﬂﬁzz E=%lpd
SETBURRRE

(i) AOHEE
HRERAGESIES
5% KRB IE AR F
BENGRERBERZAERE
RBRAREESRS AR -
B R EE A RE R
Yl T M ARE(EH) 23R ©
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20 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

250

(0

(if)

(iii)

Merger reserve (continued)

On 8 March 2022, KRP acquired entire
interest of certain companies controlled
by the controlling shareholder of the
Company (including certain subsidiaries of
the Company) with total cash consideration
of RMB37,150,000. In addition, KRP
also assumed the debt liabilities of a new
entity, Dongguan Jiale, owed to Jiaxuntong
amounting to RMB276,278,000 (equivalent
to approximately $331,533,000) as part of the
consideration.

Other financial assets revaluation reserve
The other financial assets revaluation reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of other financial assets held at the
end of the reporting period and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2(g).

Treasury share

The Group repurchased a total of 1,880,000
(2021: nil) of the Company’s shares during
the year ended 31 March 2022. The total
consideration paid to repurchase these shares
was $3,011,000 (2021: $nil), which has
been deducted from equity attributable to
the owners of the Company. During the year
ended 31 March 2022, 1,880,000 shares
(2021: nil) were cancelled. Accordingly, the
premium of $3,011,000 (2021: $nil) paid
on the repurchase of shares was charged to
retained earnings.

Capital redemption reserve

During the year ended 31 March 2022, upon
cancellation of 1,880,000 shares, an amount
equivalent to the par value of the shares
cancelled of $188,000 was transferred from
share capital to the capital redemption reserve.

20
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HibfE B R R BB (&)

(o

EzMEERBNGE)

(if)

(iii)

Pt EE(E)
F_E::EEHAH-
REMEWRES THAR
ﬁ(@%ﬂi a5 TH B
NA) PR R %IJZ

AlZERAREREHR

R # 37,150,000 7T ° th
AN R EAEFT AR
ZEHRREZ—3H
BN EMBALA
R # 276,278,000 7t ( 18
B #9331,533,0007T ) BR

e
AN

Hitv EmEES L fHE
Hip e EaESERHEEE
BRME AR A L EAM

THEENTFEZRE
)RR - WAREMFE2(9)

oz @t KR

EFR
BHEx_ZET_-__—_®€=H
z+—El¢¢F§W P INEE
H 5] 8% 1,880,000 A% X

Tﬂx1ﬁ}(_-= ——4F:
m> BREZRHEX
B A3,011,0007T( =
T —F  E) 0 ZFOB

BHRARRQ R R ELERE
Tk e BE_ZT-—F
“A=+t—BIFERN
1,880,000 g f& 0 ( = &
T—F E)BWEE -
E it - AR ERY
2 #%183,011,000C( ==
——F  E)ERNREE
FISZ8H -

BEREE #E
HE_Z2-__=AH
=+— EJLEF‘W B
51,880,000 % f% 17 1% -
HMEREFHERKRMDEE
188,000 T 2 & ¥ 2 B IX
ezt EARE R o
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21 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 EBSENERF - EitERREMmE

3 BRFX
2022 2021
—E-—F —E—F
(Restated)
(BE&E7)
$/000 $'000
5 Fr
Trade payables g HENERK 375,951 340,424
Accruals for short-term lease expenses  fEFT A HATH S 4,315 7,289
Accruals for purchase of property, plant  JEFTIEE Y% - B&
and equipment B 22,035 21,689
Salaries and staff welfare payable EftH e kB TR 207,971 190,897
Accruals for properties under ERES=LY/E
development 153,541 7,358
Other payables and accruals oA FE T BRI S 5T
=931 125,873 112,618
Receipts in advance FEU BRI
(see note (a) below) (R 3R EE@)) 630,246 506,159
1,143,981 846,010
1,519,932 1,186,434
The carrying amounts of trade payables, accruals and ZBEMENED  EIEREREME
other payables approximate their fair values. All trade NEZIVEEESEAFEGMAR o
payables and accruals as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 are R-oE-——ER-_T-—&E=A
expected to be settled within one year. =+-BrFFEEBSENES &
S E 0 I A B SRR — 4
POER -
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21

252

TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

(continued)

Trade payables ageing analysis, based on invoice date, is

BEZENERR B ERREMWE
IR (&)
BORNEFNIZEZAHFEZR

as follows: BAWNIT
2022 2021
== —E-—F
$7000 $'000
F F7T
0 to 90 days 0Z90H 353,522 322,729
91 to 180 days 912180H 20,600 16,097
181 to 360 days 1812360H 1,285 1,434
Over 360 days 360H A = 544 164
375,951 340,424

(@ Receipts in advance FE U BR Ek

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount
of contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Manufacturing segment

When the Group receives a deposit before
the production activity commences, this will
give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a
contract, until the revenue recongised on the
project exceeds the amount of the deposit. The
amount of deposit is negotiated on a case by
case basis with customers.

Property development

The Group receives receipts in advance
from customers when they sign the sale
and purchase agreement. These receipts in
advance are recognised as contract liabilities
until the properties are completed and legally
assigned to/accepted by customers.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA

BRERFECHAEHNAR
R BE MG

RUEE DB
EAKEELERSFRSR
I EIRER - EREAR
HRRRELANEE
HRE®REBRABS
RELBARIL  -REDHE
REEBBREEF#H
7 o

E S

AEERFF BB HEN
FBRWBIFP R - EL
HRERFRNEEEE &
FPEIXEERZMEZHA
ERREHMEIE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& SA#BASN » LABTTHIR)

TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 ESEMERER - ExtBERAKEME
(continued) FERFR (&)
(@) Receipts in advance (continued) (@ TFEWERI(E)
Movements in contract liabilities: BHBEZEH
2022 2021
—ZE=-= —E-—F
(Restated)
(B2&E5)
$’000 $’000
Fr Ft
Beginning of the year as restated B2 &2 F7] 506,159 237,903
Decrease in contract liabilities as ~ RAFRNERFT AFA]
a result of recognising revenue BHRBZERRA
during the year that was included B & KB ERHD
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (391,339) (221,841)
Increase in contract liabilities as WEGETBR BB & 4
a result of receiving receipts in BEEN
advances 495,094 470,440
Exchange difference Hg=ER 20,332 19,657
End of the year FE 630,246 506,159

As at 31 March 2022, the amount of receipts in
advance expected to be recognised as revenue
after more than one year are $50,853,000 (2021
(restated): $138,148,000).

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts
for manufacturing products and properties
development such that information about revenue
that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies
the remaining performance obligations that had an
original expected duration of one year or less need
not to be disclosed.

R-_E-_—_#=A=+—H"
78 U BR 70 $50,853,0007T ( =&
——F (&%) : 138,148,000
)RR RN —FRER AN
A) e

AEEC BB BT BHREEL
FISHBI2IRZAIITHEER
ERERANAEZLER MEHES
FHHEHESR - RN ASE
EHZzEEENER TR
RAE—FINT2RBEHNE
FZHEBYRA HBEBARE
YER % ER -
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22 BANK BORROWINGS 22 RITEEE

254

2022 2021
—ZE- T —F
$’000 $000
Fr Tt
Portion of bank borrowings repayable ~ —F AEE I 5 E A
within one year and classified as HEREZRITEES
current liabilities v 738,434 301,010
Portion of bank borrowings repayable ~ —F&EETHIEAIE
after one year and classified as RBEECRITER
non-current liabilities =Bt
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERZFAN 167,750 612,706
After 2 years but within 5 years ZFBERAEFA 295,000 3,750
462,750 616,456
Total bank borrowings IRTTIEE R 1,201,184 917,466
Representing: AN
Secured B 291,077 439,530
Unsecured i 910,107 477,936
Total bank borrowings RITEERSE 1,201,184 917,466
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F 5 & HBASN »

22 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 March 2022, banking facilities of $359,636,000

(2021: $516,700,000) were secured by the pledged
deposits of $84,539,000 (2021: $nil), property under
development for sale of $nil (2021: $151,977,000) and
the share capital of the two wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, Castfast Industrial (Yan Tien) Limited
and KR AIFEHERMZE B R A F], such facilities were
utilised to the extent of $291,077,000 as at 31 March
2022 (2021: $439,530,000).

At 31 March 2022, borrowings totaling $738,434,000
(2021: $301,010,000) have a contractual maturity within
one year or are subject to repayment on demand clauses.
Some of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s
statement of financial position ratios. If the Group were
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. As at 31
March 2022 and 2021, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate
their fair values.

22

AT HRAR MR

LAFBTTEIIR)

RITEEE)
RZE-_—_F=A=+—H ' &7
#h & %4 359,636,000 L ( — T — —
% 516,700,000 ) *© A EEIFR
84,539,000 C(=ZF=—%F : &) -
FHERVESL(ZE=—F
151,977,0007C) X AR B MEE2E
MEBA R EHZEZEBASKHA

RARKRERAIEHEREER

DRI ZBAERE MR- ==
FZA=+—8 E%}i%ﬂ)ﬁﬁzﬁﬂéﬁﬁ
£291,077,000 0 ( =& = —
439,530,0007T) ©

RZEZZF=A=+—H "R
TEEANIBRAE—FART
RRIEERER 15%%&2@%5,\
738,434,000 7T ( — T — — &F
301,010,000 7T ) ° $;‘%l—;ﬂ3 R
TRERFEARNEES THBARR
R EBEB I RBERITEFAE
T oMARBEERBEARSE  AIE
TR BERIZEKRER -  ANEE

EHERAETERATR 22BN -
RZEBE-_—_FR-_F-_—F=H
=+—HB HMEECIIREEH
CRFEEER o

TEEZ REAEEE A HERED
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23 LEASE LIABILITIES 23 HE&SE
At 31 March 2022, the lease liabilities were repayable as RZE-_ZF=A=+—HZHE
follows: BEEBENT
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Present Present
value of the value of the
lease  Total lease lease  Total lease

payments payments payments payments

HEMR  HEEMR  EEMm HEM

ZBEE k] ZBE 4B
$’000 $’000 $000 $000
Fr Fr T Tt
Within 1 year —FRQ 7,942 8,800 2,594 2,690
After 1 year but within 2 years —&F&ERZFR 7,467 7,926 974 1,006
After 2 years but within 5 years ZF{&ERHFA 5,167 5,346 167 167
12,634 13,272 1141 1173
20,576 22,072 3,735 3,863

Less: total future interest B RRF B B
expenses (1,496) (128)
Present value of lease liabilities FHEBEZHEE 20,576 3,735
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B RS HRAR B EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& SA#BASN » LABTTHIR)
24 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 24 NEZEEHBRRERPHRE

(@) Current taxation (@) ZAHAFIIE

2022 2021
g —E—F
(Restated)
(BE&E5)
$’000 $’000
T Tt

Provision for Hong Kong Profits RERFBNEBHZ
Tax for the year P 26,078 23,869

Provisional Hong Kong Profits ENEHEENEH
Tax paid (17,900) (14,665)
8,178 9,204
Provision for PRC taxes R B AT 1S 2 B4 597,791 596,709
605,969 605,913
Current tax recoverable A HA ] U [B] §IE (1,153) (200)
Current tax payable RNHARE R IE 607,122 606,113
605,969 605,913
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24 REFEEMBRRRFBREAGE)

24 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred taxation

Temporary
difference

(b) EZEHIA

Accrual
for Land

for property Appreciation

Deferred tax assets EEHBEE Tax losses development Tax (“LAT”) Others Total
NMERR THERR
REER <ERZR TR Htt At
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
At 1 April 2020 as mER 25K
previously reported e 223
WA—A (7,409) (5,643) - (2,676) (15,728)
Adjustments arising from  Bt{EFIE HHE@Et R
adoption of merger AR GHELZ
accounting (note 2(b)) B (FiFF2(b)) - - (61,017) - (61,017)
At 1 April 2020 (restated) —Z-ZFMA—A
(BE5) (7,409) (5,643)  (61,017) (2,676)  (76,745)
(Credited)/charged to BT,/ X 84
profit or loss (restated) ~ (E&7) 361) - (39,843) 1,331 (38,873)
Exchange difference SBER(EE)
(restated) - - (5,478) - (5/478)
At31March2021and Z—ZE=-—-%
1 April 2021 (restated) =A=+—HR
—E--F
mA—-H(BEH) (7,770) (5,643) (106,338) (1,345) (121,096)
Charged/(credited) o~ AE#&ZH/(FTA)
profit or loss 5,193 1,196 (76,162) (382) (70,155)
Exchange difference FHBER - - (5,764) - (5,764)
At 31 March 2022 —E-CE
=ZA=+-H 2,577) 4,447)  (188,264) (1,727)  (197,015)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& SA#BASN » LABTTHIR)

24 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 24 REEMBERRRPBIIEE)
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
Deferred taxation (continued) (b) EZEFIE(E)
Fair value
gain of Capitalisation
Accelerated investment of loan
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE depreciation properties interests Total
REWE EXFE
mEFE LAFEzUER - ¥ aft
$000 $'000 $000 $000
T T T T
At 1 April 2020 ZE-EFENA-H 4,191 1,895 8,481 14,567
(Credited)/charged to profit ~ W& (FTA),/ X
or loss (74) 297 3,710 3,933
Exchange difference JBER - 146 - 146
At 31 March 2021 and —EC--F
1 April 2021 ZA=t-BK
—E--¥MA-AH 4,117 2,338 12,191 18,646
(Credited)/charged to profit ~ R (;FA),/ X8
or loss (1,530) 492 (1,428) (2,466)
Exchange difference RBER - 107 - 107
At 31 March 2022 —ECCZF
=ZA=+-H 2,587 2,937 10,763 16,287
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24 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

260

(b)

Deferred taxation (continued)

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off and when the deferred income taxes relate to
the same tax jurisdiction. The following amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position:

24 REFEEMBRRRFBREAGE)

(b)

IEERIR (5

ERREENASEERAE
ERBEEHRAAGEERE - ME
SEFTS RS K Bl — RIS -
R A 85 E A IR & B BLR TR
BREEMREE - Rt AEE
KR - THSBEREEME
AR AR -

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

(Restated)

(B&E5)

$’000 $’000

T Tt
Deferred tax assets FEEFIAE B (189,991) (108,034)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIEEE 9,263 5,584
(180,728) (102,450)

At 31 March 2022, in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(u), the Group had
unrecognised deferred tax assets of approximately
$19,021,000 (2021: $25,283,000) primarily
representing the tax effect of cumulative tax losses
(subject to agreement by relevant tax authorities)
which can be carried forward against future taxable
income, of which, tax losses of $115,278,000 (2021:
$153,230,000) can be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2022, deferred tax
liabilities in respect of the 5% dividend withholding
tax relating to the distributable profits of the Group's
subsidiaries in the PRC were not recognised as
the Group controls the dividend policy of the
subsidiaries. Based on the assessment made by
management as at the end of each reporting period,
it was determined that the distributable profits of
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC would not be
distributed to the Hong Kong and overseas holding
companies in the foreseeable future. The deferred
tax liabilities not recognised for the distributable
profits earned by the subsidiaries in the PRC
amounted to $68,021,000 and $96,554,000 as at
31 March 2021 and 2022 respectively.
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RN SRR E20)
AEEBRBRELCRIBEELD
19,021,000 ( =& = —F :
25,283,0007T) * TEREKZR
FIRIEEE B E(ARYE
PASHERE) - Zeran M
RIRFRHEWAEKLE - MBS
E#4)115,278,0000( =& = —
£ 1 153,230,0007T ) A £ R Hf
e o

R-FE-——RK T —#F=H
=+—8 ' BRAREEHIH
BB Z B - I E 5t
EBAARQRIFEWB AR D
K M) 2 5% B FE T MR
ERIERE - BREBEEEENS
WMEBREL Z2FE - AR A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k5B &2 + LABITHIR)

25 RIKBRET

25 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(@

(b)

Defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to join the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
and its employees makes monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. Both the Group’s and the employees’
mandatory contributions are subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $30,000 and thereafter,
contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in the PRC. The Group’s
annual contributions to these plans represent
defined contributions, and the Group has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions
or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

Long service payments

Provision for long service payments represents
the Group’s obligations for long service payments
to its employees in Hong Kong on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

The obligation is calculated using the projected
unit credit method, discounted to its present value
and reduced by entitlements accrued under the
Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. Such long service
payment obligations are valued by Roma Appraisals
Limited, an independent qualified actuary valuer.

(@

(b)

REMRETE

REECLZHEBREES MR
FIMEAEETE ([ REST
Bl - RESFEIBRAEMH
HETE  ABUREAETRE -
BiEgRESTE  ~AEERHE
EEERHZEBAREEZAR
(EE BBl RTESEN)5%
HZETEERHE - AEB K
EE2® A AB%LA30,0007T

RLER - BR 2 HFRBE B R
& -
RBEHBAEMTE  AEEE

ARTEEEMRECBERE
BR ARG EEL R - AR E
) Itk 51 &1 2 F 58 R
o MimE R R ERERE
X SRR EAEF A B A
EALE - RIMEBZFAAR
REeEXH—HHERED 2R
IRETEIELT -

RUIBREE
FRHRG2EERARERIE
BERBIGOIIES TER TR
IHEEREE M 2 KBRS
SAOTEZEE -

?%EELME.#ﬁum,\/iqu
B WETEAMIRE MRS
@Lﬁiﬂriﬂ SR BT
ZIERTHELE - R EE
THBYIAEREEMESE
BRELE AR A FHE o
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25 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

262

(b)

25 RAKBREEZE)

Long service payments (continued) (b) Eﬁﬁﬂﬁi‘iﬁ(ﬁ%}
The amounts recognised in the consolidated ,i?éﬁﬁiiﬂlj:/%%ﬁﬁw T
statement of financial position are determined as BTG EE
follows:
2022 2021
—E-—F B —F
$’000 $000
T TIT
Present value of unfunded REIEEBEZBHRBERR
obligations and liability in the FEMBIRRAZ
consolidated statement of BfE
financial position 6,241 9,149
A portion of the above liability is expected to B Ez — &0 BHRGREB
be paid after more than one year. However, it W—FEA - A - e
is not practicable to segregate this amount from BHARKRT_FAARN 22

the amounts payable in the next twelve months,
as future contributions will also relate to future
services rendered and future changes in actuarial
assumptions and market conditions. The Group
expects to pay $89,000 in contributions to
retirement plan for the year ending 31 March 2023
(2022: $nil).
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25 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 25 BRAKBNEEE)
(b) Long service payments (continued) b) RERBE(E)
The amounts recognised in the consolidated RiZeEakAEMmE2ER AR
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive RZTRMT

income are as follows:

2022 2021
—E-—F —E—F
$’000 $000
Fr T
Current service cost AN EABR B AN 166 242
Interest on obligation BEMNE 124 76
Total amounts recognised in profit  AEHE R ZESHE
or loss (note 28(a)) (Md5¥28(@a)) 290 318
Net actuarial (gains)/losses REA 2 ERACHER
recognised in other ZREF (),
comprehensive income B8 (2,934) 671
Total Y IE] (2,644) 989
The current service cost and the net interest on ARERBHR AR ZFETHED
obligation were included in the “general and BERNGAERER BRI
administrative expenses” in the consolidated BERR o

statement of profit or loss.
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25 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

264

(b)

25 RAKBREEZE)

Long service payments (continued) (b) RBRBE(E)
Movements in the provision for long service AEBRBRE S EBES I
payments of the Group are as follows: N
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
$/000 $'000
Fr T
Beginning of the year F10 9,149 8,162
Remeasurements: EHEE
— Actuarial losses arising from — AARRRES
demographic assumptions ZIEEEE 359 996
— Actuarial gains arising from — MM RERSE
changes in financial assumptions EEZBERE (988) (1,029)
— Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from — FRACERFHEEPTE A
experience adjustment Z g (W),
518 (2,305) 704
(2,934) 671
Payments made during the year FREMERK (264) (58)
Refund received during the year FRREIRK - 56
Current service cost ANHARR TG A AN 166 242
Interest cost B 124 76
End of the year FR 6,241 9,149

The weighted average duration of the obligation is
12.4 years (2021: 9.6 years).
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25 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 25 BRAKBRNEEE)
(b) Long service payments (continued) (b) RBERBE(E)
Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity EZRBREZBRENMGERESNT
analysis are as follows: U
2022 2021
—s-= —E-—F
Per annum Per annum
BF FF
Discount rate PLERS 2.15% 2.09%
Expected rate of future salary ARRF 2 FEEE R X
increases 2.50% 3.00%
The below analysis shows how the provision RITFE_—_FR-_T-_—F=
for long service payments as at 31 March 2022 A=+—H EZ2RBERKXE
and 2021 would have increased/(decreased) as a m/ CR)0.50% ¥ & B AR %
result of 0.50% change in the significant actuarial SEBZZEITWT

assumptions:

2022 2021
—E-CE B
Increase in  Decrease in  Increase in  Decrease in
0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%
#1m0.50% H20.50% 3EM0.50% K2 0.50%
$000 $000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr T T
Discount rate ARIRE 413) 452 (414) 445
Expected rate of future PN S
salary increases TEHRIE R & 718 (668) 11 21)
The above sensitivity analysis is based on the A E@URRE D AT R E R E
assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions HRERRZEREEHEH
are not correlated and therefore it does not take b .Ltl:/xﬁ STE B E
into account the correlations between the actuarial H”ZE’@ g

assumptions.
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26 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME/GAINS 26 WA - Elg A ik
2022 2021
—E-= I
(Restated)
(B&E%)
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Revenue from contracts with customers % & B # 3z & 2 Al
within the scope of HKFRS 15 S15REERNE
BEFZEHRA
Sales of merchandise HmiHE
— Metal and plastic business —HeBBER 1,920,032 1,895,368
— Electronic manufacturing services —BEFEXRRIEK
business 1,154,981 898,006
3,075,013 2,793,374
Sale of properties MEHE 938,421 679,424
4,013,434 3,472,798
Other income/gains: HAWBA s
Fixed rental income EEE KA 4,421 3,980
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE MR
and equipment ZWEs 1,158 271
Loss on disposal of other financial HEHRMEREEZ
assets E1a - (690)
Government grants received ES2BNERS
(note (i) (B&EG)) 2,033 9,194
Written off of other receivables ELAth LA BR SR 35 - (20,010)
Others (note (ii)) Ho A (BT (i) 3,157 9,856
10,769 2,601
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26 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME/GAINS (continued)

Notes:

(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
successfully applied for and received funding support of
$6,029,000 from the Employment Support Scheme under
the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the Hong Kong SAR
Government. The purpose of the funding was to provide
financial support to enterprises to retain their employees who
would otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms of
the grant, the Group was required not to make redundancies
during the subsidy period and to spend all the funding on
paying wages to the employees.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group received
subsidies of $2,033,000 (2021:$2,570,000) from the
PRC government. The purposes of these subsidies are
to encourage the use of high-technologies machineries,
promote the development of human resources and to
provide financial support to enterprise during the COVID-19
pandemic.

(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
successfully applied for and received refund of Value-added
Tax (“VAT”) of $6,624,000 from the VAT refund mechanism
introduced by the China’s State Council in effective from 1
April 2019.

As at 31 March 2022, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts is
$979,075,000 (2021 (restated): $1,017,036,000). These
amounts represent revenue expected to be recognised
in the future from pre-completion sales contracts for
properties under development. The Group will recognise
the expected revenue in future when the properties
are accepted by the customer, or deemed as accepted
according to the contract, whichever is earlier and
is expected to occur from 12 to 24 months from the
contract date.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to revenue such that the
above information does not include information about
revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it
satisfies the remaining performance obligations under
the contracts for sales of electronic products that had an
original expected duration of one year or less.

26 WA - B A k(&)

GEX

(i) HE-ZZ-_—F=ZA=+—HFE
A REBKIERBRESERBUT
BRIZZ R RS T 2RI ¥ 2
M URER 6,029,000 CE S iR © X E
Bz BEMRATERENHEIE B
REBIEESWENZIEE - RIEED
AR ARG E A B sk A AL AR
BEHE  UBHEEHERINET
T4 o

HE-_Z-_—_#=ZA=+—H&E
A RS E JRIKER2,033,000T (= F
——% :2,570,00070) B BT 2
A ARz BEMEREFEAER
Fikes - B AA B RBE20197
RRESREIBEZ B XIE -

iy BHE_FE-_—4F=-A=T—HSE
W AEBEKI PR BB RER
—E-NFMA—BRERZIEER
AR BB $E A SRR T M R EGR B (BT
+%86,624,0007T °

WZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H 1RE
BHTHEEFBRENET AR
X 5% /979,075000L( —F = —
F(B &%) : 1,017,036,0007T) ° %
CHARREARARERZBEEREY
¥HEAGHZTATBA - AEE K
BWRARKIETWA - ERPEXZ
MEXRBERABERABCESTR
UREERERIEFILEHARA
HARR12 224 @ B3 A o

HRAEECHERARAE LY
BREERE155RE 121 B 2 BEIRAE
B4 At LA ERYAEEE
AR ASRBEREBERBERAFHS —F
AT EXRSETEREEET
M B WE 2 WA Z EFYL o
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27

268

EXPENSES BY NATURE 27 BRMESEZER
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
(Restated)
(BE%)
$/000 $/000
Ft T
Carrying amount of inventories sold* EERTFE ZRAEE" 2,148,846 1,969,902
Carrying amount of properties sold EEWRZREEH
(note 15(b)) #15(b)) 228,150 185,699
Depreciation and amortisation of Mm% - BB REEZ
property, plant and equipment (note 6)  #T& N85 ([ 5%6) 97,118 88,453
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EE 2 #H
(note 8) (BT5E8) 1,548 1,543
Employee benefit expenses (including B EE@FFHZ (BRIEE
directors’ remuneration) (note 28(a)) =< ) (FI3E28(a)) 496,038 391,158
Rental expenses of short-term leases MHHERS 6,126 4,938
Net exchange loss/(gain) P& 5 &8 (WEs ) 358 683 (2,483)
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN & 3,800 3,700
Recognition of loss allowance for EEINESEY AT
trade and bills receivable BB 2 TR
(note 12) (MF5E12) 2,002 -
Reversal of write-down of obsolete and ~ FRE K& 517 EMURL 2
slow-moving inventories [o] 42 (396) -
Listing expenses (note) &R M) 9,962 8,093
Other expenses HEash 64,204 81,588
3,058,081 2,732,591
Representing: RF*E:
Cost of revenue U AR AN 2,865,071 2,526,421
Distribution and selling expenses DIHNIHEE B 43,559 46,456
General and administrative expenses —MRRITEE B 149,451 159,714
3,058,081 2,732,591
*  The carrying amount of inventories sold excluded * EEHFEZREETREYE

depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and

equipment, employee benefit expenses and rental expenses.
Note: The listing expenses in both years were incurred for a possible
spin-off and separate listing of the real estate business of the
Group on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited by way of introduction. Included in the listing
expenses, HK$2,700,000 (2021: HK$1,700 000) is related to
auditor’s remuneration to KPMG.
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES — INCLUDING 28 EERIXL-BFEESHE
DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION
(a) Employee benefit expenses during the year are as @@ FAERERHMS LT
follows:
2022 2021
—ZE=-= —F-—F
(Restated)
(B&E3)
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Wages and salaries FENRTE 461,272 384,009
Contributions to defined FE MRS Z
contribution retirement plans R 30,708 6,831
Provision for long service REIBRTS & %
payments (note 25(b)) (BF5¥25(b)) 290 318
Share option expenses BB
(note 19(d)) (FET9(d)) 3,768 -
496,038 391,158
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES — INCLUDING 28 EEGEAXH-SRESEME(E)
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Directors’ remuneration b EE=EME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant RIBFBCRBGDI)E383E
to section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies KRalgplz 8 2 (BEE
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies Ordinance EEMZBBEER) RO 2ES
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of e iR T -

Directors) Regulation is as follows:

2022
—ECCE
Employer's

Discretionary ~ contributions  Share-based

&director’s ~ to retirement payments
Name of director LS Fees Salary bonuses plans (note) Total

MRy BAeTE  ARHXH
fig #e JEAL ZREEHR EM(ME) aft
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
fr fr fr fr tr fr

Fxecutive directors HiTEZ

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai fEELE - 4772 3,699 > = 8,671
Mr. Zhao Kai Bk - 1,200 3,607 y3) 252 5,161
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia &85/ - 918 2,078 18 252 3,266
Mr. Chan Raymond RRtE - 1,059 2,289 18 252 3,618

Non-executive directors FHEE

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming femhrs 20 - 40 - - 260
Mr. Ho Kai Man 8% - 477 194 18 38 727

Independent non-executive BV H#E7EE

directors
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing yigich i 150 - - - - 150
Mr. Yam Chung Shing b i 150 - - - - 150
Dr. Lau Kin Wah Blpt 150 - - - - 150
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)

28

BEBAXH - BREESEME(E)

Directors’ remuneration (continued) (b)) ESME(E)
201
“F--F
Employer's
contributions
Discretionary o retirement
Name of director EEEa Fees Salary bonuses plans Total
MEEH  RAEHE
g #o JEL ZEEH At
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
T T T T T
Erecutive directors HiTEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai s - 4736 3,093 - 8,029
Mr. Zhao Kai bl - 1,4 3,110 10 4344
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia Rk - 890 1,686 18 2,594
Mr. Chan Raymond BRUEE - 1,032 1947 18 2,997
Non-executive directors FHEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming HERiE 244 - 40 - 284
Mr. Ho Kai Man MR - 476 163 18 637
Independent non-executive directors BV FE{7EE
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing pigich i 130 - - - 130
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EEHEE 130 - - - 130
Mr. So Wai Chun (resigned on iy
1 December 2020) +ZA-B#HE) 90 - - - 9
Dr. Lau Kin Wah (was appointedon ~~ BJE#EH(ZT-%F
1 December 2020) +ZR-PEEf) 50 - - - 50
Note: These represent the estimated value of share options MiEE - WRRBEADTERRET

granted to the directors under the Company’s share

option scheme. The value of these share options

is measured according to the Group’s accounting

policies for share-based payments as set out in note

2(t). The details of these share options, including the

principal terms and number of options granted, are

disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES — INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

272

(9]

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the

highest in the Group for the year include four (2021:
four) directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments
payable to the remaining one (2021: one) individuals

during the year are as follows:

28

BEREAXH - BEESEME(E)

(9]

hEERSHFMAL
AEEEBREZSHFMZ A
+TEFENE(ZE-—F : g

FIEE  EMSEERN EXD
e RFREB—R(ZT=_—
F —RB) e AL Z B
0T ¢

2022 2021

—E-= —E—F

$’000 $/000

Fr TIT

Basic salaries and allowances BEAR e MoREL 847 869
Discretionary bonus BOIE B P2 FEAL 971 782
Contributions to retirement plans  iRRET &) 2 3K 18 18
Share-based payment VAR A7) ST A5t ¥R B 126 -
1,962 1,669

The emoluments fell within the following band:

ZEMEE TIHAEEN

Number of individuals

AT EE
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
$1,500,001 to 1,500,0017T2
$2,000,000 2,000,0007T 1 1
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29 FINANCE INCOME, NET 29 BrREWA - FEE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E - —F
(Restated)
(BEE5)
$’000 $’000
T Tt
Finance costs A5 R AR
— Interest expense from financial liabilities —IZ#SEXAETE 2 S
measured at amortised cost B v aas 36,454 36,991
— Interest expenses on lease liabilities —HERBEZMBEXH 678 219
Less: interest expenses capitalised into i © FAERYIFERN S
property under development for SHERME
sale (note) (B5E) (22,394) (29,235)
14,738 7,975
Finance income U N
— Interest income from financial assets — — IR A EZ D
measured at amortised cost BB EF BUA (16,690) (10,956)
— Other interest income from financial —IZAFETAREME
assets measured at FVOCI (recycling) E YA (FIEE ) 5+
EZEMEEREM
FBUA (377) (423)
(17,067) (11,379)
Finance income, net B A - FEE (2,329) (3,404)
Note: The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 4.14% MisE @ EERAUNENERL14%(ZFE=—
(2021: 4.13%) per annum. F 1 4.13%) BRI -
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30

274

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS

The amount of taxation charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents:

30 REEBRBERTHAES

RIFERBERIHZ HIANT

2022 2021
—=s_—= B —F
(Restated)
(B&E3)
$’000 $000
Fr T
Current taxation SRR 18
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBENSH
— Current year —KREEZ 26,078 23,869
— Over provision in prior years —EFZEREER @1 (787)
PRC taxes R IE
— Corporate Income Tax —EMFH 200,354 121,917
— Land Appreciation Tax — T HIR{ER 268,740 193,496
Deferred taxation (note 24(b)) ESEBR (M7E24(b) (72,621) (34,940)
422,480 303,555

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year for all Group companies incorporated in
Hong Kong.

The Group’s operations in the PRC are subject to
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC at the standard tax
rate of 25% (2021: 25%), except for one PRC subsidiary
of the Group was rewarded with Certificate of High
and New Technology Enterprise and entitled for a tax
reduction from 25% to 15% for a period of three years,
effective from 1 January 2020. Land Appreciation Tax is
levied on properties in mainland China developed by the
Group for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, which under the
applicable regulations is calculated based on the revenue
from sale of properties less deductible expenditure
including lease charges of land use rights, borrowing
costs and all property development expenditure.
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 30 RESHRBERTHAEN(E)
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and ShxHRZERTEAEZS
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: aﬁ‘/ﬁnf'JZaH
2022 2021
—B—_= T —F
(Restated)
(B&E3)
$’000 $/000
Fr TIT
Profit before taxation R R Al ) 971,582 748,883
Less: Land Appreciation Tax W T HbIBR(ER (268,740) (193,496)
Profit before Hong Kong Profits Tax and  BR & EF1SH k(b3
Corporate Income Tax FTiSE Al @ A 702,842 555,387
Notional tax calculated at applicable WERAREFEZ
income tax rate RETIE 152,685 130,048
Associate’s results reported net of tax g N mEE - kR
BIA (192) (245)
Income not subject to taxation BIARIZ A (27,556) (39,851)
Expenses not deductible for taxation AATHIRE 2 2
purposes 28,345 21,546
Temporary difference not recognised RERCERER 812 (679)
Overprovision for Hong Kong taxation & 2 BEMIBZ
in prior years TR @1 (787)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised  {# A {E F R ERILIA
tax losses Bia (369) (11
Unused tax losses not recognised REER 2 AMEATIA
B8 86 138
Hong Kong Profits Tax and BB
Corporate Income Tax TEFEHR 153,740 110,059
Land Appreciation Tax THIBER 268,740 193,496
Income tax expense P B s2 422,480 303,555
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31

276

EARNINGS PER SHARE

31

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
by weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue after adjusting the potential dilutive effect of the

outstanding options during the year.

BRER

BREARGENDRIFEARR A RR
BABRERNBRAFADRTZE

BRI EGTE -

BEREROSN IRIEA QB E R
FEARMGEMNBRAFADEITZ
BRI H AR EEEE
FEZWMARTEBEESE -

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
(Restated)
(BE%)
Profit attributable to equity shareholders ZNA Bz 5B AFE(L
of the Company ($'000) wA(FIT) 549,102 445,328
Weighted average number of ordinary B #17E @A ke
shares in issue (in thousand shares) FH 8 (FR%) 2,016,576 1,999,077
Effect of outstanding share options RARTTEBRE 2 8
(in thousand shares) (FA%) 5,102 12,860
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ B E{TE @R (EE) 2
shares (diluted) in issue DREF 9 ER
(in thousand shares) (F5) 2,021,678 2,011,937
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) R E AR R GBI 27.2 22.3
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) S EeR0E M GBL) 27.2 22.1
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32 DIVIDENDS 32 BRERE
(@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the @ BREAFEERNAQNIERR
Company attributable to the year BAZRE
2022 2021
-t - 2 T —F
$’000 $000
Fr Tt
Interim dividend declared and paid EE 0 & Bk Hif%
of HK 4.5 cents per ordinary share /=& & Bk4.5751
(2021: HK4.0 cents per ordinary =F=—F:
share) EiBA4.07 L) 88,762 80,298
Special dividend declared and paid 25 & 2 KR Bl AX
of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share BEEER.oBIL
(2021: HKO.5 cent per ordinary (=%
share) EiBAR0.575 L) 22,190 10,037
Final dividend proposed after the ¥R BIR{& R A HA
end of the reporting period of &8 ERmR4.078
HK4.0 cents per ordinary share fil :%:—% :
(2021: HK7.0 cents per ordinary @7 0L
share) 80,852 140,871
191,804 231,206

(b)

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period have not been recognised as a

R E B REHK 2 KBS
RS R RERSAE

liability at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the b)) BREL-BBEE X YRFR

Company attributable to the previous financial

HAERIKE 2 BAAQFRERS

year, approved and paid during the year BEAZKRE
2022 2021
—E-—F B —F
$’000 $000
T T
Final dividend in respect of the ME—MBEFE -
previous financial year, approved Eﬁbﬁﬁaﬁéilﬁ
and paid during the year, of /E?EZEEHEHX%
HK7.0 cents per ordinary share _Eizﬁﬁ§7§7§m
(2021: HK5.0 cents per ordinary P - %
share) RS 078 l) 141,259 99,882
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33 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had the following significant commitments
and contingent liabilities which were not provided for in

278

(@

33 FEERIARERE
AEEBUTARBERAL S BB R
RETREBZEERKENSIAE

the consolidated financial statements: &
Capital commitments (@ BEAREE
The Group had the following authorised and RZZE-_—F=R=+—HXK
contracted capital commitments at 31 March 2022: SEHEUTERERENZE
ANAEHE
2022 2021
—=E== —E-—F
$’000 $000
Fr TIT
Purchase of property, plant and BEDE BEX
equipment B 72,923 25,972
Planned expenditure (b) FTEIZH

(b)

(0

At 31 March 2022, the Group has contracted for
further property development expenditure and
the related costs of internal fixtures and fittings
amounted to $16,440,000 (2021: $135,904,000).

Guarantees

(i)

(i)

At 31 March 2022, the Company has
given guarantees totaling approximately
$1,648,927,000 (2021: $1,455,509,000) to
financial institutions in connection with the
banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries.
Such banking facilities utilised as at 31
March 2022 amounted to approximately
$1,201,184,000 (2021: $917,466,000).

The Group has provided guarantees to banks
to secure the mortgage arrangements of
certain property buyers. At 31 March 2022,
the outstanding guarantees to the banks
amounted to $855,859,000 (2021 (restated):
$497,480,000) which will be released upon
the completion of the transfer procedures with
the property buyers in respect of the legal title
of the properties.

(o
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B AR BIEREEED
51,648,927,0007C( =&
— — % : 1,455,509,000
L) e R-—E-—F=A1
=+—H  BEFERAZET
B & %) 4 1,201,184,000
T(Z T = — F

917,466,0007T,) °

iy AEBEERFETREE
R -UERETESR
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33 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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33 AERIIREE(E)

(o

Guarantees (continued)
(i)  (continued)

(0 ERE)
(i) (&)

The directors do not consider the Group
will sustain a loss under these guarantees as
the bank has the rights to sell the property
and recovers the outstanding loan balance
from the sale proceeds if the property buyers
have default payment. The Group has not
recognised any deferred income in respect of

EER/AEE KB TIER
BLERMRZERX
RIRITERLEZLEY
X YHEBEEBEN
5% BRI o & Yas
WEIRIERE 2 ERERRE -
ARERFELIRE

these guarantees as its fair value is considered

to be insignificant.

34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with related parties

(@

SRR B R pLIELEHE
REERLABEIEYA -

34 FEBEEALIRS

@@ BREEALZXS

2022 2021
—ZE=-= —F—F
(Restated)
(B&E5)
$'000 $/000
Fr T
Sales of goods: HEEY :
Sales of finished goods to related  [AIBAE A RIHE RN m
companies 58 157
Sales of properties to related parties [W#:E A T E W - 4,374
Others: Hit :
Rental income from an associate ~ [AJE& A RIUEE S
WA 291 271
Consultancy fee charged by an X SRR B THEE A A
associated company 726 690
Rental charged by a related company X1 & T #iE A A 2,880 3,935
Purchase of machinery from an [FEEE A R B ies
associate 10,220 14,504
Repair and maintenance charged by Z[f#ERIREE T
an associate = N 5,306 4,838
Rental income from a related [ RAE N A WHRAE &
company YA 206 206
Management fee income from AERRWERERE
related companies WA 640 640
Payment of acquisition of Jiaxuntong Y& 553 K& Kar Info
and Kar Info International (note International Z < 5%
2(b)) (FtsE2(b)) 45,725 -
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34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

280

34 FEBMEALXRZ(E)

(continued)
(b) Balances with related parties (b) EBBEALZEER
2022 2021
g —E—F
(Restated)
(BE&E5)
$’000 $’000
T Tt
Amount due to an associate FEASTESE 2 N A BR X
(note 10) (FfftzE10) 1,532 1,669
Amounts due to related companies &S B:E 2 FERFK 3,664 4,032
Amount due from Dongguan Jiale — FEWCERZEFSE 2 BR 5K
(note (i)) (BR3EG)) 2,114 514,033
Amount due from other related U B A BE 3 N BIBR K
companies 37,838 1,912
Amounts due from related U R R BR K
companies 39,952 515,945

The amounts due from/to an associate and related

companies are unsecured,

interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Note:

(0]

Represents the amount due from Dongguan Jiale, a
new entity established as a result of the Corporate
Division as set out in note 2(b). The amount was paid
by Jiaxuntong to Dongguan Jiale prior to the Corporate
Division to support its ordinary business operations.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the
amount due from Dongguan Jiale of approximately
RMB276,278,000 (equivalent to $331,533,000) was
settled by debt assumption as part of the consideration
in pursuant to the Jiaxuntong Acquisition Agreement,
and the amount was debited to the merger reserve as
set out in note 20(c)(ii).
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34 FEMEALXRS(E)

34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(9]

(d)

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 28(b) and certain of
the highest paid employees as disclosed in note
28(c), is as follows:

(0

FTEEEEREMS
AEBETEEBABHM -
BREINFARARABESE ZHRE
R EE280) HER - ME TH&S
¥R B 2 F R M 5E28(c)
B HIWT -

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

$’000 $000

T Tt

Short-term employee benefits EEEEREN 28,436 25,570
Post-employment benefits BREs 2 A 148 136
Share-based payment VARR 17 32 1<% i B 970 -
29,554 25,706

Total remuneration is included in “employee benefit
expenses” (see note 28(a)).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

Except for the rental charged by a related company
as disclosed in note 34(a) that constitute connected
transactions, none of the related party transaction
mentioned above falls under the definition of
connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

(d

i pEEEERFSZE ]
N(RME28@)) °

HREXZAB 2 LTWRAIZ
pihcN i

B TR TE34(a) FrELZ S 7R
T THERA - FARERRK

BRESBAREEERABNX
BERX I - A LRk

AERZAEEIA LETHRAE
AAEFTAE 2 BER 5T
BRIER S -
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35 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 35 ARIEEZMBEARREK
POSITION
2022 2021
—E-—F —E—F
Note $’000 $/000
M5 Frx Tt
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIKE 710,653 851,401
Other financial assets HEtemEE 13,443 13,123
724,096 864,524
Current assets REEE
Amount due from a subsidiary  FEUfT B2 T AR 103,915 101,000
Prepayments, deposits and TR - e A
other receivables JE Y BR TR 1,048 1,312
Current tax recoverable ZNH A U Bl § IR 77 157
Cash and cash equivalents Re RIRTTEEY) 4,297 11,984
109,337 114,453
Total assets BEEHAE 833,433 978,977
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves AARERFEA
attributable to equity LR AR f#E
shareholders of the
Company
Share capital LN 18 202,131 201,244
Other reserves HibfEE 20 501,767 492,533
Retained earnings RE A 20 90,043 247,458
Total equity EREE 793,941 941,235
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35 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 35 DREBEZHBEMRREKE)
POSITION (continued)

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
$’000 $'000
5 T
LIABILITIES =i
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Provision for long service REIBRG ©
payments 553 782
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables — fE5TE A K& HMTERFK 38,939 36,960
Total liabilities BEAE 39,492 37,742
Total equity and liabilities EEREEREE 833,433 978,977
Net current assets TREBEEFEE 70,398 77,493
Total assets less current BEEABERRE
liabilities =K 794,494 942,017
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of RZB__FRA-t+tHAESF
directors on 27 June 2022. SHUE R IRETE o
Ho Cheuk Fai Chan Ming Mui, Silvia
= BR A ik
Director Director
EF EF
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36

37

284

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY
At 31 March 2022, the directors regard TMF (B.V.1.)
Limited, which beneficially owns 40.45% of the
Company’s equity interests, to be the immediate and
ultimate controlling party of the Company. Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu, and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming
are the beneficial owners of TMF (B.V.l.) Limited. TMF
(B.V.L) Limited is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and does not produce financial statements available for
public use.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
As a result of the application of AG 5, certain
comparative figures have been restated. Further details
are disclosed in Note 2(b).

In addition, following the agenda decision Demand
deposits with restrictions on use arising from a contract
with a third party published by the IFRS Interpretations
Committee in April 2022, the Group has voluntarily
changed its accounting policy and has reclassified
restricted deposits of $275,785,000 as cash and cash
equivalents at 31 March 2021 to better reflect the nature
of those deposits.

36

37
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 38 EBEMEHRRB8ZE-ZE=-_F=
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT B=1+—BLFEERZERT - #
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 HAIRREBARBHZEE
MARCH 2022
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, BEEAVBBRREXRER  BAT
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a AR AEEMTEEREEST
new standards, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which T THF=ZA=t+—HIEFEHRE
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2022 MZAERT MR - HEM RS
and which have not been adopted in these financial ﬁﬁ'J%W?ﬁ [MRBEER] - Mk
statements. These include the following which may be R Bz AERA - THR/EF
relevant to the Group. Al RE AR E AR

Effective for

accounting

periods

beginning on

or after

RUUT AHR

ZERBZ

SETHREXR

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptua/ Framework 1 January 2022
BEARMBWMELEREIFHRUEETA) - [ S| BHSESR] T -F—-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before 1 January 2022

Intended use

BEREEANE1R(EFTA) - [W% - BEM&E  WERLER 2AEHRE] —T-—F—HF—H

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022
BRGENEI7HRETA) - [BERESK — KKK —T-_%—HF—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
BB E%ERI2018582020%F 2 FEUGE —T-_—%—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023
B EAUEIRUERTR)  [RERBSRB IR —F-=%—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of 1 January 2023
Accounting Policies

EREENE IR LB BRELENERRRFE2MR - [SABEREE] —F-_=F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
EARIDERIER (BETA) - [ @b 22 %] —T-=%—H—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of NEBIEHE HEL%@E SR
what the impact of these developments is expected to be Tf MRERRARzZE - BER
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded  DHEESR T HEAREEEa N
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant ﬁ?\%lﬁ?iiﬁgﬁﬁﬂ °

impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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The results of the Group for the last five financial years ended
31 March 2022 and the assets and liabilities of the Group as at
31 March 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

AREBE_T-__F=A=1— ElJJ:fE
EH B F R 2 AR E’\\ %E )\E

—NEF - ZTTF - —FR= §§
—CF=ZA=t-HZBEERABNOT

=

HREER

Year ended 31 March
BEZA=t-ALEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—¥-of B —EC®R —NE  ZE-N\F
(Restated)
(BE51)
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T T T
Revenue WA 4,013,434 3,472,798 2,902,208 2,651,169 2,919,880
Operating profit ST 968,089 743992 380,780 315837 264191
Finance income B A 17,067 11,379 4,462 2,743 1,542
Finance costs BB (14,738) (7,975) (24,858) (19,187) (14,883)
Share of profits of an EiERE AR
associate 1,164 1,487 1,354 093 872
Profit before taxation BRBLATER 971,582 748,883 361,738 300,086 251,722
Income tax FigH (422,480) (303,555) (111,472) (78,700) (34,015)
Profit for the year from  FERFREBELE
continuing operations #£5 549,102 445,328 250,266 221,386 217,707
Loss for the year from FEERREDRILE
discontinued operations &% - - - - (35,414)
Profit for the year FERF 549,102 445,328 250,266 221,386 182,293
Attributable to: FEk
Equity shareholders of the AR AJEZFEAA
Company 549,102 445,328 250,266 221,386 182,563
Non-controlling interests ~ FEFEft iz - - - - (270)
549,102 445,328 250,266 221,386 182,293
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CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES GeBEERERE
At 31 March
ZA=+-H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
B 2% CZZE-%F —E-NF ZT-)\F
(Restated) (Restated)
(B&%) (B&5)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $/000 $'000
Fr T T T T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets EREEE 1,309,610 1,007,922 954,602 867,636 900,492
Current assets TEEE 3,756,456 3,422,966 2,739,848 1,596,282 1,743,125
Total assets BEBE 5,066,066 4,430,888 3,694,450 2,463,918 2,643,617
EQUITY G 5
Share capital R 202,131 201,244 199,384 199,183 199,456
Reserves @ 1,494,421 1,495,462 1,176,431 967,677 988,826
Total equity EmieE 1,696,552 1,696,706 1375815 1,166,860 1,188,282
LIABILITIES 8
Non-current liabilities ErRaaE 490,888 632,330 838,550 564,815 502,588
Current liabilities REaE 2,878,626 2,101,852 1,480,085 732,243 952,747
Total liabilities BERE 3,369,514 2,734,182 2,318,635 1,297,058 1,455,335
Total equity and liabilities 182 % & E#8(E 5,066,066 4,430,888 3,694,450 2,463,918 2,643,617
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Notes:

1. As set out in Note 2(b) to the financial statements, the Group has

—_

applied AG5 to account for business combination under common

control in current year and retrospective adjustments have been
made. The financial information for the consolidated assets and

liabilities as at 31 March 2020 and 2021 and the consolidated

results for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been restated

accordingly to conform with the current year’s presentation. For

the interests of shareholders, financial information for consolidated
assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2018 and 2019 and the
consolidated results for the year ended 31 March 2018, 2019 and
2020 are not restated.

2. The Group adopted HKFRS 16, Leases, with effect from 1 April 2.
2019. As a result, the Group has changed its accounting policies

in respect of the lessee accounting model. In accordance with the

transitional provisions of the standard, the changes in accounting

policies were adopted by way of opening balance adjustments to

recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019.

After initial recognition of these assets and liabilities, the Group as

a lessee was required to recognise interest expenses accrued on the

outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of

the right-of-use asset, instead of the previous policy of recognising

rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Figures in year earlier than 2019 were
stated in accordance with the policies applicable in those years.
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Properti

ies Held by the Group
AEBEFEZUE

Asat 31 March 2022 A—ZE-—F=A=+—H
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE FhERME
Stage of Percentage
Location Site area Lease expiry  Completion holding
B TEE HERS BREE BERDL
(sq.m.)
(FFFAK)
Jin San Jiao Development Zone, 4,798 2087 Under 100%
Dongping Village, Zhangning Town, (residential Construction
Boluo County, Huizhou City, purpose) e
Guangdong Province, 2057
The People’s Republic of China (commercial
(note) purpose)
PEEREEMNMERGEREE —ZENLEF
RERNE=AMABEARE (E=MAH)
(B3E) —EREF
(FRZAH)

Note: The construction is expected to be completed in the third quarter PR -

of 2022.

TRREFNR-ZE_—FE=FET -
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Properties Held by the Group
REBFEZME

As at 31 March 2022 A-Z - —4=F=+—H

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRIEIBREZER AR QA

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE BEM=E
Gross floor Lease Percentage
Location Unsold area area expiry holding
o B AEHER BEER HAERS FRESH
(sq.m.) (sgq.m.)
CEITK) CF73K)

Unit 258, 165 165 2062 100%
Sunlight Court, Castfast Villas, —ERIF
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
B E R G R=mh Rl E
FIESGE B ERI2512BR
Unit 16A, 148 148 2062 100%
Twilight Court, Castfast Villas, —ERIF
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
B ERE R Rl E R
FIESEER161EAT
Unit 25C, 143 143 2062 100%
Skylight Court, Castfast Villas, ZERCF
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
B E R G R Rl R
RERETERE25ECH
“Forest Town”, 3,033 3,685 2084 100%
Phase 3, (residential
Castfast Villas, purpose)
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City, 2054
Guangdong Province, (commercial
The People’s Republic of China purpose)
B E R G R m Rl R —T)\WE
SRS = B FR4A (E=Em)

—TRHME

(M)



Properties Held by the Group
AEBEFEZUE

As at31 March 2022 A=ZE-_—4=F=+—H

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (continued) FEME(E)
Gross floor Lease Percentage
Location Unsold area area expiry holding
o B AEER BEEE HERS BFEEOL
(sq.m.) (sg.m.)
CE3K)  (E3K)

Phase 4, 53,153 76,498 2085 100%
Castfast Villas, (residential
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City, purpose)
Guangdong Province, 2055
The People’s Republic of China (commercial
B BR & SR 52 JBL el R purpose)
RERESIH k%] —“ZTN\RF

(E=EmH)

—THAEF

(BMH)
Phase 5, 94,302 100,195 2085 100%
Castfast Villas, (residential
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City, purpose)
Guangdong Province, 2055
The People’s Republic of China (commercial
PR E R R Bl E purpose)
FESEZHH 2] —“TN\RF

(M)

“THEF

GEES )

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 3% 291



Properties Held by the Group
AEERFE 2R

As at 31 March 2022 A-Z - —4=F=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT MIRFERE
Percentage
Location Existing use holding
1 R#ZE FRESH
1 East of Jingyi Road and South of Wenzhuang Road, Idle 100%
Yixing Economic Development Zone, z=
Wauxi City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
BT RS BT
HEEEFER
AR F A
i B BE R A
2 Wenzhuang Road, Idle 100%
Yixing Economic Development Zone, z=

Wauxi City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
BT #R s EipT

B B 7 5 B R S B

Note: The above properties are either freehold, held on long or medium- W3t : LA F#EAMAELH - RERZHRFHR
term leases or have no specified lease term. HWFRBSORAETEHER -
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